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ASSEMBLY. No. 3037 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

B.\ ,\;->."it'Jiddynli'll I1Jit 1 1~.\~:('Jt:~~t\~. ~<r! 1 lt:\\' 1\H.ri\ .\::st~tllhly\\'olll:tll 
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Ht>ft•J'I'Pd to ('ommi1tt•e 011 'i'ran~pndntinn :>nd ('onnnunieations 

AN J\,.,. t'oll<'<'rllio~g 11w ~~~tah'i:d:;,,pJJ1 ol' utility rat"s and ameuding 
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l. H. fl. ·t"i ::C -~1 1 is II!IWtl!]t•tl 1o l't>:ltl IU< follow': 

4:C::2- ~1. (n) 'l'he hoanl 111::y l'<'tplire ~>Very public· utility to lih1 

with it t•ompk1l' RC'hfldult'H of t'VPry elassifi,·atioll t>lllJ!Ioyt•d nnd of 

1'\'t•ry i11di1·idnal or joint ra!P, led!. l':ll'c' or ,•1~:11·~,. lnadt', l'i::Jrg<•d 

Ill' t'\ll•·lo·d hy il !'or :Ill.\' pmd;l!'l "'l'l'lic·d or .St'l'\'it••• rt'lllll'l'l'd within 

!IIi>' Nlalc·, ns SJ :c·!'i lit·d i 11 I ht> rc·qni l'<'illl'liL 

(h) 'l'lw hoard may aficr IIt>HI'ing, HJ!Oll no I it•e, hy onler in 

writing·: 

1. lc'ix just. and roasonahle individual rates, joint rntPs, tolls, 

elm rgl's or sehcdnleB t.IH)J'l•of, as wt'll as commutation, mileage 

ant! ollwr >'Jl<ll'ial ral.r!o; wl:iel1 ~.hall bt) imposer!, observed and fol

lowed (hpn·nftrr h~· any pnblin utility, whmwver the board shall 

determine any existing rate, toll, charge or scherlule thereof, 

commutation, mileage or other spcr.:ial rate to be unjust, unreason

nble, insuflicieut or unjust!)• dis,,riminatory or preferential. In 

every sui'l1 TII'Or,cc<ling tl1c boanl shall completP and close the. 

]waring witl1in (j months and Pnlc1· its final ordPr within R months 

aft<'!' lht• filing· of lhP orc!Pr of tilt' board initiatiug s11eh pnH'eeding, 

l!J when sueh procPeding is on tlw hoa nl 's own motion; or after issue 

20 is joined through the filing- of an answer to a eomplaint, when such 

21 proceeding is initiated by eomplaint. 

22 2. F'ix just and reasonable joint. rates, whir-h shall be charged, 

2.'3 enforced, collected and observed by railroads and street railroads 

24 in the carrying of freight. ·whenever the railroadB or street rail-

2:"i roads involved fail to agree upon the apportionment or division of a 

2() joint rate so established, the board may issue a supplemental order 

27 deelaring the apportionment or division of the joint rate. 
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28 (c) The hoard may fix t.lw rat<'>' or· elmr~P~ to lw m:HlP by any 

2fl eorpomtion ~uhjPd to the provi>'iouH of t.lri~ draptt'r for tho rh.'t.en-

30 tion of a railroad ear eoutaining property trnusportPrl hy railroad 

iU to any point in thiH State or for the nHe of railroatl tl'lrl'kH f)('.eupied 

:~2 by such car, commonly railer! demurrage or !'ar Hf!r·vire, or for 

:l:l both sueh detl•ntion and nHe. Hrtt•lr rat.e>H :nul eh:r rg-es shall eonform 

:l4 as nearly as posHihlc to tlul l'Ult>H and chargeR for· rlPmunagn or· car 

:lG serviec prescribed and fixed hy tire Interstate Commerce CormniK

:!6 sion for similar service. 

37 (d) When any public utility shall increase any existing individual 

38 rates, joint rates, tolls, charges or schedules thereof, as well as 

39 commutation, mileage and other spet'ial rates, or change or alter 

40 any existing classification, the board, either upon written complaint 

4-1 or upon its own initiative, Rhall have power after hearing, upon 

42 nutir•r., by onlpr· in writing to rll'fermint> wlwtlwr the inerPaRe, 

.J-:l change or altcrntion is just anrl r·easonuhle. The hnrden of proof to 

44 show tlmt the inPrease, change or alteration is just and reasonable 

45 shall bo upon the pnhlic utility making the Rame. The boa1·d, 

46 pending Rnch hearing and determination, may ortler the suspenRion 

47 of the im•renRe, drange or alteration until the boarrl shall huvr! 

48 approved the Rnme, not cxcePding 4 months. Tf thr. lwnring and 

49 determination shall not have br.en concluded within such 4 montliH 

50 the board may during such hearing and determination order a 

51 further suspension for an additional period not exceeding 4 months. 

52 The board shall approve the increase, change or alteration upon 

53 being satisfied that the same is just and reasonable. 

54 (e) The board shall not permit any utility within its jurisdiction 

55 to incorporate costs incurred in the maintenance and operation of 

56 any nuclear fission thermal powerplant which requires the reproc-

57 P-ssin.q of fuel rods and which has not been in operation at any time 

58 previous t() the effective date of this art, into its rate base until 

59 both of the following conditions are met: 

60 (1) The board finds that the United States, through its autho-

61 rized agency has approved a technology for the construction and 

62 operation of nuclear f-uel rod reprocessing plants and permanent, 

63 radioactive waste sites and that facilities with adequate capacities 

64 to reprocess nuclear fuel rods and store the permcment, radioactive 

65 wastes generated from a power plant proposed to be included in a 

66 utility's rate base as referred to above, are in actual operation or 

67 wiU be in operation at the time such nuclear facility becomes 

68 operable. 
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(2) The bou1·d has transmitted its findings pursuant to para

graph (1) to the Senate and General Assrmbly 011 n daJJ on which 

both Houses ,qhall be mePtinq in the course of a rcgnlar or sper,ial 

session. The /ioanl may proceed to opp1'0IJI' 11 rate base chnn.qe with 

regm·d to a. proposed n·uclenr facility only if lhf' !.t·.q·islature docs 

not pass a concurrent resolutim1 disajjinnin,17 th,• jindi1t.gs of I ht· 

hoard within 100 day.: after· receipt of the report. No report shall 

be submitted less than 11 months pr·ior to the rOfwening of a mNt' 

Legislatu·re. 

A resolutiatt of disajjirmtm..e slutll sf'! forth th" rpasons for· flu· 

artion and shall providr. lo !he extent possiblP, ,ll~t-idaiU't' to tlw 

honrd as to an a.pw·opriatp nwlhod of hrinpi·ng to board's finr/intl-' 

in! o eonformm•ce with fltlr!ltJraph ( 1). 

l fa rlisaffinning resolution ·is adopfr<d, tlw board sha.ll ree:.wm.im· 

its ori,qinal find·in,qs r:on.,qislent with matters raised in the resolu

tion. On conclusion of its rcexarni1;ation, the board sl1all reduce its 

fintti-l;gs to writin,11 with the rr~IISII'IIS therefor and shall tmnsmit lhr~ 

r·evised report to the f:Jenat~< aml Utmeral Assembly on a dr~:tf on 

which both Houses shlrlt be mcetin,Q in the courst< of a rc,qular ot· 

special session. The cot/elusions of the board contained in thc 

revised report shall be deemed acceptable to the Le,qislature unless 

tt concurrent resolution declarin.IJ the findings null and void is 

passed within 60 days of receipt. No revised ·report shall be sub

mitted less th111n 6 months prior to the convening of a new 

Legislature. 

2. This act shall take effect immediately. 

STATEM.J<JNT 

The purpose of this bill is to prevent more nudear powerplants 

from becoming operable in New .Jersey before the question of the 

disposal of spent fuel rods and pPrmaneut uue!Par· waste is settled. 

'rite existenee of spent fuel rods awl permarH·nt, nnusahle wast" 

generated by these poweq.rlants is a problem because, at this time, 

there is no approved method of dealing with these volatile nuclear 

materials except to store them .temporarily. A great deal of 

information has been generated on both sides of this issue. Some 

have argued that the waste problem is one that will be handled 

adequately enough within a reasonably short period of time and 

that it would be disastrous to suspend our nuclear program in the 

interim. Others have argued that the waste question can never 

really be settled because there will always be some waste that will 

need storage and that long-term (perhaps centuries) storage costs 
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makes nuclear power eeonomically unviable. Al~o, it has hecn 

argued that the impact of nuclear waste on pnvironmental quality 

is such that all nuclear activity should be stopped for ibis reason 

alone. 

At this point, it seems thai there is enough evidence to suggest 

that the economic and environmental costs incurred as a result of 

the disposition of nuclear wastes are such that no additional nuclear 

waste of a commercial nature should be allowed to accumulate in 

New Jersey until means for reprocessing fuel rods and disposing of 

permanent wastes is approved by the Federal Government. It is 

less than prudent to rely merely on the assurances of industry 

representatives that a suitable means will be found to deal with 

used nuclear fuel. The risks of failure in this arl'lt are potentially 

very great, thus it is in the pnhlil" interest to make sure that the 

iss1w iR dealt with 11s carefully as po;;sihle. To date, there has been 

no definitive responsC' given to the question: What will happen to 

waste from nuclear fuel rods and what will be the cost of this 

disposition Y The time has come to answer this question before 

New Jersey becomes more involved in the field of nuclear power 

generation. 

This bill stipulates that no utility will be allowed (by the Board 

of Public Utilities) to incorporate into its rate base costs ineurred 

in the operation or maintcnmH·c of any nuclear powerplant brouglit 

into operation subsequent to the effPctivc date of this legislation 

unless two eonditions arc met. FirHt, the Boanl of Public Utilities 

must find that the United States government, through an anthori7:erl 

agency, has approved a means for the reprocessing of spent fuel 

rods and a technology for permanent waste disposal and that 

facilities for such reprocessing and storage will be in operation at 

the time such nuclear plant becomeR operable. Second, the BPU 

must report to the Legislature before it takes any action in this 

regard. The !Jegislature is given the power of a negative veto over 

the BPU if the Legislature disagrees with the findings of the BPU . 

..... 
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ASSEMBLYMAN H. DONALD STEWART (Chairman): Good morning, everyone. This 

is a public hearing to discuss Assembly Bill 3037. The meeting is being held by 

the Assembly Agriculture and Environment Committee. My name is Don StPwart. I 

represent District 3 in Salem and Gloucester County. On the far right of the table 

is Assemblyman Cowan from District 32 representing Hudson County and our Committee 

staff member, Norman Miller. We have a list of participants in today's hearing. 

Anyone who is in the room and would like to be added to the list should see Mrs. 

Harris on our right over here. Jeannie,would you raise your hand indicating where 

you are? The list is over 20 now so, we would appreciate it if you intend to 

testify that you get your names up here as soon as possible. I have a few ground 

rules before we start. We do intend to confine the testimony to Assembly Bill 3037. 

We would hope that you would not wander off that topic at all. We may have to remind 

som(' of you as the meeting goes on that we are not discussing a general issue. Wr. 

ar8 discussing a very specific piece of logislation. We would hope that each ;,nd 

every one of you would stick to that. If you have wr.itten testimony, we would 

appreciate your leaving a copy of it with us before you testify and also leaving a 

copy with the stenographer. We would also appreciate it if you have testimony 

that is lengthy, that you summarize it during your oral presentation. There will 

be a printed copy of the public hearing in which your complete text will be published 

and the Committee will have a copy of your complete text to digest. But, in the 

interest of time, we would ask you to summarize as much as possible and try not to 

be repetitive of some of the other people we had testifying. But, our intention is 

to get everyone to testify today. So you can schedule your day, we will be breaking 

at approximately a quarter to one and returning at approximately - assuming we still 

have people to testify - a little after two. With those formalities out of the way, 

our first witness is Assemblyman Donald DiFrancesco of District 22, the prime 

sponsor of Assembly Bill 3037. 

A S S E M B L Y M A N D 0 N A L D T. D I F R A N C E S C 0: Thank you, Mr. 

Chairman. Good morning, everyone. Before I give my comments on my written presenta

tion, I'd like to just say that this bill A-3037 is not a reaction to what has 

occurred recently in Harrisburg but rather is something that was considered and 

finally introduced several months ago on January 16, 1979. It deals with one 

specific topic. So, with that in mind, I'd like to begin my presentation and if 

you'll bear with me, it will take a few minutes. 

I would like to begin by quoting from three federal government sources 

relative to the question of nuclear waste disposal. I have chosen these sources 

to represent what I believe is a widespread concern about the present status of 

nuclear waste disposal in this country. I will quote from a Congressional source, 

namely the Committee on Government Relations, from an Executive source, namely t.hP 

Comptroller General, and a special inter-agency task force set up by President 

Carter. First, from the final report of the inter-agency review group which was 

submitted to the President only last month, we are told something about the problem 

that we face. "The management of radioactive waste from the past three decades can 

be characterized by inadequate integration of waste management research and develop

ment efforts with those for other parts of the nuclear fuel cycle. This has been 

caused in part by inadequate perceptions of the additional technological and 

scientific capabilities needed to develop an acceptable disposal capability -

historically assumed to be achievable through isolation of wastes in mined 

geologic depositories-and in part by low funding le~els compatible with a view 
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that the waste management program should focus on only one geologic medium, namely 

sea salt for high level waste disposal and few sites." (P.2) (p.S) "It is now 

recognized that a much more broadly based program which addresses fundamental 

scientific questions within a systems concept is needed ••• " 

The problem which we face is not an incidental one. We are warned that: 

"Today, and as projected for the future, the radioactive waste generation rate of 

the defense-related programs is about CG~stant and small in relation to the future 

generation of the nuclear power industry. The commercial nuclear power industry 

has grown during the 1960's and 1970's, and, as a result, has now generated more 

radioactive waste than the past defense-related activities. The annual generation 

rate of waste from the commercial nuclear power industry will continue to grow as 

new power reactors come into operation." (p. 8) 

The inter-agency review group thus notes that "An important question is 

whether the risks associated with the management of existing wastes are larger than 

we would be willing to accept if we had a choice, and of course we do have a choice 

with regard to new waste commitments." (p. 6) 

The concern over our ability to adequately deal with nuclear wastes was 

also noted by the Comptroller General in a report to Congress about eighteen months 

ago when he noted: 

"The Energy Research and Development Administration has begun a program 

to demonstrate by the mid 1980's the feasibility and safety of placing radioactive 

wastes in deep geological formations. GAO points out that not only has progress 

been negligible to date, but that future program goals are overly optimistic because 

the Energy Research and Development Administration faces many unsolved social, regu

latory, and geological obstacles." 

The Congressional Committee on Government Operations, in its report re

leased less than a year ago entitled, "Nuclear Power Costs" apparently concurred 

with the Comptroller General when it said: " ••• adequate federal programs to deal 

with the radioactive wastes do not yet exist, despitf'! the protestations of the 

Department of Energy and the Nuclear Regulatory Commission that a solution Js just. 

around the corner." 

"It is unthinkable that the United States should continue without a 

national program of radioactive waste disposal and decommissioning, without a clear 

delineation of federal, state and private responsibility for waste disposal and 

decommissioning, and without a sense of urgency and priority on the part of 

government to address this growing problem. So long as this problem remains un

resolved, the public's health and safety and the viability of nuclear power in this 

country are threatened." (p. 3) 

The problem that faces this State Legislature is that our responsibilities 

in the area of protecting the public's health and welfare from nuclear waste is 

highly circumscribed by.the federal government. For better, or worse- and in 

light of what happened in Pennsylvania, I am not sure which it is - the Nuclear 

Regulatory Commission holds sway in this area. As the recent court decision in 

California indicated, there is very little room for state discretion in nuclear 

power development. It is my hope that this will change. And, as a State Legis

lator I take the welfare of New Jersey's citizens very seriously and it frustrates 

me and I'm sure all of you to be told that what happens at Oyster Creek, or Salem 

is entirely a federal matter. 

There is, however, an area within which, I believe, we can presently act 

as legislators in the best interest of our New Jersey's citizens. This involves the 
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issue, which is the thrust of the bill, the issue of incorporating the costs :tPld

tive to running a nuclear power plant into the utility rates. 

I have already alluded to the chaos which exists in the federal l0v••l 

concerning nuclear waste disposal. AJ though there are som0 indicat.iuns that flOill<' 

order may be brouqht to this dis mal situation, it. is c !Par t.hat. any asstu·anc<~iJ wh .icft 

we: have r<'ceived 1 hat t.he problem will b0 dealt with soon have be<'n premat ur0. 'l'h•~ 

fact is, nobody really knows. 

Something else which we don't know, which goes along with t.hc genera 1 un

certainty, is what the cost of nuclear waste disposal is going to be. If we don't 

know what the solution is, then we surely can't know what the true costs are going 

to be. The "Nuclear Power Costs" report that I already referred to noted that 

" •.. there are potentially enormous costs associated with the 'back end' of thf• fuel 

cycle. The costs of virtually indefinite radioactive waste storage and decommission

ing of the nuclear plant remain essentially unknown, and in most cases, hav<~ not benn 

factored into the price the present-day consumer pays fOJ:- nuclear-generat.ed 

electricity." (p. 3) 

My bill would not allow new nuclear power: plants - and I emphasize n<-'W 

rlllc l'•ar power plants - to opPrate until the qnPstion <>f repr-ocessing and pcrmano>nt 

wast<' disposal has been answered. I don't think that w0 can be rcsponsibl0 ,);J 

P"ople who are supposed to be involved with setting an energy policy for our citizens 

if we continue to avoid hard questions about the cost of various energy forms. 

Nuclear energy is supposed to be the least expensive way to make electricity. How 

can we possibly say this if we don't know what the costs are going to be to get rid 

of the nuclear waste? How can we allow any more nuclear plants to operate unless we 

have some answers about what our citizens are really going to pay, not only now, but 

in the future? 

I believe that A-3037 is a reasonable way of dealing with this particular 

problem. I think it does not run afoul of federal law because it does not deal 

directly with construction or with problems of health and safety. It also allows 

the utilities to make their own decisions regarding the future of nuclear power. 

If a reasonable means for dealing with spent fuel rods and permanent wastes can bP 

found which is economically viable, and the utilities are confident of this fact, 

then there is no problem. If anything, this bill should force the federal govern

ment to be consistent. If it is going to dictate that we must have nuclear power 

then it also must take the responsibility now, before it goes any further, of 

giving a definite answer to this perplexing question of nuclear waste disposal. 

I trust that you are all familiar, or will become familiar with the bill, 

so I will not elaborate on its provisions. There are some small, technical amend

ments which will be made to the bill in order to make it conform to the language 

used by the Board of Public Utilities. This can be done easily and I trust will 

not take away from the more important issues which this bill raises and really the 

concept behind the bill that's been introduced. Thank you for the opportunity to 

testify and that is the end. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Senator DeFrancesco, could you just enlighten the 

Committee as to the status of other states? Do any other states have similar 

legislation like this on the books right now? 

ASSEMBLYMAN DIFRANCESCO: This is off the top of my head but, I believe 

that California and Maine totally banned the construction of nuclear power plants 

and there are approximately 15 to 17 states that have placed restrictions on the 

construction of nuclear power plants. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Dealing with the waste issue or just outright 

moratoriums? 

ASSEMBLYMAN DIFRANCESCO: I don't believe that it deals with just the 

waste issue. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: O.K. Thank you very much. We have two additional 

members of our Committee here, Barbara McConnell from District 14 which includes 

Mercer, Middlesex, and Louis Bassano fran. District 20 representing Union County. 

Our next witness is Steven Picco, Department of Energy, Assistant Commissioner. 

s T E v E N P I c c O: Good morning Mr. Chairman and Committee members. The 

Department of Energy appreciates the opportunity to present comments on Assembly 

Bill 3037. 

Before I get into the policy questions raised by this particular bill, I 

would like to raise one or two technical problems with the legislation. The first 

is that maintenance and operating costs are excluded from the rate base. The Board 

of Public Utilities uses a different formula in calculating the rate base. Although 

maintenance and operating costs do find their way into rates, rate base is a term of 

art which would have to be changed in order to effectuate the intent of the legisla

tion. Frank Delaney from the Board will be able to give you the specifics on how 

that should be done. The second one is the ban on a power plant that requires the 

reprocessing of fuel rods. As I understand it, no power plant requires the re

processing of fuel rods. The reprocessing of fuel rods is an option available in 

the disposal of the wastes. Perhaps that language should be amended to tighten that 

up a little bit because you could argue that where there is an arrangement being made 

to dispose of the fuel rods by some sort of underground storage, that is not a 

reprocessing and, therefore, the plant would be exempt from the provisions of the 

Act. 

The Department of Energy, on a policy basis would oppose A-3037, primarily 

on the grounds that the exemption applies only to those plants which would be in 

operation on the date of the Act. That language works to include in the provision 

of the bill the Forked River and Hope Creek stations which are presently well under 

construction but not yet in operation or probably won't be in operation during this 

session of the Legislature. It is our belief that the need for these facilities has 

been adequately demonstrated by the utilities to the various regulatory bodies in 

the State and that to change the rules of the game at this late date would be a dis

service to New Jersey rate payers and to New Jersey electric consumers. The cali

fornia case that everyone is alluding to would appear to prohibit this bill. What 

the California case basically says without getting into the specifics is that a 

court will look at the intent of the legislation as far as the nuclear power plants 

are concerned and given the fact that the federal government has reserved to itself 

the question of waste disposal and the effects flowing therefrom, if the court deems 

that a state law is intended to circumvent that federal mandate then that law will 

be struck down. And the California case struck down a statute which is very similar 

to this proposal. For your information, about 17 states either have an act or are 

considering some sort of moratorium on nuclear construction - not necessarily opera

tion - until the waste disposal problem has been solved to the state's satisfaction 

by the federal government. 

One other issue that flows from this narrow exemption is the question of 

whether or not after a utility has spent millions of dollars in pre-construction and 

construction costs and the state takes an action which would, in effect, require them 
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to halt construction, whether or not they can recover from the state the amounts 

spent in construction under the Fifth Amendment - taking without due process. 

Basically our position is that the plants currently under construction have met so 

far all the environmental, regulatory, and need goals that have been set for them by 

the State and federal government. And having done that, they should be allowed to 

continue construction. That is not to say if this bill is amended to exclude Hope 

Creek and Forked River that we woulC not continue to oppose it. I just don't know. 

If that amendment is made then I will submit supplemental comments at that time. 

That about sums up the position of the Department. I'm free to answer any questions 

that you may have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Yes, Steve, first you mentioned some technical 

amendments which we're aware of - the rate structure part and the definition 

requiring disposal of fuel rods. Your statement on which facilities this might or 

might not affect - I thought I heard you correctly that you said it would affect 

Forked River and both Hope Creek I and II - would it also not affect Salem II? 

MR. PICCO: Yes, Salem. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: You're satisfied that the terminology in operation 

does not apply - Salem II is not in operation at this point it could be---

MR. PICCO: It could be. Well, that's one I'm not sure of. It could be 

by the time the bill is passed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: O.K. Do you know duration for on-site storage of 

spent fuel that's in the Hope Creek I and II permits? How long were they allowed 

to store on site? 

MR. PICCO: I don't have that information off hand. Frank Delaney can--

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Well, we can ask that when they appear. I know 

Salem I and Salem II are either four or six years---

MR. PICCO: They're both in for expansion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: That brings me to your point of changing the rules 

in the middle of the game. It doesn't sound to me that we're changing the rules. 

It sounds to me as if the federal government is changing the rules in the middle 

of the game. ~~en those plants were approved, the storage was for 4 years, that's 

what the DEP gave us CAFRA permits for and that's what the permits were based on. 

MR. PICCO: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Now because the federal government has not acted, 

the industry has had to go back and ask for a change in the rules in the middle of 

the game. Now they want to store for 17 years. 

MR. PICCO: The problem is that the feds are doing it. And, the feds 

have the control as far as all the rules are concerned. What I'm saying is that 

basically as far as plants under construction I don't believe - at least under the 

California rationale which may actually be overturned by the Supreme Court - under 

current latest case law on the subject, it doesn't appear that the state has the 

power to change the rules. It may be overturned or it may not. I just don't know. 

There is one other thing as to plants currently under construction. Under the Hope 

Natural Gas case which is the leading case as far as rates and the power of govern

ment to allow a utility to exist, that case holds that government has to allow a 

utility to make a fair profit. And, I can envision the argument if this bill 

passes: that the New Jersey Legislature by forcing the utilities to, in essence, 

walk away from a few million dollars of investments - and also forcing them, 

incidentally, to either buy power or to construct from scratch non-nuclear facilities 

to make up for demands in the near future - the State is, thereby, denying them 
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the right to make a fair profit. I'm just raising a possible problem. I don't know 

if they will, in fact, raise it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Were you in the DEP when the CAFRA permits were 

issued? 

MR. PICCO: One of them. In Salem II. 

ASSMEBLYMAN STEWART: O.K. you were. I have that information in front of 

me and I'm looking at a statement in it dealing with preemption and the cases that 

you mentioned. Just to take a sentence out of it, it says, "The rule of XYZ 

case may arguably preempt DEP's authority to exercise CAFRA to set specific health 

and safety limitations or, less plausibly, any other requirements with respect to 

nuclear fuel---" It appears to me that in the CAFRA permit, David Bardin, who was 

our Commissioner at that time and people in the DEP weren't 100% sure that we were 

being preempted. And, we haven't been sued at least to my knowledge. 

MR. PICCO: It is still a question that's up in the air. Some other 

states with coastal plants are being sued on those grounds. We haven't seen a court 

case on it yet. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: While we have you here let me hit you with some 

other questions. You may be our only person who will be able to give us some facts 

on Salem II CAFRA permit. And, I realize this is taxing your memory 

MR. PICCO: It also puts me in a very difficult position. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: The CAFRA permit assumed that there was going to be 

4 years of storage at the Salem site. Now there is an application for 17 years 

storage. The way I read the CAFRA permit, it hinged on that contingency- that there 

would be 4 years of storage in that site. It appears to me that if there is a change 

in that procedure, it drastically affects the CAFRA permit that was given to that 

site. 

MR. PICCO: Without binding DEP in any way because I can't do that - just 

speaking as a lawyer - it seems to me that they would have to go in for modification 

of their permit. They would have to request a new permit or ask for modification 

in terms of the other permit. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: We would have to ask someone elso whether that has 

happened or not. 

MR. PICCO: Right. I don't know that it has. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Could you educate us a little bit as far as the 

CAFRA permit getting into the decommissioning of the facility and a plan had to be 

submitted 6 months after this, which I assume was filed, again, we can ask the other 

people about that --- The same question again, I would assume the fact that now there 

may be 17 years storage on that site which would drastically affect the decommission

ing of that facility and again might drastically affect that CAFRA permit? 

MR. PICCO: Right. Just a broad sweeping statement on any permit. Where 

a permit sets out conditions and those conditions are changed by either party, there 

has to be some sort of supplemental document, either a new permit or a revision to 

the existing permit addressing the changed circumstances. I would think that that 

would carry across to all the reports required to be submitted as part of the first 

permit process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: O.K. Again, reading through the CAFRA permit, and 

I don't know if this is in your line or not but I'll ask you and if you don't have 

it, maybe someone else will when they come up. In several instances the question 

of uranium and plutonium oxide fuel rods kept coming up and the storage of that 
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particular type was prohibited. Do you know if that's the kind of fuel rods we're 

talking about? I don't have the slightest. idea what the diffenmcc is but- cvidontly 

there was a grave difference because it is mentioned many times. Are we Lalkinq 

about storing that sort of thing at Salem I & II, Hope Creek I & II? 

MR. PICCO: Not to my knowledge. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: There's been no change in that. O.K. Any other 

questions? I hate to let you go. 'I'here is a wealth of information here. Let me 

see if there is anything else that may have popped up. We said we were going to 

stick to the storage issue and I want to stick to it but since you have this wealth 

of information from both sides Does the incident at Three Mile Island concern 

yo~ as far as the storage issue is concerned? Do you see whether the fact that there 

is storage on site affects at all the ultimate dangers that occur at a site like 

that? 

MR. PICCO: Speaking as a layman on this because I don't have the scientific 

knowledge, it seems to me that if the worst happens at a reactor, the fact that you 

have fuel on site or not is not going to make a heck of a lot of incremental difference 

to the damages that occur. I just don't think that happens. Some of the other 

people who are more familiar with that may change it but it seems to me that if 

something really bad happens, the question of something really bad and something really 

bad plus something -the incremental difference isn't that great. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: I guess in layman's terms the average person on the 

street wants to know if an accident like that happened and there was 17 years of 

spent fuel sitting there on the site, could that be released into the atmosphere? 

Is it another peril we have to worry about over and above the meltdowns and every

thing else we heard about? 

MR. PICCO: I don't know the answer to that. I'll just lay out that the 

CIA estimates that in the early and late fifties the Russians had tremendous problems 

with nuclear storage. And at least one of their nuclear storage sites is believed 

to have exploded at some point. I understand that at that time they were not using 

any of the techniques that are currently being considered by the federal government. 

So, we may be just discussing apples and oranges. There have been problems with 

nuclear storage, at least as far as the CIA knows. Of course if we rely on their 

Iran information, who knows? 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Does the Department have a position as to the 

request for the expanded storage to this date? Have you people looked at that 

question, number one? And if you have are you convinced it is a safe system? 

MR.PICCO: We have looked at it. The time limit, as far as I know, hasn't 

passed for us to submit a report. And, I haven't seen a report. I know that our 

engineers are taking a look at it but I have not seen a report. I'll submit it to 

the Committee as soon as it is ready. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Fine. We will be meeting on this subject a couple 

more times, I'm sure. Thank you very much. It was very helpful. Next is Francis 

Delaney, Chief Regulatory Officer of the BPU. So we can have people getting in line 

and ready to roll, following Mr. Delaney will be Bill Saller of PSE&G 

F R A N c I s D E L A N E Y: Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, thank you 

for inviting the representative from the Board of Public Utilities to comment on 

this bill. Mr. Sheppa is an engineer on my right with the Board of Public Utilities 

and may be able to respond to some of your technical questions. Briefly, our 

position on A-3037 is that we are opposed to the enactment of the bill and our 
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opposition is based on a number of positions. You've already heard from the sponsor 

of the bill and from Mr. Picco that there are some relatively minor language changes 

which we can assist the Committee to make if that is their desire - to make the 

corrections that is. Basically, 0 & M expenses are not the inclusions in rate base. 

There are two legal questions which we think should cause the Committee some concern. 

Mr. Picco mentioned the first, that is a question raised recently by a decision in 

Southern District Court of California which questions the constitutionality of the 

statute similar to this one. Basically, the court found there·that the supremacy 

clause of the Constitution prohibited a state from enacting a law where the federal 

government has preempted the regulation of this particular issue. I would suggest 

that the Committee read that case. It is only about 10 or 15 pages long. I think 

you'd probably agree with me that that case raises substantial problems. 

The second legal issue which we think causes a problem as I interpret the 

intent of the bill,it does not prohibit the construction of a nuclear power plant. 

It would permit a nuclear power plant to go into operation. It would attempt to 

prohibit the inclusion of operating and maintenance costs associated with that 

plant to be included in the calculations that are finally used to arrive at retail 

rates for electric service. It seems to me that where a power plant has been 

dedicated to the public service, where the public is secure in service, if the 

utility owning that company is not permitted the opportunity to recover its reasonable 

0 & M expenses related to that service, that there would be a strong argument for 

a position that it could be a confiscation of the property. There is a long series 

of U.S.Supreme Court cases which says generally that the utility company has a 

right to a fair opportunity to recover its expenses associated with providing 

services to the public. It's not a guarantee, as some people have indicated, it 

is a fair opportunity. So, that is our second legal problem. 

Assuming that certification could be granted by the board to a plant, 

which is highly unlikely in the near future or even in perhaps the long-term future, 

the procedures which the board would be required to follow by securing the Legisla

ture's approval are extremely convoluted and complex and probably time consuming. 

Just consider that a rate case involving the major electric utilities takes approxi

mately a year to litigate, some of them take a lot longer. Assuming there could be 

certification - which I think everybody realizes that the art on the disposal of 

nuclear waste is not at all refined and is probably at least a decade away - that 

this certification procedure is rather burdensome, to say the least, and by my 

estimate can take anywhere from several months to a year to secure the Legislature's 

approval on something that the board has already certified after exhaustive litiga

tion. 

Our other point is generally that New Jersey needs power. I think wP can 

all agree on that. There is a question of where we are going to get the power. 

Basically, there are relatively few choices. You can get electric generation from 

oil, coal, nuclear, or gas. Practically, the federal government and/or supply 

problems, and/or price problems have knocked out natural gas as an alternative for 

generating electricity. OPEC has dampened our enthusiasm for using oil as a genera

ting fuel although we do use it and pass those costs on to the consumers. Coal is 

an alternative and has serious problems. Nuclear is an alternative and has serious 

problems. I might add if I haven't already stated it that the board recognizes that 

this is a problem, that is, the disposal of the waste from nuclear generating 

facilities. We just don't think that this is the appropriate vehicle to meet the 

problem and we don't think that this type of a bill would be legal when matched up 

8 

• 



' 

against the federal jurisdiction. 

There are four nuclear power plants under construction in New Jersey. 

One of them, I believe it's Salem II, will come on line in the latter part of this 

year. Forked River was scheduled for 1983. As you are aware from the press, 

construction on that site has been suspended because of financial p~oblems that 

Jersey Central Power and Light is currently facing. There are two other plants 

scheduled, one for 1984 and one for 1986. I believe they are Public Service's 

plants. Hope Creek I and II are those scheduled for 1984 and 1986. If this bill 

were to pass in the next 3 or 4 months, it would affect Salem II and if it were to 

pass in the coming years would affect, of course, the other plants. Most of the 

base load generating facilities which are presently under construction - and you are 

talking almost ten years into the future for the construction of these plants and 

probably 4 to 6 years for non-nuclear plants - most of the base load construction 

through 1986 isforecastedto be nuclear power plants. They are being constructed 

because there is a perceived need for the power. I would think that if there is an 

intent on the part of the Legislature to prohibit, and obviously the statement of 

the bill indicates that is the intent, to prohibit the construction of nuclear 

power plants that the reasoning involved in making that decision would have to in

volve a consideration of what are the alternatives. As I think you are all pretty 

aware, the alternatives are mighty slim. My rough estimates on the amount of 

electricity currently generated by nuclear power in the state of New Jersey -

perhaps later speakers can refine these figures - are approximately 30%-40% of the 

electricity generated in New Jersey comes from nuclear power. I think in 1978, I 

can give the figures, that Public Service, for instance, approximately 25% of their 

power was generated by nuclear power. As a general figure, Jersey Central Power 

and Light generated in 1978 approximately 50% of their power. So, let there be no 

mistake, nuclear is here, nuclear is forecasted to be here. And if it is not going 

to be here it is going to have to be replaced by something else. I heard Assemblyman 

DiFrancesco categorize the federal position and I'm not here to defend the federal 

government. My recent readings involving this issue indicate that the federal 

government recognizes that there is a problem and, from my readings, have spent 

hundreds of thousands of dollars investigating the problem. They are a long way 

from arriving at a definitive answer. The recent federal report which the Assembly

man mentioned forecasts that this problem will not be solved before the late 1980's, 

perhaps 1990's. Nineteen ninety two is one date which that report mentions. That 

about finishes my comments. We'll try to answer any questions you might have. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: Mr. Delaney, Chairman Stewart has asked this 

question of other witnesses and I'd like to ask the same question because nobody 

seems to have a definitive answer on it. In the event that there is a similar 

accident in one of our nuclear plants in New Jersey, what is your opinion as to what 

effect 17 years of spent fuel would have on such a disaster accident? 

MR. DELANEY: I'm an attorney and have a sense of policy. I'm not an 

expert and anything I would say I don't think would add to the substance of what 

you are looking for. I'm sure there may be experts who will testify. They might 

be able to help you out. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: O.K. In your testimony obviously you are op

posed to this legislation. But you also indicate that there are some minor language 

changes that you would be willing to work with the Committee on. Could you elaborate 

on what you are talking about there? 
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MR. DELANEY: Sure. On page 2 of the bill, down around line 58, references 

rate base Basically, it is saying, the Board shall not permit any utility with-

in its jurisdiction to incorporate 0 & M costs into its rate base - I paraphrased 

that. Operating and maintenance costs are not included in rate base. Rate base is 

a term which attempts to identify that physical plant or capital investment. 0 & 

M costs are operating expenses. Capital investment would be the cost of the physical 

plant minus depreciation. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: So what you are saying is that this language is 

technically wrong or that utility companies do not include operation and maintenance 

in their request for 

MR. DELANEY: Excuse me. They certainly do include 0 & M costs in their 

requests for rate cases. And the board after examination certainly does include 

reasonable 0 & M costs in the formula used to arrive at the final determination of 

what amount of rate relief is necessary. Reasonable 0 & M costs are reflected in 

the customers' rates. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: So it's a matter of semantics. You were talking 

about a technical ---

MR. DELANEY: Yes. Yes. This can be corrected. 0 & M costs of any genera

ting facility are included ---

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: Then you would support the language of the bill 

if it were changed to reflect technical accuracy? 

MR. DELANEY: We wouldn't support it but if the bill were going to be 

enacted we'd like to see it reflect something that, at least to our minds, makes 

sense. To a lot of people who aren't involved, it doesn't make sense in the first 

place. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: O.K. Any other? 

MR. DELANEY: There is a reference on the second page to the rate base, 

page 3, line 72, I think. "The board may proceed to approve a rate base change •.• " 

is a minor problem. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: Mr. Delaney, you also indicate in your testimony 

that perhaps this bill would be unconstitutional, that there are all sorts of legal 

questions this bill raises. What do you think would happen if this bill were en

acted into law? What would the utility companies do? 

MR. DELANEY: I don't know. I don't know what they would do. I would 

imagine they would be forced particularly in the near future, if the bill were 

enacted within the next few months where it would take effect on a plant which is 

supposed to come on line in late 1979 and they were about to be precluded from the 

opportunity of recovering what they consider to be - I think the law considers to 

be - reasonable operating and maintenance cost, they would probably go to court. 

Incidentally, the California case is interesting. The first thing the court de

cided was how do they get jurisdiction? They had to find a controversy. They 

found the controversy based on the fact that an engineer who was employed by the 

utility was fired because the utility decided not to build a plant. They didn't 

need a nuclear engineer. He was one of the litigants, one of the plaintiffs in the 

case. There were also a number of trade groups, construction unions, a number of 

foundations that brought the suit. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: Mr. Delaney, you indicated in your testimony 

that we, as a Legislature, should consider the alternatives if we're going to turn 

our backs now on nuclear power. What are the.alternatives? There is a need 

for energy in the State of New Jersey. But, I don't think this argument setstoo well 
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with the people right now. People are frightened. People are concerned about what 

happened at Three Mile Island. And I think the Legislature has a responsibility to 

think very seriously about the safety of the people in New Jersey. Certainly, we 

have to be concerned about future energy supplies in our State but I can't buy that 

argument right now that we must acct>pt the idea of nuclear energy just because thE're 

are pGrhaps no other alternatives. Don't you think this legislation as much as any

Lh-i ng perhaps is trying to force the federal government, the utility companic~s, or 

even the Legislature itself to come up with some answers about the storage of fuel? 

The Chairman has pointed out that under the CAFRA permit they were talking about 

four years storage and now we're talking about 17 years storage. When are we going 

to get some answers? When are we going to be able to assure the people of the safety 

factors in this whole nuclear issue? 

MR. DELANEY: Well, I understand completely what you are saying. I'm sure 

you are aware that this is a relatively - I don't want to say a small issue - this 

is only part of the total nuclear issue. There are so many other issues involved. 

I'm not tryiny to downgrade this issue. Certainly the Legislature has ~n obligation 

to look into this issue and to examine various problems within this particular issue. 

There is no short and sweet answer to this nuclPar waste problem. The report which 

Mr. Picco referred to says there is not going to be an answer until the late 1980's 

or 1992. Apparently the federal government is prepared to pour hundreds of millions 

of dollars into the solution. It's not going to be an easy solution. There are no 

guarantees. It's not going to be a cheap solution. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: One thing I think we should disagree on and that's 

your statement as to the intent of the bill. I think the sponsor made it clear, and 

I think the statement makes it clear, that the intent of the bill is not to impose 

a nuclear moratorium. The intent of the bill is to do as Assemblywoman McConnell 

just stated, to force the federal government to address itself to what is a growing 

problem in this State. With that out of the way, does it bother you or the DPU 

that we will haw~ 6 sites in the State all of which will probably, unless something 

is done, be permanently storing spent fuel on site for a long period of time? 

MR. DELANEY: Apparently, my understanding is that the ut.i li ties have 

requested an extension, particularly Jersey Central, P.S., of the amount of spent 

fuel that can be kept at the generating facilities and also the length of time. 

The request is not one of a permanent nature. To my understanding, the intent of 

the federal government is that permanent disposal cannot take place at these genera

ting sites. It is going to take place either in various deep mines in various parts 

of the country and parts of the world- that's part nf the experimental studies they 

are making right now - or somehow reprocessing it which has apparently taken a back 

seat to the investigation of placirtg t.his waste in deep mines. We're concerned 

about it. We would prefer that somebody else keep the fuel. I'm sure that somebody 

else would prefer that we keep the waste fuel. I think that is a problem that no

body wants and that's why the federal government is the one who has the jurisdiction 

to decide on how the fuel should be permanently located. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: I guess the term "permanently" is in the eyes of the 

beholder. But, when you are talking about a 40 year life span for a facility, which 

is a figure kicked around, I don't know what that is supposed to mean. Will you 

lock it up in forty years, barricade the doors? I don't know what happens after 40 

years. But, 17 years is a long time when you're talking about a 40 year life. That 

is a pretty long time, I think. And I can hear somebody sitting there with the 
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exact same arguments that you are giving us 17 yea.t·s from now. Gee, we can't. mak£' 

them close because they have an investment. And we can't make them close because 

what are we going to do for power for the State? So, therefore, it has to stay hf'n' 

another 15, 20, 17 years. And all of a sudden even though the fc>deral government 

tells us we can't be a permanent site - we're not going to have it for 1,000 years -

it keeps going. You've done a good job of ·t·"'lling us why we can't do what Assembly

man DiFrancesco is trying to do. Do you have any positive suggestions as to how we 

can, not ban nuclear facilities, but get the federal government off dead center on 

this issue of storing the waste? Do you have any suggestions for how you would 

do it? 

MR. DELANEY: I don't. I think the federal government r-.cognizes that a 

problem exists. It's not a question of lack of recognition that a problem ex.ists. 

Th~ question is how to solve the problem. It's basically a technical problem and a 

congressional delegation is not going to solve a technical problem. They have a 

number of task forces. Apparently, President Carter is very much aware and has 

placed tremendous emphasis on this problem. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: But haven't these dates changed·already, several 

times? Wasn't it supposed to be solved in the late '70's and early '80's? Now 

we're talking about the '90's.· 

MR. DELANEY: My recollection is the dates have changed. Within the last 

5 years or so the facts have changed. As I recall, reprocessing 4or 5 years ago 

was still a viable alternative. There were a number of private entities, I think 

General Electric had a reprocessing plant, the federal government had another 

reprocessing plant, but,for one reason or another they didn't work. And now they 

appear to be backing off the reprocessing response and moving towards a burying 

process - burying in various types of geologic formations, various kinds of canisters 

and that appears to be the avenue they are pursuing right now. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BASSANO: The only comment I have is that, in your opinion, 

don't you feel that by the federal government's going to this 17 year period instead 

of the 3 or 4 year period. that what is going to happen is that they are just going 

to delay any decision? 

MR. DELANEY: I don't think so. I think if they find a solution which in 

their minds is a permanent method of disposing of this waste that the waste that is 

being stored in various generating plants around the country would be moved into 

whatever depository is decided to be safe and permanent and practical. I think we 

should perhaps keep in mind- I'm not sure how many generating plants there are in 

the country, 60 or 70 - apparently nobody in the country, "nobody"being no utility 

in the country, is moving the waste out of the generating site into a permanent 

facility because it just doesn't exist. And I don't think it exists anywhere in the 

world, at least not to meet our standards and specifications - ours being the United 

States government. Mr. Picco mentioned what the Russians have done. Apparently, in 

the fifties they just buried this debris and apparently it was inadequate• We're 

trying to find something that is adequate. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: You have no suggestion as to how we might bring this 

thing to a head? 

MR. DELANEY: I think it is a technical problem. I think the State or the 

Legislature can convey to the various groups and the one that is an inter-agency 

review group which I understand is made up of representatives of the Department of 

Energy 
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ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Let me ask you one more legal question, I guess. 

The question of CAPRA came up earlier. Are we preempted as far as our CAPRA rules 

and regulations are concerned? Are we wasting our time having a CAPRA review? 

MR. DELANEY: I'm really not sufficiently familiar with CAPRA to give you 

any advice in that area. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: We're talking about preemption. Under our CAPRA law 

we had to give a permit for Salem II. It was based on certain guidelines for the 

storage which are now being changed. If your preemption argument holds water, it 

preempts everything, our CAPRA law included. Then we are wasting our time with 

CAPRA law as far as nuclear facilities are concerned. Is that an accurate con

clusion? 

MR. DELANEY: I'm not sure. I couldn't give you any advice on that. I'm 

not sure what CAPRA is based upon. I think it is based upon, in one sense, some 

authority granted to the State from the federal government. I don't think that the 

California decision is based upon a CAFRA-type statute. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: You may be giving us another way to approach the 

problem. 

MR. DELANEY: Possibly. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: By the way, I don't mean to useinitials. The CAPRA 

zono is the coastal zone around the State of New Jersey for those who aren't familiar 

with it - the Coastal Area Facilities Review Act. That's what we're talking about. 

MR. DELANEY: In my opinion, I'm not trying to provide support for the bill, 

but I think the California case is mandatory reading to get a flavor of what the 

federal law says and how the courts are interpreting the federal law and how they 

perceive what the states are attempting to do. And I think the judicial perception 

of the various state actions will have a lot to do with it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Isn't there a Maine statute also? 

MR. DELANEY: There is a Maine statute. I happen to have it here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Has that been ruled ---

MR. DELANEY: No, not to our knowledge. We just checked the end of last 

week. Nobody has challenged it - challenged the statute. Basically that statute 

reads the comn1ission - I assume it is a commission similar to the Board of Public 

Utilities -"shall not certify any nuclear power plant until the following condition 

is met. That condition is, the commission finds that the United States government 

through its authorized agency has identified and approved a demonstrable technology 

or means for the disposal of high level nuclear waste." Now, according to their 

statute, as I read it, a nuclear power plant cannot be certified for operation 

pursuant to the statute. But, apparently there has not been a challenge. And I 

don't know why there hasn't been a challenge. It could be there is no nuclear 

power plant about to be constructed up in Maine. I see the Legislative Aide is 

shaking his head. That's probably it, there is no controversy. They are passing 

a law which is not impacting upon any individual or any corporation or any group. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BASSANO: In your opinion, don't you think this legislation 

would let the federal government know in no uncertain terms that we want them to 

stop procrastinating on this issue and come up with a solution to the problem in 

light of the fact that it has existed since the Kennedy administration - its been 

passed from one administration to the next with no decisions being made? 

MR. DELANEY: I think that if the bill were enacted, the group that it is 

going to affect the most or bring the most response from probably are the utilities 
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who construct it and the investors who have provided the utilities with the money. 

The feder.al government is aware of the problem, at least to my mind. Because of the 

various reports and the amount of money being expended by the federal government, 

they are aware of what is going on. They are aware of concern probably of the statP-s. 

There is certainly no harm in a legislative resolution being sent to the President, 

to the federal Department of Energy bringing that home. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BASSANO: The difference between legislation and a resolution 

is that a resolution is an act of futility. This is a lot more concrete right here. 

That's number one. Number two is the fact that we're talking now about 17 years 

on-site storage indicating to me that the federal government is again going to pro

crastinate in the area. They're not going to make a decision. It's going to be 

passed along further and further. 

MR. DELANEY: I think the federal government, basically, is supporting th0 

use of nuclear power for electric generation. This problem is a thorn in the side 

of anyone who is in favor of nuclear power. If it could be solved, it would knock 

out one of the major issues that the anti-nuclear groups are concerned with. If 

it could be solved quickly, it would be solved quickly. Apparently, it cannot. 

A law that would perhaps cause serious concern to major utilities, not only in the 

State but perhaps some of the biggest utilities in the country, would gain a lot of 

press and probably incite a law suit and would bring the issue to the attention of 

the federal government. And if I'm right on the legal issue that the supremacy 

clause of the Constitution prohibits this type of a statute where will we be at the 

end? We'll just have the statute knocked out and a lot of good money spent for no 

good reason. If you are sure in the beginning that it's unconstitutional, it seems 

a little bit of a futile act other than a symbolic act to pass the law. If you are 

convinced, on the other hand, that the law is constitutional, that you can win a 

suit or that no suit will be filed, I guess if it is the will of the Legislature, 

they can enact the law. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: Mr. Delaney, you pointed out that the federal 

government certainly is aware of the problem. And is spending enormous amounts of 

money studying the problem in order to come up with some kind of solution. It's 

been a number of years. Do you get the feeling that they may never find a solution? 

That there may not be a safe viable solution to the storage of nuclear waste? 

That concerns me a little bit. We talk in terms of profit, economics, and energy 

needs, you know, I think it is far better to stop at this point and say, "What is 

the solution?" If there is no solution, maybe we'd better stop now. 

MR. DELANEY: I don't think the federal government, or the President of 

the United States, or Mr. Schlesinger, or any of the utilities here are going to 

guarantee anybody. They don't guarantee anything. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: I understand that, and I'm not putting the onus 

on you or the utility companies. But I'm talking about the federal government. The 

matter seems to be in their hands and yet they've been studying it, spending a lot 

of money trying to come up with answers. And I don't see any answers. I think 

New Jersey and other states have to say to the federal government, in some way, 

whether it is by legislation or its by resolution or whatever, but in the strongest 

way possible, we want some answers before we can continue down that road of unknown 

facts. 

MR. DELANEY: I think there are potential solutions. They are examining 

them. Those potential solutions are being investigated. But they are not certain 
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at this point whether they are the perfect or t.he most reasonabh~ solution. I 

don't think that anybody can guarantee today that in 3 years or 5 years ot· 8 yt)ars 

that there is a solution. They expect th(>rc is goinq t.o bP. a solution. assum0 

the reason the federal government permits the plants to operate is that Lhey have 

a number of good alternatives. They are trying to seek the best alternative. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: We will be having the Department of Energy and the 

NRC people to testify before us probably some time in the next couple of weeks. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: On this issue? 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: We'll be able to pursue that issue with those folks 

at that time. I think Assemblyman Barry has a question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BARRY: I would just like to understand the extent of the 

storage problem in New Jersey. We have two reactors in operation and four under 

construction. To your knowledge, are there other facilities on the drawing board 

at this time or are we talking about six reactors and that's it for the State? 

MR. DELANEY: We're talking about --- Well, I gave you a list of dates. 

One is supposed to come on line in 1979, the latter part of this year. You have 

Salem II. 1983 was the scheduled service date for Forked River but construction has 

been suspended. 1984 is Hope Creek I and 1986 is Hope Creek II. Now, to my knowledge 

at this time, there is nothing else on the drawing board. But, you can be sure, and 

that's almost a decade into the future, there is a demand forecasting 10 or 15 years 

into the future as to how much electricity is going to be needed at that time to meet 

the demands of the people in New Jersey, the industry of New Jersey. Although there 

may not be any specific projects being considered or under construction at this time, 

something is going to have to be out there in the 1990's and the year 2000 to provide 

service. We've got one of the oldest nuclear power plants in the country which is 

Oyster Creek. It has been on line since 1968. and has a life of 25 to 35 years. 

So, that will be going off line in 1968 plus 35. Something else is going to have to 

be coming down the line to pick up lost generating capacity. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: On that question, I don't know if you have these 

figures or not, do you know what the storage time is at those sites? For instance, 

at Oyster Creek what is the capacity there for storage? What does their permit 

say they can store there? 

MR. DELANEY: I don't have those figures. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Do you know figures for any others, Hope Creek? 

MR. DELANEY: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: O.K. Norman Miller, ou~ Staff Aide has a technical 

question, I believe, on some of the amendments you proposed. 

AIDE MILLER: I want to go back for just a second to the question of the use 

of the words'rate bas~' you introduced at the outset of your testimony. What is 

required to make the bill technically sufficient in respect to this - anything more 

sophisticated than a change of the phrase "rate base" to "rate structure" or "rate 

schedule" or simply "rate"? 

MR. DELANEY: You'd have to switch some words around but basically from 

what I understand the intent of the bill is to prohibit 0 & M expenses related to 

these specific sites from being included in a calculation that arrives at a final 

revenue requirement which is obviously old. Old expenses of the company whether 

they are capital or operating expenses, cost of securities, etc., are ultimately 

passed on to the consumer. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Thank you. The next witness is Bill Saller, Office 

of Government Affairs, General Manager of PSE&G, followed by William J. Steigelmann, 
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Chairman of South Jersey Chamber of Commerce Energy Committee, State Advisory 

Council. 

W I L L I A M S A L L E R: Thank you sir. Good morning. My name is Bill Saller 

and I'm General Manager of Governmental Affairs for Public Service Electric and Gas 

Company. Public Service thanks you for the opportunity to present its views on 

A-3037 as introduced by Assemblyman DiFrancesco. A-3037 would amend that section 

of the New LTersey statutes which provide for the establishment of utility rates and 

would prohibit the Board of Public Utilities from allowing any costs incurred from the 

maintenance and operation of a nuclear fission thermal plant from being included in 

the rate base unless facilities for the reprocessing of spent fuel and permanent 

storage sites for radioactive wastes are available. According to the statement 

accompanying the bill, "The purpose of this bill is to prevent more nuclear power 

plants from becoming operable in New Jersey before the question of the disposal of 

spent fuel rods and permanent nuclear waste is settled." That's the first sentence 

of the statement. 

Public Service fully supports any constructive action which would attempt 

to expedite the resolution of the spent fuel issue by the federal government; since 

the indefinite deferral of a decision on the reprocessing and subsequent recycling 

of spent fuel places an unreasonable burden on the nuclear power industry and the 

electric consumers in New Jersey. However, Public Service contends that a ban on 

further nuclear operations in New Jersey until reprocessing facilities are available 

would not expedite the solution at the federal level. 

Spent nuclear fuel from commercial reactors had previously been reprocessed 

in the United States and is currently being reprocessed in several foreign countries. 

For example, Japan ships its spent fuel to England for recovery and recycling. 

Reprocessing and recycling would permit the valuable remaining nuclear fuel 

to be extracted from the spent fuel for use in reactors. This would lessen by one 

fourth the demand for new uranium for fission reactors, thereby easing the pressures 

on the market place. Reprocessing is technically feasible and economically advanta

geous; however, it is only an option and not a requirement for the nuclear fuel cycle 

in electric generating stations. 

Subsection 1 of section e of A-3037 further confuses the roles that re

processing and permanent repositories play in a resolution of the spent fuel issue. 

This section prescribing one of the conditions to be met by the BPU provides that, 

"The Board finds that the United States, through its authorized agency has approved 

a technology for the construction and operation of nuclear fuel rod reprocessing 

plants and permanent, radioactive waste sites and that facilities with adequate 

capacities to reprocess nuclear fuel rods and store the permanent, radioactive 

wastes generated from a power plant ••• " This seems to imply that both reprocessing 

facilities and permanent repository sites are necessary for a resolution of the 

spent fuel issue which is not the case. 

The federal government which has indefinitely deferred the reprocessing of 

spent fuel, fully accepts and recognizes that permanent repositories are technically 

feasible and accepts the responsibility for the operation of these sites. In a major 

policy statement on October 18, 1977, the federal Department of Energy announced that 

"the Federal Government is proposing to accept and take title to used, or spent nuclear 

reactor fuel from utilities on payment of a one-time storage fee." This was re

iterated in the final version of the inter-agency review group's report on nuclear 

waste management issued just last month in March 1979. 
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Congressional committees have been conducting hearings on the general 

topic of spent fuel storage. Furthermore, specific legislation which would provide 

the necessary mechanisms to implement the federal policy have been introduced in 

both Houses of Congress and will be the subject of careful consideration. The 

federal government which has the jurisdiction over nuclear spent fuel storage has 

taken appropriate actions to resolve the issue and it is highly unlikely that a 

moratorium on additional nuclear operations in New Jersey would be constitutional. 

Public Service contends that the proposed legislation is unconstitutional 

on the basis of the Doctrine of Federal Preemption since the states have definitely 

been preempted from regulating matters concerned with radiological health and safety 

involving the construction or operation of nuclear power plants. Two recent federal 

decisions support this position. A memorandum of law on these cases is attached to 

my comments • 

In addition to any consideration of the constitutionality of the proposed 

legislation, Public Service contends that the effects of this legislation on the 

electric consumers and the State must also be examined. New Jersey utilities likP. 

most northeastern utilities depend upon nuclear fuel to meet their customers' 

energy requirements. If additional nuclear generation is prohibited, utilities 

will be forced to opt for electric generation ppwered by more costly fossil fuels. 

We should recall that during the past several winters, Public Service has relied 

heavily on nuclear power - in fact over 30% at times - first because of the Arab 

oil embargo then because of the natural gas shortage, and finally because of the 

coal strike. Any increase in the cost of fuel or energy is paid by the customers 

and this would most certainly have an adverse effect on the economy of our State. 

Thank you for the opportunity to present our comments. I have attached 

to my comments two pages concerning Federal Court decisions - recent decisions -

involving legislation in other states that were similar to this. And if I may, 

rather than reading the whole thing, just give some excerpts from the first page 

of this memo. 

On January 10, 1979, the Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals in a case in

volving the National Resources Defense Council vs. the Nuclear Regulatory Commis

sion stated that the Commission is required neither to conduct a rulemaking 

proceeding requested by a petitioner nor to determine that high-level radioactive 

wastes can be permanently disposed of safely prior to issuing nuclear power reactor 

operating licenses. 
Again, in connection with federal preemption I would like to quote from 

the California case. The court stated, "Section 2021 paragraph c provides that 

the NRC shall retain authority and responsibility with respect to the regulation 

of the construction and operation of nuclear power plants and with respect to the 

regulation of nuclear waste disposal. In the exercise of its discretion, the NRC 

has decided not to require the existence of a technology for permanently disposing 

of nuclear waste as a condition precedent for the construction and operation of 

nuclear reactors." Later on they also stated that the court finds " ••• the question 

of whether nuclear power plants may be constructed and operated in the absence of 

a demonstrated technology for the permanent disposal of nuclear waste is exclusively 

reserved to the NRC by section 2021 (c) and that state regulation on this subject 

is displaced." There are other comments on there but I think you can read them. 

I'd also like to comment, Mr. Chairman, you indicated there have been many questions 

concerning what the federal government is doing or is not doing. And in October 1977, 

the federal Department of Energy held a number of meetings in connection with this 
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matter and I would strongly suggest you have -and I believe you are planning to

someone from the federal Department of Energy here since it is their responsibility 

to respond to questions concerning what is happening at the federal level in con

nection with the plans for the storage, temporary and permanent, of spent fuel. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: You might be interested to know that at a meeting 

of the National Council of State Legislators there were several representatives from 

states who have nuclear facilities. They had John O'Leary the Deputy Assistant. 

In response to my question about what are we doing about the storage of nuclear 

wastes, his only response was, "That's a 10¢ issue which we can solve very easily." 

And that was the extent of his discussion with the National Council of State Legis

lators on how they're going to solve that problem. I hope we get a better answer 

than that when they come to see us. Some of the questions we were asking earlier 

to get down to where everyone knows what we are talking about in New Jersey, do you 

have the figures, or does anyone with you have the figures, as to what is the dura

tion of storage in New Jersey now at various sites? 

MR. SALLER: I believe both at Salem I and II and Hope Creek I and II 

the storage capacity there is as originally was approved for approximately 4 to 

5 years of spent fuel. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: I realize that the other facilities are not your 

facilities, but do you know if the same applies there? 

MR. SALLER: No, I don't know anything about the storage capacity at 

Oyster Creek or Forked River. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: So, in each case someone has asked for or will be 

asking for an extension from 4 years to 17 years? 

MRu SALLER: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: I know the request has been made for Salem II so 

can I assume it has been made for Salem I? 

MR. SALLER: It has been made for Salem I and II, I believe but not for 

Hope Creek I and II. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: On the question that comes up reading through the 

CAFRA permit,what exactly are we talking about? What are we storing? What are we 

going to be storing? can one of your people with you enlighten us as to what they 

were talking about when they were talking about storing of uranium and plutonium 

oxide fuel rods? 

MRo SALLER: We discussed that briefly before. Salem was grandfathered 

in under the CAFRA and Hope Creek was approved under CAFRA. The permits that were 

obtained under CAFRA were for construction only. Now, when we applied for additional 

spent fuel capacity, whether this is considered as new construction or just ---

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Well, my first question is what in the world are we 

talking about? Is that the type of fuel rod that you will be storing - the uranium 

and plutonium oxide fuel rods? Is that what you are storing at Hope Creek? 

MR. SALLER: I'll defer that question to our fuel engineer. This is 

Louis Sonz who is a Nuclear Fuel Engineer with Public Service Electric and Gas 

Company. 

L 0 u I S A. S 0 N z: In the storage issue, you are storing spent nuclear 

fuel. Nuclear fuel starts as just a uranium fuel under the present designs but 

during radiation plutonium is created. So, when you discuss spent fuel you are 

talking about uranium and plutonium because plutonium is in service in every 

operating reactor. It is created during the radiation. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: first qualifying by saying I don't have the slightest 

idea what we're talking about when we're talking about that subject, other than the 

fact that in the CAFRA permit it does get into specifics on the storage of uranium 

and plutonium oxide fuel rods. In fact, it says that they will not be permitted at 

that site unless a waver is obtained later. Now I guess my next question is, to your 

knowledge, has a waver ever been obtained later? 

MR. SONZ: We have our Assistant General Solicitor here who is familiar· 

with what the requirements were in the CAFRA permit. 

RICHARD FRYLING, JR.: As I understand the terms in the permit, 

they are talking about using plutonium recycled fuel and the CAFRA permit is an 

attempt to prohibit us without going back to amendment of the CAFRA permit. The 

fuel that we are planning to use is the regular uranium fuel not the plutonium re

cycled fuel. In other words, the plan at the time we were going through the hear

ings was we were hoping that the recycle option would be available. It is not yet 

available so we would not be using it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: So this definition is not the definition that fits 

what you are going to be storing? 

MR. FRYLING: That's correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Several members of the Committee have toured your 

site in Salem and have seen the tank, I guess for the lack of a better word, the 

storage area. Some members may not have had the benefit of that and also maybe some 

people here would like to know. Could you give us a brief description of how you 

intend to store on site and what your change from 4 to 17 years means - your re

racking and all that sort of thing ? 

MR. SALLER: If you can visualize a large swimming pool approximately 

40 by 60 feet top view and about 30 to 40 feet deep, this is filled with water. 

This is the size of the spent fuel pool and this would handle approximately one and 

one third of the total fuel that's in the reactor. Since about one third is re

placed every year, it's four thirds or it's enough for four fuel changes since we 

replace about one third a year. In our application to store more fuel, we are not 

asking to enlarge the size of that spent fuel pool - that 40 by 60 or so I mentioned. 

What we are asking for is to provide for changing the racking of the fuel rods that 

are stored so that we would be able to store more spent fuel rods in the same pool. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: Excuse me. Do these rods go in the pool? 

MR. SALLER: Yes they do. They are held in racks and by rebuilding the 

racks ·and coming up with new racks, and rearranging racks, we would be able to in

clude more spent fuel rods in the spent fuel pool. This would take us through a 

period of about 17 years. A time period of 17 years has been mentioned a number of 

times as the period of time that the government is going to come up with an answer. 

I think that has worked its way in because it is 17 years that we will have sufficient 

capacity for our spent fuel at the reactor site if our application is approved by 

the NRC for what we want to do there. The federal government will probably come up 

with something in 8, 10, 12 years. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BARRY: on the alternatives here, the alternatives of permanent 

storage and reprocessing, I, frankly, don't find the storage a particularly attrac

tive alternative. You mention that currently we do have reprocessing going on -

you mentioned England in particular. What is the state of the art of reprocessing 

of nuclear waste? 

MR. SALLER: I think perhaps Lou Sonz may comment better on that than I. 
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MR. SONZ: I'm afraid I can't give you a very detailed technical explana-

tion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BARRY: I wouldn't understand it anyway. 

MR. SONZ: The French and the English and the Japanese to a lesser extent 

and the Germans are working on the methodology. When we talk about reprocessing, 

we're talking about recovering materials from the spent fuel and reusing it. When 

we're talking about waste disposal we're discussing either taking the spent fuel and 

disposing of it directly or after reprocessing taking the elements that are not to 

be recycled and disposing of them. The exact methodology of the English and French, 

German and Japanese I'm not too sure ofo I know the wastes are combined in the 

matrix and extremely stable, essentially it is a rock formation, and then that is 

encapsulated and the 

ASSEMBLYMAN BARRY: I take it we're not talking about a 100% reclamation. 

We're going to end up with some endproduct that must be disposed of? 

MR. SONZ: There must be some portions that must be disposed of because 

they have no value. 

ASSEMBLYMAN BARRY: But what is preventing us from at least engaging in 

some sort of reprocessing at this time? 

MR. SONZ: That's the federal administration's position that in the course 

of reprocessing you will tend to accumulate quantities of plutonium that they are 

afraid will be considered attractive for divergents. So they don't want to accumu

late them so they don't want to reprocess. 

MR. SALLER: This was President Carter's non-proliferation policy. If 

you recall, a few years ago, he shut down a few of the reprocessing plants just 

because in the reprocessing of the spent fuel you generate plutonium which can be 

used in bombs. Anything that made plutonium he was concerned about. He was against 

foreign countries getting this technology or others getting their hands on the 

plutonium. That's where the political decision was made to not have reprocessing. 

But, other countries have done it for military programs. It is being done now by 

the military. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Back to the CAFRA permits again. I just want to be 
sure I have that first issue finally solved. I'll read you the sentence out of it 

and you can tell me we aren't talking about this type. It says, "It is also clear 

as PSE&G has pointed out in comments to the DEP that fuel rods containing a mixture 

of uranium and plutonium oxides could be used to fuel Hope Creek." Then it goes on 

to say that that is only a possibility. Now your answer was that the final decision 

was that type was not used. Is that right? 

MRo SONZ: No, it is not used. 

MR. FRYLING: That is the recycled fuel which we are not allowed to use 

at this point under NRC regulations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: O.K. Fine. Good. As far as the CAFRA issue of 

storage the way you understand it, isn't your CAFRA permit based on the fact that 

you would only have temporary storage and at that time your NRC permit was for 

four years? 

MR. SALLER: All our permits are ba~ed on temporary storage. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Has there been a move to go back to CAFRA for 

another permit now? 

MR. SALLER: I'll defer that to Mr. Fryling. 
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MR. FRYLING: I have not looked at the permit or the statute with a view 

of going back to DEP for an amendment of the CAPRA permit. My offhand reaction is 

that the amendment of the NRC operating license to provide for the condensed storage 

of the fuel rods would not be a change that would be subject to CAPRA because it is 
'i• 

not a new construction. And, therefore, CAPRA would not apply. However, that is 

just an off-the-top-of-my-head type of thing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Just from reading over this thing, obviously, it is 

not new construction but it is one of the conditions of your original pe~it and 

obviously it is being changed now. I guess we'll have to touch on that subject 

later. I'm sure you will be doing some research on that subject. One other thing 

that is mentioned in your CAPRA permit is the handling of the solid waste on the 

site - the used equipment. Let me see if I can get the exact definition of what 

they are talking about - bulky items such as, air filters, miscellaneous paper, rags, 

liquid from your waste processing system. How is that handled now? Is that stored 

on the site? Is that taken out somewhere? I'm talking about stuff that is contami

nated now. 

MR. FRYLING: That basically is stored on site • Some of it is worked on. 

When there is an adequate amount there it is just taken off site at this point. 

This is low-level waste. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Where is it taken? 

MR. FRYLING: Right now it is going down to Barnwell, South Carolina. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: They mention that there is waste taken out in 55 

gallon drums. Is that the same type of stuff we are talking about? 

MR. FRYLING: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: How long is it kept? Is it kept just long enough to 

get a large supply to make it worthwhile to move it? 

MR. FRYLING: Yes. That's it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Where is it kept? Is it protected somehow? 

MR. FRYLING: I'm not sure physically where it is kept. It is kept in 

seismic parts of the plant. It is guarded and so on, but exactly what part of the 

plant, I'm not sure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: It says that the NRC estimated that 230,000 pounds of 

radioactive solid waste would be shipped annually from, I guess, this site. Does 

that make sense to anybody? 

MR. FRYLING: I have no idea. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: O.K. Does anyone else have any questions? In our 

tour of your facilities it was obvious to most of the Committee that you have the 

same concern that we do about the federal government doing something about this 

issue. In 17 years if your permit is approved and they don't do something, you are 

going to be out of business. You are going to have nowhere to go except rerack again. 

Do you have any suggestions, positive suggestions? You say that this particular bill 

may be unconstitutional. What tools do we jointly have, maybe, to get the federal 

government to do something on this issue? 

MR. SALLER: I was happy to hear, Mr. Chairman, that you are planning to 

have someone here from the federal Department of Energy on this subject matter. 

Because, I know we have attended many meetings down in Washington on this, received 

literature as to what their plans are, and perhaps at that time we will find out more 

what their schedule is. Whoever does come down, if you can get someone from Dr. 

Schlesinger's office, I'm sure they can take your opinions and the opinions of the 

Committee back with them and express the concerns of the State and of the utilities. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: My final question will be the question we asked of 

everybody and that is - can you enlighten us a little bit on what added dangers the 

storage is going to have as it relates to the accident in Pennsylvania? The fact 

that we have 4 or 17 years of spent fuel on the site, how would that affect us in 

the event we have a similar situation? 

MR. SALLER: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to respond to that. As far as Three 

Mile Island goes and the incident there, like many others we are also awaiting a 

report from some official agency on that to find out what did happen. Our storage 

facilities for spent fuel at Salem are remote from the reactor itself and outside 

the containment building, as far as I know. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Were they storing at Three Mile Island? It is 

a new plant, maybe they didn't have anything stored. 

MR. SALLER: They just started up. I can't answer anything about Three 

Mile Island. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: The average New Jerseyan had no idea what they were 

talking about when they said there was going to be a meltdown. What were they 

talking about? Were they talking about an explosion that would have occurred and 

would have released any stored material? 

MR. SALLER: The storage area is remote from the reactor. I think this 

is something we would have to look at. I think there would be less likelihood of 

anything happening but to say offhand or to guarantee nothing would happen, I don't 

think we can make that statement at ·tnis time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: It certainly doesn't decrease the dangers. That's 

for sure. I don't want to get into a related subject which is the location. In 

doing some reading through this permit again, I was shocked and I'm a resident of 

that area, at the importance of that particular Delaware River channel. If we 

had had the same problem at Salem that they had in Pennsylvania, I was concerned 

about what it could have done to the economy of the whole Northeast because of 

someone blocking off that channel and saying, "We don't want any traffice on it," 

"We don't want this, we don't want that." But some of the statistics that come out 

are staggering about how busy the Philadelphia port is, for instance. And this 

facility and four facilities are going to be storing nuclear waste at the mouth of 

that channel. It bothers me that everyone keeps saying that we can't do anything 

about it and everyone agrees it is a problem and jointly we aren't doing something 

to force someone's hand. Are you convinced that it is going to be 1990 before 

we get any solution? 

MR. SALLER: We're hoping it is sooner. The original schedule that they 

set up when they had their first meetings in October '77 or had a number of meetings 

on this subject, they were shooting for the mid 1980's, if I recall, to start stor

ing spent fuel away from the reactor sites. That may have slipped a couple of 

years to the late 1980's, 1983. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: I don't want to keep rambling here with questions 

but we're getting into the public portion very shortly and some of these questions 

we have to know the answers to before we get to that. Could you touch briefly on 

the decommission problem you see. You had to also in your CAFRA permit talk about 

how you are going to decommission the plant. Now we're talking about the possi

bility of having to decommission a facility 17 years from now that has 17 years of 

spent fuel sitting there. How do we do it? 

MR. SONZ: I don't think decommissioning ever considered leaving the 

fuel on site. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: What are we going to do with it? 

MR. SONZ: The federal government repository. 

MR. SALLER: The fuel storage area is a temporary fuel storage area and 

that was the way it was designed. It is not for permanent storage. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Maybe I'm wrong but I remember the CAFRA meetings 

and we were constantly told that unless the storage issue could be solved, the 

CAFRA permit would not be issued. And it was contingent upon solving the storage 

problem. It's obvious we haven't solved it which makes me wonder whether the permit 

is a valid permit anymore. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: I just wanted to pursue a question that was 

raised a while ago. You said that you hoped the federal government will resolve 

this problem by mid 1980. I think you are speaking in terms of some remote place, 

a federal government repository which means that you will then take either 4 or 17 

years of spent fuel and transport it to this location. Do you think that that is 

going to be the eventual answer? 

MR. SALLER: . That's what they are planning to do. They are looking into 

various salt mines in the West, reprocessing plants, ways of transporting it and 

ways of storage. There is a lot of literature on it. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: Have they solved the problem of safety in 

transportation? 

MR. SALLER: Yes. The Department of Transportation has requirements in 

connection with the transportation of the radioactive material and it is rather 

rigid. I don't recall the statistics but the canisters that they are stored in, the 

trucks themselves have to withstand, I think, a 60 to 80 mile an hour impact and 

very high temperatures, submerged under water, just about everything, before it is 

approved. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: Does it bother you a little? Do you ever wake 

up in the middle of the night and think - what if the federal government doesn't 

solve this problem? What's going to happen to future generations? And we're stuck 

with this spent fuel here. 

MR. SALLER: I think ultimately they are going to have to face the issue 

and they are facing it and will come up with a site. This is where I think someone 

from the federal Department of Energy can respond to your questions much better than 

we can. We are just as anxious as anyone to solve this problem. Our plants were 

designed and built for just a short storage period. And then the spent fuel was to 

be transported to a government facility or other facility for either reprocessing or 

storage. That is what was planned. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Thank you very much. Next we have William 

Steigelmann, Chairman, South Jersey Chamber of Commerce, Energy Committee, State 

Advisory Council. 

w I L L I A M S T E I G E L M A N N: Good afternoon, gentlemen and lady of the 

Assembly. The South Jersey Chamber of Commerce is pleased to have this opportunity 

to present their comments on Assembly Bill 3037. Before I begin I'd like to preface 

my remarks by these few caveats. Number one, I personally prepared this testimony 

without much time for collaboration with any other members of the Energy Committee 

or the Chamber itself due to lack of time. But it is my understanding, sincerely, 

that this reflects everyone's views. Further, I want you to understand that I have 

no vested interest in the nuclear power industry any more than any other citizen of 

New Jersey has. I am a professional consulting energy engineer who does consulting 

work with nuclear power but 10 times more with solar energy. I am rather familiar 
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with the Salem, Hope Creek, Oyster Creek, and Three Mile Island plants. But, I am 

not professionally involved with them. 

The South Jersey Chamber of Commerce represents over 600 business and 

industrial companies in Burlington, Camden and Gloucester counties who employ 

approximately 70,000 people. My name is William Steigelmann, Chairman of our 

organization's Energy Committee. 

This bill concerns nuclear power, and indirectly seeks to inhibit the 

further use of this energy form in New Jersey. I would like to address - head on -

some of the basic realities of our current energy situation and nuclear power's 

necessary role. 

The South Jersey Chamber of Commerce has consistently held and proclaimed 

the belief that nuclear power is a vital and necessary ingredient in the energy 

supply system of both the United States and, most particularly, of New Jersey. At 

our Energy Committee meeting last Thursday, the committee unanimously reaffirmed 

this belief. The events at the Three Mile Island Nuclear Generating Station during 

the past dozen days have in no way diminished our support of this energy technology. 

In fact, it has strengthened it. The accident at TMI Unit 2 should not have happened. 

It might be said that every accident of any type is preventable and this aphorism 

is true in this instance also. The important points that should be recognized are: 

1. A serious accident did occur, but no one was physically harmed as a consequence. 

2. A partial meltdown of a reactor core occurred, but the important safety systems 

functioned properly. 3. A great deal of radioactivity was released within the plant, 

but radioactivity releases and radiation exposures to the public were mild. To 

quantify this last point, the extra radiation dose received by some individuals may 

have been as high as 85 units, which is the same as getting 2 or 3 chest x-rays, or 

of living for a year in the mountainous regions of Colorado. This exposure is less 

than 3% of the amount that is regarded as safe for those whose occupation causes 

them to be involved with radioactivity. 4. Many mistakes were made, and the danger 

was real that the situation might have been worse, but some individuals in the media, 

in government and in special interest groups have shown a shameful lack of regard for 

the public by seeking to exploit and exaggerate the situation, causing more concern 

than was warranted. 5. This particular type of accident was unexpected and proper 

defenses for it in terms of certain valves and pumps were not provided in the plant 

to deal with it but the perfect public safety record of nuclear power, extending 

over more than 20 years, remains intact. 

Now it is the time to analyze what happened at TMI, to learn from the 

mistakes,to further improve the design of the plant and their operating practices,to 

ensure that accidents like this one will not occur again. It is not the time to work 

toward abandoning nuclear power. In 1978 nuclear power provided 31% of New Jersey's 

electricity based upon planned additions already under construction, this would grow 

to about 50% during the next 10 years. It is unlikely that the fraction of our 

electricity produced from nuclear energy would increase beyond this amount, at least 

not in this century. 

The demand for electricity has been rising only gradually in the Garden 

State, due to conservation and the exodus of industry from the State. This situation 

will not continue much longer because the easy part of conservation has already been 

done and further improvements will be expensive to implement, hence slow in coming. 

And, the State simply cannot afford to lose any more jobs. The Governor and the 

Legislature have and are continuing to give this problem their attention and we are 

optimistic that economic conditions will be improved sufficiently that we can once 
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again attract new jobs, in addition to holding onto the ones here now. 

So more electricity will be needed and the plants to provide it are under 

construction. But, Assembly Bill 3037 would have the consequence of stopping this 

progress. We have not had the opportunity for a detailed review of the specific 

language of the bill, but it appears that it would block any funding of these plants 

even after they are completed unless the Board of Public Utilities issues a finding 

that the federal government has established licensed spent fuel reprocessing and 

radioactive waste disposal facilities. The "Catch 22" in this is that the federal 

government has already adopted the policy of not having reprocessing facilities for 

nuclear fuel from commercial power plants. Therefore, under this policy, the BPU 

cannot issue an affirmative finding and there will be no way for the utilities to 

ever recover their cost. 

So why do we have this proposal? Why seek to block the only technology 

that enables us to simultaneously be independent of OPEC and have minimum environ

mental effects. The only practical alternative to nuclear power in 1979 and 1980 is 

to generate more electricity in existing power plants fueled with expensive imported 

oil. The excess natural gas that was available temporarily is now virtually all 

spoken for and industry is concerned that they will face shortages in the mid 80's 

because of the diversions already approved. Coal has much more severe environ

mental effects than does nuclear power. Perhaps some of the technologies for pro

viding clean energy from coal will be suitable and available by the late 80's but 

they are not available today. If they are available and can produce electricity 

more cheaply than nuclear, we want the utilities to use them.If for any reason they 

do not so choose, the regulatory framework will require them to do so anyway. Some 

persons believe that the energy obtained by burning solid waste is sufficient to 

eliminate the need for nuclear power. We fully support the concept of energy re

covery from wastes but we are fully aware that: 1. There are many environmental 

problems to be solved and 2. Mechanisms do not exist to ensure that sufficient 

quantities of wastes are available to generate appropriate amounts of el~ctricity. 

Finally, there are those who say solar energy can free us from tho:> n.:>cd 

for nuclear power, perhaps they will be right in 20 to 30 years but they are most 

assuredly incorrect at present. The technology to generate large quantities of 

electricity from sunlight does not now exist and cannot exist for at least 10 years. 

After this, it takes years and years to build enough power plants to provide enough 

power to be significant, and, unfortunately, the environmental effects of solar 

energy are not insignificant. 
In closing, I would like to note for the record that this articulation of 

our position was prepared by me alone, as I indicated it does reflect the consensus 

of the Energy Committee and the Board of Directors as well. We didn't have time to 

get a broader input to this statement. As a professional engineer who has been 

personally involved in energy technologies ranging from nuclear power to solar energy 

to conservation, I am urging that the Assembly, through this Committee, not take any 

actions to foreclose the nuclear power option. The consequences to our State's 

economy would be severe in terms of higher energy costs for both individuals and 

businesses, leading to a decreased living standard and loss of employment opportuni

ties. As was stated above, there simply is no safer technology available now to 

generate electricity when the term "safe" is looked at in its truest meaning. Your 

positions in government carry with them the responsibility to look beyond the claims 

of those who, for various reasons, are adamantly opposed to nuclear energy but who 

25 



can offer no better practical alternative to meet present-day needs. 

Thank you for this opportunity to present our views. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: I have no questions. Thank you for your testimony. 

I would like to say though , so we don't have a debate starting from pro and anti

nuclear forces here today, that we do want to stick to the issue of the storage of 

the spent fuel. Our present speaker got a little off the track, I think. What I 

want to discourage is that someone would feel he has to come up here and respond 

to that testimony. We don't want someone to come up and give his opinion of why 

we don't need nuclear power in New Jersey. Try to stick to the issue of storage. 

Like the present speaker, if you have some introductory remarks to lead into it, 

that's fine. But try and stick to just the waste issue if ~ou can so that we don't 

get into a prolonged debate. 

MR. STEIGELMANN: Yes sir, but our point was, that is preempted. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: I understand your point. It's all part of the issue 

and I understand it completely and I think everybody does. I didn't want to stop 

you because I know you were leading to the point and we understand that. But the 

bill we are talking about doesn't ban nuclear construction in the State and we want 

to make that clear. So, if anyone is here to support banning nuclear construction 

in the State, we're not talking about a bill to do that. We're talking about solving 

the problem of storage. We understand your arguments as to why we should continue 

and we understand the arguments of the opponents who say we should stop. All I'm 

trying to do is condense it down to this one issue. Our next speaker, and we have 

time for probably one or two more, let me give you two names so if the rest of you 

want to take a break for lunch you can. We have Edward Lloyd from the Public 

Interest Research Group and if time permits, before a quarter to one we'll get to 

Ted Peck, League for Conservation Legislation. And then we'll come back at about 

two and pick up where we left off. Mr. Lloyd. 

E D W A R D L L 0 Y D: Thank you. My name is Edward Lloyd. I'm Director of 

the New Jersey Public Interest Research Group, (PIRG). I'd like to thank the 

Committee for this opportunity to testify on Assembly 3037. PIRG's basic position 

is we support the concept of the bill. We'd like to suggest a few amendments, some 

technical, some policy. I think the Committee has heard quite extensively this 

morning what they can't do and some legal problems with this bill. I'd like to offer 

some suggestions as to how both the technical and the legal problems can be remedied 

so that this bill would be constitutional and would b.e well within the authority of the 

State. First, I would agree with the comments of the Department of Energy and the 

Board of Public Utilities Commission with respect to rate base. I hope that those 

problems will become corrected. I think it is merely a technical language change. 

I would also suggest that perhaps nuclear fission power plants should be defined 

somewhere in t:he bill so that it is very clear what we are and are not talking abouL. 

Finally, as the BPU pointed ou~ operation and maintenance costs do not go into the 

rate base. I would suggest that the bill be amended to prohibit construction costs. 

In that way, that is the substantial cost of the nuclear power plant, that is the 

cost that bears most heavily on the rate payers. I believe also,if construction 

costs were banned at an early stage in the planning, we would not face the legal 

argument of a taking. If, in fact, the utilities were put on notice early in the 

process that these construction costs were not to be included in the rate base there 

would be no question about a taking. Finally, I'd like to address the preemption 

question which is the one, I believe, of the greatest concern. It is my opinion 

that if this bill were amended to change its intent and clearly relate its intent 
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to the costs of waste disposal and the cost of reprocessing, those .issues are w<-11 

within the jurisdiction of the State. In fact, I believe that tho State's duty i~ 

to protect the consumers of this State from the costs of waste disposal and re

processing. And unless these issues are addressed before plants are licensed, you 

are, in effect, giving the utilities a blank check to cover these costs. It is 

clear that if we build those plants and the federal government ultimately charges 

the utilities for the reprocessing and for the waste disposal, those costs will be 

passed on to the consumer. I believe it is the duty of this Legislature as well as 

the Board of Public Utilities to examine those costs before authorizing construction 

funds to be spent by the utilities. We can't examine those costs until we know what 

the technology is going to be that's going to be used to reprocess and dispose of 

wastes. It is for that reason that I think it is a legitimate concern of the State 

to seek a decision from the federal government on what those technologies will be 

before they license or authorize construction. I just would like to say a word, 

since it came up earlier, about CAFRA preemption. I believe that the State would 

be on much more solid ground in the area of the Board of Public Utilities Commission 

and the area of costs of related disposal problems with nuclear power, on better 

ground,than they are with the CAFRA language which deals more, I think, with the 

safety and health of the public than does the BPU regulations dealing with costs. 

In fact, PIRG appealed the granting of the Hope Creek permit and among the grounds 

that we appealed on were the waste disposal issue. And the New Jersey Appellate 

Division ruled that, in fact, that issue was preempted under CAFRA. I don't think 

the same problems would be faced with BPU because the cost regulations clearly 

within the authority of the State are much more clearly so than perhaps the safety 

and health issues involving CAFRA. Finally, I want to make a few comments, and I'll 

keep them very short, about economic issues that I think should be of concern to the 

Legislature. I realize they are not addressed in this bill. In amending it you 

might consider putting some of these findings in as well. I think we should all be 

concerned with the economics of nuclear power when the plants are not operating. 

It has been an issue for years. It has been brought home clearly to us in the Three 

Mile Island situation because that plant may well never operate again. And it is a 

real question as to who should pay both for the repla~ement of fuel which is going 

to be more expensive, for the cleanup, for the decommissioning of that plant and, 

in fact, for the downtime of that plant right now. Jersey consumers are going to be 

faced with those questions because Jersey Central owns 25% of the plant. It is an 

issue that I believe should be addressed by this Legislature with respect to pro

posed plants and plants now under construction. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: I don't know if you personally were involved 

MR. LLOYD: I was the attorney representing PIRG in that case. In 

the Hope Creek case. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Fine. That's what I wanted to know. Are you 

satisfied with the answers regarding the plutonium rods? Were our answers we 

received accurate? 

MR. LLOYD: Right now, the plutonium on-site fuel will not be used because 

of federal and State regulations. With respect to the waste disposal, I haven't 

looked at the permit in some time either but I would: suspect that Public Service 

should come back in for an amendment of that permit if they intend to expand the 

facilities at the Hope ~eek plaat. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Yes. The permit says "temporary" but it does not 

define temporary and obviously they were talking about a time duration at that time 

of 4 years. When you multiply that by 4 that brings a question as to whether that 

is still temporary. We are starting to get the opinion also that maybe some 

legislation or amendments or something dealing with the CAFRA bill may be a way to 

go. You mention that in your intervention you were preempted because of CAFRA. 

Could you explain that a little bit? 

MR. LLOYD: We were preempted, or the court ruled that we were preempted, 

from raising the waste disposal issue with the federal government. CAFRA says that 

a condition may be placed on the plant, that if the waste disposal problem is not 

solved - very similar to this language - based upon environmental concerns, I think 

there is a more serious concern in respect to CAFRA on where the federal authority 

ends and the State authority begins. The reason I believe we are on more solid 

ground with the Board of Public Utilities is that traditionally states have set the 

rates consumers will pay for electricity. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: You think we are on more solid ground with the BPU? 

MR. LLOYD: Yes, I do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Oh, I misunderstood you. I thought you said just 

the opposite. 

MR. LLOYD: Oh, I'm sorry. Yes, I think we are on more solid ground.with 

the BPU than we are with the Department of Environmental Protection. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: O.K. I'm glad I got that straight. The issue of 

the decommissioning of the plant as it applies to their CAFRA permit - do you recall 

the scenario that went on after that was, or I assume there was, a decommission plan 

filed? 

MR. LLOYD: I believe that one of the conditions in the Hope Creek permit 

was that a decommissioning plan be filed. And I believe it has been. I have not 

reviewed it. Again, I think we are on more solid ground with decommissioning if we 

talk about the costs of decommissioning which must be borne by the consumers. Until 

we know what those costs are, and there are estimates varying from for a plant the 

size of Hope Creek from $50 million on up and I've seen estimates up to a billion 

dollars to the cost of the plant itself, dismantling would cost as much as the 

construction ---

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Do you want to comment on the question we have been 

asking everyone about what the 17 years of fuel would contribute to the dangers of 

that site? 

MR. LLOYD: Yes. I believe I would agree with the other witnesses who said 

that the relationship between the operation of the facility and the waste disposal 

if, in fact, there is a serious accident with operation, the additional harm from the 

waste disposal may not be incrementally significant. I think those are the words 

Steve Picco used. I think the concern, however, may be that if we have 17 years worth 

of fuel in that pool, there is some danger. Again, I'm not a nuclear engineer either, 

I would think there would be some danger of something happening to that pool. The 

pool was orignially designed to hold 4 years and they are not talking about enlarging 

the pool. They are just talking about putting four times as much waste in that pool. 

As I said, I'm no expert on this but I have some concerns about trying to put that 

much waste in that same pool, and perhaps the harm that would occur to thn pool. 
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: In your testimony you made a suggestion - lPt 

me see if I can clarify that - that rather than the legislation specifying that 

operating and maintenance cost should not be contained in the base rate that 

construction cost should be the criterion used. Are you then suggesting that 

utility companies should not be allowed to pass their own construction 

cost on to the consumer or did you say that, in relation to the construction cost, it 

should not be allowed to be included in the rate base until the waste disposal issue 

has been resolved, reprocessing the waste disposal? 

MR. LLOYD: Yes. I think that is what I intended to say. The construction 

costs are the significant costs ---

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: So do you think we are getting the cart before 

the horse kind of thing in this legislation? 

MR. LLOYD: In a way. I would agree with you that the operation, main

tenance costs also shouldn't be included in customers' rates. But the real issue 

is the construction costs. And the utilities, I believe, should be given the signal 

early in the process, early as possible, that they should not undertake these 

construction costs or assume these construction costs until this problem is solVed. 

By doing that, I think,(l) you put them on notice so that there is not an unfair 

change of the rules after they have spent a billion dollars, also there is the matter 

of the rate base. What is the rate base? It is the capital expenditures and they 

are the construction costs. So, those are the costs you want to deal with. If, 

in fact, you prohibit the construction costs from going in, you are never going to 

get the operating and maintenance figure. I would presume you are not going to 

have a plant. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: So then you would be talking about any future 

construction of nuclear plants in New Jersey? 

MR. LLOYD: Yes, I believe so. I think there is a serious question as 

to the Salem II plant, because it is 90% built, whether the Legislaturo would want 

to have this Act apply to those plants. With respect. to Hope CrE'Pk in ForkPd Riv<>r, 

however, 1 believe they an~ 10 to 15 percent constr-ucted. It may bE' in the State's 

interest to put the utilities on notice now not to spend any more money until we 

resolve this problem. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: O.K. One other question. It has been said many 

times here that nuclear power is cheap, is cost effective, it is perhaps environ

mentally cleaner than some other sources, however, I think we've seen recently that 

what happened at Three Mile Island is not going to be an inexpensive thing for any 

of us. You made the suggestion that, well you talked about the economics of closed 

plants should there be that kind disaster in the State of New Jersey. Do you have 

any recommendations to make to the Legislature or to this Committee as to what we 

should be doing or could do to either build up a fund or to be prepared in the event 

that one of our nuclear plants did have an accident as to how we could avoid passing 

that cost on to the consumers? 

MR. LLOYD: Yes, I do. I think that those are some of the issues that 

really should be considered when the Board of Public Utilities examines the con

struction program of the utilities. Something that we should take into account is 

the fact that the nuclear plants have not performed up to their expectations even 

before Three Mile Island. In fact, the larger ones have been averaging some 55% 

of their expected capacities. I think some legislation would be in order to direct 

that in a year in which the plant does not perform - I would say this is open to 

discussion - at more than 50% of its capacity that that percentage of non-performance 
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should be removed from the utility's rate base the following year. I think we 

have to protect the consumers of the State from the situation at Three Mile Island 

and similar situations around the country where the plant breaks down for whatever 

reason. The customers continue to pay rates based upon the capital investment in 

that plant - a billion dollars - get no electricity from that plant, have to pay 

in the fuel adjustment clause, the increased cost of purchased power from other 

sources, usually more expensive, and then, in the Three Mile Island situation have 

to pay for cleanup and decommissioning as well. I think that that is a valid area 

for examination for the Legislature and the Board of Public Utilities. We have 

been talking about presenting the Legislature with proposed legislation. We would 

be happy to pursue that with you. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: What is your position on nuclear power, generally? 

MR. LLOYD: Our position over the past 5 years has been in opposition to 

nuclear power because of the safety question, because of the economics, and because 

of the waste disposal issue. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: The last question I have is: There have been many 

people who have said to us that they can't understand our concern on the waste issu~ 

because it is a very safe technology - the storage of spent fuel rods submerged in 

the pool. And,whether they are going to be there for 4 years or 17 years do~sn't 

matter because they are just as safe for 17 years as for 4 years. As a matter of 

fact, they are safe for a longer period of time. Would you care to comment on 

the safety of storage? 

MR. LLOYD: I would give you a layman's comment, again, I'm not an ex

pert. I'm afraid I'm not overly confident in the federal government's ability to 

regulate nuclear power and the waste disposal issue. There are 100 generic pro

ceedings still open before the NRC - generic problems with nuclear plants that 

haven't been addressed. Technically, I don't know, as I said before I'm a little 

concerned about quadrupling the number of fuel rods in that pool without increasing 

the size of the pool. I just think we need to look very closely at the costs of 

th~t kind of storage, that kind of waste disposal. I'm concerned about the safety. 

But, in the forum of the New Jersey Legislature I think we're on soft ground with 

respect to jurisdiction and federal preemption. I would prefer to stay on the firm 

ground of economics and the economics of all of these issues because that is where 

the State has the greatest interest. I think that is where the greatest concern is 

of the consumers of the State. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Is there a tremendous difference in cost because of 

the change of 4 to 17 years, for instance? Or isn't that an argument we should have 

made a long time ago? 

MR. LLOYD: The cost of storing on site, I believe, isn't that much mot·c 

significant. In fact, it may even be less costly to store on site with the 17 years. 

The cost that I'm concerned about is the ultimate reprocessing or disposal costs. 

Those may be extremely significant and extremely high. And those are the costs that 

we need to examine because ultimately I think they will come back to the rate base. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: My fear is seeing the feds sitting there saying 

it is too expensive to move this stuff, it is cheaper to leave it there. That's 

not what we want. 

MR. LLOYD: It think it is very possible that that could be a result. 

We would have then 72, 200 repositories around the country, which would be of 

major concern. 

30 



ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: This is the question that bothers me. Has any 

thought been given by the federal government as to what the cost is going to be to 

transport, to reprocess or to dispose? Do you have any testimony on that? 

MR. SONZ: There have been studies on determination of charges for 

sp0nt fuel shipping and disposal. The studj es are going on. Disposal is a rnn(•nrn 

fur the military waste as well dS for the conunercial wast<'. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: But i.n these studies,.you are considering 

thP cost factor? 

MR. SONZ: Oh, yes. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: Everybody keeps talking about cheap, cost 

effective - yet I wonder if all the factors have been considered. Do you agree 

with that? 

MR. SONZ: I think they have been considered. What we are awaiting 

is the final decision. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: So we really don't know, do we? 

MR. SONZ: We don't need the solution: we need the decision. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman, I didn't mean to just 

talk to the whole audience. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: By the way, we are going to wrap it up with this 

witness. So, if the next witness whom I had told to be prepared is still here, 

I would advise your grabbing a bite to eat. The question comes from our staff 

that the construction cost was purposely left out of the bill because of the problem 

of preemption, and I guess the question is, do you feel that gets us into more danger

ous waters as far as federal preemption is concerned? 

MR. LLOYD: I don't know that the preemption is the concern there. I 

think perhaps a taking is of greater concern. If, in fact, a company has invested 

a billion dollars in a facility and you prevent the operation and maintenance costs 

from being written off, I think they have a very good argument that you allowed them 

to invest that money you now can't deny them both their operating and maintenance 

and their profit on that plant. I think you are on much more firm ground if you 

say to them, "Do not spend any money in construction until we resolve this problem." 

That way, they are not putting their money out with an expectation of putting it into 

the rate base and, in fact, you don't have to address the taking issue. I don't think 

the preemption issue, in that instance, is the one that's of concern. I think the 

taking issue is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: O.K. We will recess until 2 o'clock. 

(Lunch recess) 

AFTERNOON SESSION 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: We will start the second session, the afternoon 

session, of the hearing on A-3037. I'll repeat a few of the ground rules in case 

someone came in late. Please try and stick as closely as possible to the issue of 

Assembly Bill 3037 which deals with the storage of nuclear fuel in this State. 

Secondly, if you have a written copy of your testimony, please give it to us as 

you come up. And, thirdly, if you do have a written presentation, as far as the 

record is concerned, it is not necessary to read the whole presentation. You can 

sununarize it but your complete written testimony will be part of the record. I 
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do want to emphasize again to stick to the issue of Assembly Bill 3037 so that 

everyone here will get a chance to speak, hopefully, before 4 o'clock at which 

time we are supposed to vacate this area. Our next witness is Ted Peck, League 

for Conservation Legislation followed by Margaret Wasson, SEA Alliance. 

T E D P E C K: Mr. Chairman and distinguished members of the Committee and 

staff, I welcome the opportunity to speak with you today on behalf of the League for 

Conservation Legislation concerning Assffinbly Bill A-3037. I was talking to Bill 

Singer at lunch and he said you were tired of seeing his face at these hearings so, 

he also wants you to know there is an organization behind him. 

So, I would like to say that the League for Conservation Legislation is a 

coalition of New Jersey environmental groups. In fact, most of the environmental 

groups testifying here today are affiliated with the League. 

I would also like to just parenthetically raise a protest here on the fact 

that you interviewed the corporate lawyers and executives and bureaucrats in the 

morning and then in the afternoon when we environmentalists speak, and I think we 

are a lot more eloquent than they are, the TV cameras are all gone. The nuclear 

debate, I think,is in the political arena where it should be and to give them the 

TV coverage, I think, is an unfair advantage. I'd like to see you try to do some

thing about that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: That looks like a TV camera right there, I don't 

know. 

MR. PECK: Well, New Jersey Public TV is here but the major networks have 

gone home. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: A lot of people sitting here maybe are not aware 

that you can call ahead of time to have your name added to the list. That's how 

this list is determined. Evidently, some of the people were used to being at a 

lot of public hearings but we don't pick these names out of a hat. This is how you 

people have contacted us and you were put in that order. So, it was certainly not 

intended to put one group in the morning and one in the afternoon or anything like 

that. But, I appreciate your comments. Please continue. 

MR. PECK: The intent of A-3037, as we understand it, is to bring to a 

halt all construction of nuclear energy facilities in New Jersey until all questions 

of public health and safety have been resolved. 

Insofar as the bill is likely to achieve this purpose, the LCL supports it. 

In fact, I would like to remind the Committee that in June, 1976 in its 

"Energy Conservation Plan for the State of New Jersey", LCL called for a moratorium 

on the construction of nuclear power plants in our State pending the resolution 

of seven conditions relating to public health, safety and economics. Since that 

time, all seven of those conditions have grown worse, not better. The time for a 

moratorium is long past due. 

I ask you to view with extreme skepticism the assurances from Harrisburg 

and Washington and also in this room today that no lives have been lost as a result 

of the accident at Three Mile Island. It has long been know that there is no safe 

level of radioactivity. A number of studies published during the last two years 

have indicated that workers and members of the general public who have been exposed 

to levels once considered acceptable have been dying of cancer and leukemia. The 

Environmental Protection Agency is in the process of setting standards of exposure 

far lower than those now set by the NRC. And, of course you all heard the estimates 

in recent days what might have happened at Three Mile Island if we hadn't been lucky. 

A-3037 concerns itself with the problems of nuclear waste storage, of 
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spent fuel rods in particular. It should be pointed out that the fuel rods lying 

in the storage pool at Oyster Creek contain far more radioactivity than the fuel at 

the very young reactor at Three Mile Island7 in fact, far more radioactivity than 

was released at Hiroshima and Nagasaki. The reactor at Salem is presf'ntly beinq 

refueled, which means that for the first time spent fuel rods are bC'ing stored there 

as well. These pools, as we've heard today, were meant to be temporary storage, not 

permanent, but they will remain ther~, a deadly threat to everyone in South Jersey, 

for the forseeable future. since, as we heard today, there are no operating facili

ties for reprocessing or permanent storage. To allow more plants to be built while 

this situation prevails, we feel, would be criminal folly. 

However, A-3037 must be amended in order to be effective. As drafted, it 

would allow a utility to proceed with construction of a nuclear plant, charging its 

ratepayers for construction work in progress, on the assumption that by the time it 

was completed solutions would have been found to the problems of reprocessing and 

permanent waste storage. 

This is basically in agreement with what Ed Lloyd of PIRG just said that 

onc0 the plant had bePn built, there would be irresistiblP pressure on thP RPIJ and 

the Log is lature to aLlow it. t·.o operate so that. the company would not l osr its 

billion dollar investment. 

To be effective, the bill must prohibit the inclusion in the r·ate basr 

not only maintenance and operating costs but also all construction costs of plants 

not in operation when the bill is passed. 

In addition, section e(l) of the bill requires, as a precondition for 

inclusion of these costs in the rate base, a finding that technologies for re

processing and permanent waste storage are in actual operation or will be in opera

tion at the time a facility becomes operable. Will be in operation - this last 

clause we find unacceptable. For the last thirty years the government has been 

promising, each year, that a permanent storage facility would soon be ready, yet 

the solution continues to recede into the future. Previous speakers today have gone 

into this point in some detail. The precondition for plant construction should be 

that permanent waste storage facilities be in operation, not that they may be at 

some future date. 

The LCL has an extensive library of information concerning these matters 

and contacts with individuals at Princeton and elsewhere who have spent years study

ing the problems involved. We would be happy to assist the Committee in its delibera

tions in any way we can. 

In closing, I would like to note that while our primary concern is with 

health and safety, the economics has swung over to our side too. The Princeton 

economist, Hazel Henderson, has said, "After Three Mile Island, no one ever is 

going to tell us nuclear power is cheap again. It can't be both safe and competitive 

in price." 

I'll end my prepared remarks there and restrain myself from the temptation 

to answer some of the things that were said this morning. I know other people are 

going to address those. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Thank you, we appreciate your sticking to the pur

pose of the bill. Are there any questions? I wonder if you might just comment on 

the point we made to someone this morning that there are some who say that they don't 

understand all the hullabaloo. What's the difference if you store on the site for 

4 years or longer, say for 17? Are you satisfied that the expansion of the racks is 

a safe system? And are you satisfied even with 4 years of storage that the technolo

gy is there to safely store the spent fuel on the site? 
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MR. PECK: I'm skeptical, I'm very skeptical about this whole process. 

As we heard, this was designed as temporary storage and the nuclear technology is 

such a demanding technology that I'm afraid that any change you make, as was said, 

in the middle of the road could lead to serious problems. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: The way I understand it though it is not a change 

in the structure of the storage vault, it is strictly a re-racking procedure which 

allows them to keep more in there. So really, the swimming pool is the same swim

ming pool that was going to have the spent fuel in it anyway. Right? It was going 

to have it for the whole period of time. Do you have any feeling whatsoever on 

the expansion of the racks, that technology? 

MR. PECK: That is my primary concern that they are increasing the density 

of radioactive elements in there. I'm sure that if you lost your cooling fluid in 

the pool you could quite possibly get a chain reaction. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: How might that happen? 

MR. PECK: Well, I'm not that familiar with the technology but we read 

every day about leaks of water in nuclear plants in one place or another. And I 

certainly wouldn't guarantee that it wouldn't happen in this area also. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Thank you very much. Margaret Wasson from the 

SEA Alliance. By the way, when you come up, give your name before you start. 

MARGA R E T WAS S 0 N: My name is Margaret Wasson and I'm here today to 

deliver testimony on behalf of the Central Jersey SEA Alliance concerning Assembly 

Bill 3037. We would first like to state that we heartily endorse the spirit of the 

bill, namely, the prevention of more nuclear power plants becoming operable before 

the long-term waste storage problem has been demonstrably solved by the federal govern

ment - a long-awaited event that appears just as elusive now as it was 25 or 30 years 

ago both in terms of technology and, indeed, the economic terms of who will pay for it. 

We find, however, on close inspection of the bill that there is a serious and, indeed, 

we feel, a critical omission. The bill neither mentions nor addresses itself to 

construction work in progress. The money is charged to the service customer to help 

finance the actual construction of nuclear power plants. On inspecting Public Service 

Electric and Gas Company's 1978 stockholders' report on page 32 we find list8d, "NAt 

Utility Plant, four billion three hundred and sixty three million two hundred and 

ninety seven thousand dollars." Construction work in progress accounting for"one 

billion thirty three million two hundred and forty nine thousand dollars"of that -

a rather large proportion of the total. It is well known that utilities cannot main

tain or sustain an adequate cash flow from the investment or money market to finance 

nuclear plant construction and thus have had to turn to its customers for the funds 

it lacks. It is apparent that if the bill passes in its present state with CWIP and 

the rate base, the utilities will continue to build nuclear power plants as scheduled. 

At the point of completion, the utility will challenge the validity of this bill and 

be able to point to an in excess of a billion dollar investment that is unusable. We 

believe the economic arguments that the utility would have to offer at that point in 

time would be strong enough to entirely negate this bill. Central New Jersey SEA 

Alliance proposes that an amendment be added to the present bill to state that no 

utility will be allowed by the Board of Public Utilities to incorporate into its 

rate base any construction work in progress for new nuclear power plant construction 

started after the date of the passage of Assembly Bill No. 3037. The events at 

Three Mile Island are still very much in the minds of many. We have been assured 

that the crisis is passed in terms of danger to the public health, an assurance 

that is in direct contradiction to the work of many distinguished members of both 
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the scientific and medical community. The official assurance that the imminent 

danger is past, however, has served to bring into focus the enormity of the economic 

aspects of the problem. Staggering costs become apparent both in providing ultimate 

sources of electricity at an estimated million dollars a day and the awesome cost 

of decontamination, repair, and what is more likely, decommissioning and entombing 

of this billion dollar fiasco. The consensus of opinion is that, of course, the 

public will have to pay. Just how ~he public is supposed to in the face of alarming 

general inflation in the cost of life supporting necessities is not spelled out. 

We urge the members of this Committee to study the economics of the whole nuclear 

fuel cycle and the thermal efficiency of the whole cycle. We were told this morning 

that the nuclear industry will help us gain an independence from foreign oil cartels. 

Yet, America has dwindling uranium reserves and a foreign uranium cartel is already 

rumored. We are warned to support expanded nuclear development because the return 

to the heavy use of coal is environmentally unsound. Yet, the largest strip mine 

in America is operated merely to supply fuel specifically for a uranium processing 

and enrichment plant. Events at Three Mile Island demonstrated for the public an 

alarming credibility gap in both the representatives of the industry and the officials 

appointed to protect public safety. The public now needs the truth - the truth that 

nuclear fission was born in subsidy and can only survive in subsidy, from massive 

grants from the public pocket for research and development to heavy subsidy in fuel 

processing, enormous federal tax relief, direct capital transfers as in CWIP, in

surance subsidies, and the government funding of waste storage, and, of course, the 

cost of a huge bureaucracy that is supposed to regulate the industry. If nuclear 

fission was as economicql, as safe, and as clean as it is purported to be by its 

advocates, surely one does not need a Ph.D.· in economics to see that no subsidies 

would be necessary. And, now we see in this worst case of an accident the public 

again is expected to absorb all these losses. New Jersey's future has been planned 

with heavy nuclear involvement with areas of the South already being referred to as 

future nuclear parks. PSE&G has lodged a request with the NRC to quadruple its on 

site spent fuel storage. Many New Jersey citizens are getting the uncomfortable 

feeling that the federal government might just choose this State to become the 

national zone of sacrifice and mandate us to accept wastes from other areas of the 

nation. In the future, we will have our hands full and our pockets empty trying to 

cope with the large-scale toxic pollution that has resulted from too many poorly 

run trash dumps and chemical wastes. Let us not add another dimension to an already 

dismal picture. We would support and endorse the present bill as long as it con

tained the suggested amendment. Such legislation is long overdue in a State already 

staggering under varied and gross pollution. 

Just a couple of final comments: We have been told this morning that we 

need nuclear power. We would like to state that the utilities in this State already 

have doubled the federal suggested excess generating capacity. All the utilities in 

the last year have had to drop considerably their future estimated need because of 

conservation. And in the case of reprocessing, we have already had in this country 

three different reprocessing concerns who have found it, after a while, commercially 

unviable. And in the case of the New York company, they declared bankruptcy and 

left the corroding wastes leaking into Buffalo's aquifer and expected the state to 

pick up the cost of decontamination. And, also, with the English reprocessing, 

there was an enormous fire at Winsgale where many of the men were irradiated and 

are now no longer allowed to live a conjugal life with their wives because their 

perspiration is so highly radioactive. That is just a brief history of reprocessing. 
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The SEA Alliance thanks you for your time and the opportunity to testify 

in this important matter. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: The only point I'd like to ask you about is,I 

assume you understand just from discussion with the sponsor, and from statements 

he made, his reason in setting the criteria he did. This Committee is going to 

have to make the decision as to whether or not we should go further than the 

sponsor did. But, I think I can speak for him. His reasoning is that if we go too 

far, if we had included the construction costs, then we certainly would be infringing 

in an area where we have limited, if any, authority. We will be whistling in the 

wind, we'll end up with nothing. His feeling, and the feeling of those who spent 

the time working on this bill, is that we do have the authority to get involved in 

this subject as long as we don't get carried away and come out with an outright 

moratorium which, according to recent court rulings, has been preempted by the 

federal government. I hope you are not saying to us that unless we go that route 

your organization cannot support this bill. We have to pass something that can 

(1) pass here and (2) can withstand the courts. I don't think any of us disagree 

that maybe that would be a great idea if we could pull it off. It would really 

have the effect of getting to the NRC. But, it might also have the opposite result 

and we'd wind up with nothing. That is the reasoning anyway. 

MS. WASSON: I see. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Any questions? Thank you very much. 

MS. WASSON: Oh, there is one final thing. Reading matter was suggested 

to this Committee this morning, may we also recommend this government report en

titled, "Nuclear Power Costs"? It was the twenty third report by the Committee on 

Government Operations. It certainly is good reading. And it does address some of 

the issues we are dealing with. Thank yo~. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Thank you very much. I apologize to the Sea Alli

ance for spelling your name all this time. Next is carol Bar~ett from the Sierra 

Club. 

C A R 0 L BARRETT: My name is Carol Barrett and I'm Conservation Chairman 

of the West Jersey Group, New Jersey Chapter, Sierra Club. The opinions I'm ex

pressing this afternoon are from the national Sierra Club's positions on nuclear 

power as well as New Jersey. We are all agreed on the fundamental issues about 

nuclear power, in fact, years ago Sierra Club as well as most environmental organi

zations were hoping that nuclear power would be the answer, that we would get rid 

of the problems with coal and other environmentally hazardous and unhealthy systems 

of generating energy. But, in 1974 the Sierra Club Board of Directors decided that 

the issue, in particular the waste issue, was of such monumental concern and such 

a problem that the Sierra Club requested that no nuclear power plant be constructed 

until the problem of permanent storage of nuclear waste and decommissioning, which 

came later, was solved. 

I'm not sticking to this prepared testimony because in listening to the 

testimony and Assemblyman Stewart, there are many other important things that come 

to my mind. Of course, everyone was brought toa halt with the incident at Three 

Mile Island. I was in Ohio at the time visiting my daughter. I was so panicky that 

I made my husband detour off Route 76 on to some mountain road. We almost were 

killed trying to maneuver the mountain roads. But, there is that inner feeling wh0n 

you realize that you may be contaminated by radiation. You want to avoid it at all 

costs. we really feel a great deal of sympathy for the people in that area being 

so close, I can imagine how they must feel. 
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The language in this legislation we are discussing today is veJ:-y narrow 

as Assemblyman Stewart pointed out. We would also ask that,if you are going to word 

it as it is, you would include the cost of construction. It probably wouldn't be 

workable to just deny them a rate increase for the maintenance and operation. It 

is the cost of construction which is the big issue and what the citizens have been 

paying for and will pay for into the future. 

In this testimony I talked ilbout the events at Three Mile Island. But 

they have been discussed and they are so much in the public view right now that it 

would be reiteration for me to go into it again. 

As I said, in 1974 the Sierra Club issued a statement opposing the 

licensing and construction of any new nuclear plants. Since then the Sierra Club 

has set up a subcommittee. We have a Doctor Resnikoff from New York who is the 

Chairman. We also have hired Drew Diehl, at a great reluctance because we suffer 

from lack of money the same as other organizations do, with inflation. The Sierra 

Club, of course, is dependent upon its membership plus any donations. It is a non

profit organization. We have many professional people on our staff but we do not 

look forward to incurring new professional staff. We thought the nuclear waste 

issue was such an important thing for the country that we have hired an additional 

person in our Washington office, Mr. Diehl. He will work on a national campaign to 

further go into this waste issue. Of course, now you will have to add to that the 

decommissioning problem. The financial problem of decommissioning is terrific. 

Dr. Resnikoff, who is the Chairman of our subcommittee also worked for PIRG in 

New York. I included in my testimony a statement he made in 1977 regarding fuel 

reprocessing. I have it in front of me now and other testimonies that he has offered 

at Congressional hearings, also to President Carter about the radioactive waste situ

ation. It is such a monumental problem. These were written in 1977. The Sierra 

Club has been overseeing all the handling of nuclear waste and reprocessing and de

commissioning since it has begun. They have a very good record of what has occurred. 

There are horrendus problems with all of it. He can point out lacks and inefficiencies 

and the fact that we are expecting people to operate in a perfect manner at all times. 

We are expecting these institutions to be built perfectly. We are expecting people 

to perform perfectly and they can't do it. The unexpected happens, it is the old 

Murphy's Law. As far as depending on nuclear energy in New Jersey, I just feel 

dreadful about it. I've been a resident of New Jersey all my life. I live in south 

Jersey. I didn't worry about nuclear energy at all until the last years when Salem 

plant came up and I started to be concerned about it. I think the thought that we 

could become a national repository for spent fuel storage is abhorrent. We have 

a few natural resources left in New Jersey. In south Jersey we have some farmland 

left, we have the Pine Barrens. When I hear that they are going to put a plant at 

Forked River with the high cooling tower very much in sight of the Pine Barrens, 

then run the transmission lines through the Pine Barrens, through our beautiful 

forest because it is maybe cheaper or they can get the right of way, I just think 

it is disgusting. 

I hope that this Legislature will address itself to this issue. Now that 

everybody is concerned about the issue of nuclear plants and New Jersey seems to be 

a big headquarters for it, if somebody doesn't take hold of the issue, it is going 

to get much worse insofar as the public reception of this goes. The public's 

perception of nuclear plants is that they don't want them. 

As you can see, I have not bothered to read any of my testimony which I 

wrote yesterday on my birthday. Then, I traveled by bus to come here. So, you 
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can see that I am a concerned citizen. The SiPrra Club would love to offer its 

professional assistance to this Committee and its experience and its research. 

Frankly, I can't see any reason why the Sierra Club can't help the way that industry 

does. Industry is often called upon to advise government officials. I think that 

organizations such as the Sierra Club should be consulted also. If there is any way 

we can make this information available, we'd be more than happy to. We have a 

tremendous amount of experience in it. Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: We would like to have your Washington newly-hired 

expert get in touch with our Committee staff so we can discuss with someone on a 

national level the preemption problem. So if you could get his name to us 

MS. BARRETT: It is in the report and the attached paper is from Dr. 

Resnikoff. I'm sure his records would be of immeasurable help. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Thank you very much for taking the time to come 

down here. Following Tina Weishaus will be Charles Wall from Burlington County 

College. 

T I N A W E I s H A U S: My name is Tina Weishaus and I come from New Brunswick. 

I'm testifying for the People's Independent Coalition. The Coalition is a grass

roots multi-issue organizztion which is concerned with public policy decisions in 

areas of health, civil rights, labor, environment, women's rights, all areas of 

national priorities. We have worked with the Public Advocate and the Department of 

Health in the past on the survival of the Family Health Center at Middlesex General 

Hospital. Most central Jersey legislators are familiar with our work and concerns 

of our constituency which is growing significantly. Last Sunday night our membership 

requested an emergency meeting concerning the accident at Three Mile Island plant 

to which about 125 people carne. Generally, they were concerned with the immediate 

and long-term consequences of the accident, the public's right to know what was 

going on, and the future costs, human and economic of nuclear energy in this State 

and in the nation. But, I am aware there is to be a general hearing on nuclear power 

and so I'll restrain my comments. 

Regarding Assembly Bill 3037, its statement of purpose intends, " to pre

vent more nuclear powerplants from becoming operable in New Jersey before the 

question of the disposal of spent fuel rods and permanent nuclear waste is settled." 

The People's Independent coalj, tion wholeheartedly support·s this principle but we feel 

that there are 3 major weaknesses which should be of concern to the Committee. These 

areas have been addressed by other people but at the risk of being repetitive, I feel 

I have an obligation to the constituency to repeat them. 

The first area is the area of construction costs. The legislation, while 

preventing the utility from including operation and maintenance costs, does not deal 

with construction costaof these plants in the rate base. Construction costs are the 

major expense, costs which New Jersey citizens bear and will continue to bear. If 

construction costs were included in this bill, it would not only strengthen the legisla

tion's intended purpose, it would quicken the search for a solution to the waste and 

reprocessing problems if a solution is possible. If a solution cannot be developed, 

it makes no sense for New Jersey consumers to subsidize never-to-be-operated nuclear 

facilities. Also, if construction without these solutions proceeds and plants are 

built, it will only pressure the federal and State governments at later dates to 

lower safety standards to enable these plants to operate. 

The second weakness is that there are other problems and costs besides 

waste and fuel rods. They can be summarized as social, human and health costs, 
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which are real and which we are extremely aware of today because of the accident at 

Three Mile Island. Some of these include (1) nuclear power plants are not fully 

insured and there is limited liability in case of a serious accident, (2) the fact 

that utility companies pass all construction, maintenance and operating costs on to 

New Jersey citizens and no one now knows the long-term economic cost of waste dis

posal, down time, fuel replacement, and closing down or decommissioning of plants, 

(3) there has yet to be public disclosure of all scientific studies which discuss 

the costs of all forms of radiation exposure to our health and environment, (4) 

there has yet to be full public disclosure of the costs of past incidents and 

radiation leaks from nuclear reactors, transportation, and storage of waste, (5) 

there is no prohibition at this time preventing utility companies from increasing 

rates to consumers to cover nuclear accident damage to corporate property, expenses 

of controlling and shutting down reactors, and extra costs incurred by the substi

tution of energy sources when a plant is down, and finally, (6) there is no sufficient 

compensation funds to cover persons displaced, laid off, or injured from nuclear 

accidents and no fund has yet been set up for long-term damage to health from radi

ation. We feel that all of these costs to New Jersey citizens must be ·appraised 

in addition to costs of the waste and fuel rods before the development of a greater 

dependence on nuclear power is established. 

The Legislature, the DEP, the Department of Health, the BPU, and especially 

the citizens of New Jersey do not at this time have the answers. We cannot, therefore, 

proceed. The Union of Concerned Scientists believes that,"Only immediate action can 

stop the incompetence, malfeasance, industry arrogance, and government insensitivity 

that is hurling us all toward the next nuclear accident." The People's Independent 

Coalition agrees with this. 

The third area of weakness, I think, is one that hasn't really been 

addressed sufficiently. The United States government through its authorized agencies 

has not proven itself reliable in this area. Regrettably, the AEC, the NRC, and the 

Department of Energy have placed the fastest growth of the nuclear power industry 

before the safety needs of the American people. According to the Union of Concerned 

Scientists, those who would regulate and set standards for this industry have also 

been its strongest proponents. Over the years, they failed to carry out safety 

research that their own studies show to be badly needed. They consistently mis

represented to the public the hazards of nuclear power plants. 

Assembly Bill 3037 will be strengthened if the Legislature in its power of 

negative veto can rely on independent authorities to call into question the approved 

means of disposal and reprocessing established by federal authorities. The People's 

Independent Coalition realizes that most legislation reflects compromise of one sort 

or another and few bills please everyone. Things, however, have changed since January 

16, 1979 when the bill was introduced. The accident at Three Mile Island has brought 

home to millions of Americans the terrifying dangers of nuclear power. More and more 

citizens realize that this accident is the tragic outcome of policies by the nuclear 

industry and the federal government to develop nuclear energy in total disregard of 

health, safety, and the cost for the American public. Please do not underestimate 

the sentiment of New Jersey voters when it comes to the health of their families and 

the soaring utility bills which make it harder for them to provide for their families. 

Each day and each accident convinces them of the need for strong, consistent and 

courageous legislation in this area. Thank you. 

I would like to add one thing about the construction costs. I believed 
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before I came to this hearing that there were states that had passed bans on 

incorporating construction costs into the rate base. It was reaffirmed by several 

of the spokespeople in the morning who said that California and Maine had done that 

as well as 15 other states that had restricted construction costs in one way or 

another. So, I would urge you to look into that area since it is something that th0 

citizens of New Jersey feel very strongly about as represented by just about every 

group who has been working on the problems of nuclear power in this State. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: I'm not sure about Maine but I believe California 

did have construction costs in it. The point is, that was overturned by the courts. 

That is what we are trying to prevent. We are trying to come up with something that 

won't be overturned. That's our dilemma. The California proposal may sound good 

and make good press as someone said earlier, but if it won't stand that test, it's 

not worth the paper it's written on. We're not fooling anyone by passing something 

that won't pass that test. 

MS. WEISHAUS: I understand that. I guess we will investigate the Maine 

thing. Also, I heard that Connecticut passed a limit on construction costs. So, 

I hope you will look into it and we will look into it too. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: We certainly will. In fact, there are quite a few 

other differences with the California proposal. Our staff and our people aren't 

100% sure that if we adopted the construction amendment that you are mentioning that 

we would have the same problems they had because we have other differences. That's 

our concern at this point. We haven't even touched on that subject yet. Those are 

some of the things we are going to have to talk about. 

MS. WEISHAUS: The other thing is that I think it would be fairly easy 

in the bill to incorporate an amendment, a resolution of disaffirmance which may be 

needed because you need to consult an independent authority. Because I think the 

fact that the NRC just allowed the Babcock nuclear plants, 8 or whatever throughout 

the country, to operate at full power makes people feel very, very uncomfortable 

with their ability to make a fair decision in favor of safety, knowing that those 

plants may, in fact, have design errors. So, I think, some independent monitoring 

is necessary. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: ·What kind of an independent source would you 

recommend? 

MS. WEISHAUS: I don't know. I imagine there are all sorts of experts 

that could be consulted that the Sierra Club has access to, or other organizations 

that deal in this. I have heard over the radio from an independent source in Maine 

who was monitoring the level of radiation in that state that it was high. Now this 

person worked out of the university. It came first through the university then the 

state Department of Health confirmed that. But, very often there is a cover up and 

a whitewash. The fact that there is radiation in the milk right now is not public 

knowledge. It has been in the papers but in small articles. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: You obviously take a very strong position against 

nuclear power 

MS. WEISHAUS: Generally we have a position. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: It has been testified here this morning that 

30 to 40 percent of New Jersey's electricity is generated by nuclear power. Assuming 

that the nuclear power plants were shut down and no more were constructed, what would 

you suggest as an alternative for power in the State of New Jersey or in the country? 

MS. WEISHAUS: There have been a lot of rumors that there is an energy 

shortage. However, I believe that there are probably a lot of oil resources available 
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which are not being developed precisely because there is no economic incentive. 

Now we have the whole deregulation question of domestic oil. There probably are 

oil reserves in this country as well as ---

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: We have been drilling. 

MS. WEISHAUS: Well, drill some more. I think that the money that is 

used, the millions and billions of dollars that are put into nuclear plants can 

be turned more effectively to develop safe - whether it be solar or just better and 

cleaner technology, for instance, for the burning of coal. We know there is plenty 

of coal but it is very dirty. As a representative of the constituency, I am here 

merely to speak to the fact that we feel that nuclear power is not safe. That is 

first and foremost. I think that probably the minds of this country can find 

energy sources. I'm concerned for the public's health and safety at this point. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Thank you very much. Charles Wall from the 

Environmental Action Student Group of Burlington County College followed by John 

Schoonover from the Fusion Energy Foundation. 

C H A R L E S W A L L: In reading A-3037 one gets the impression that while the 

writers' intentions are just and emphatically expressed, the actual proposal is full 

of loopholes and weak stipulations. I agree with the argument stating the reason 

for concern over waste storage and that it is a problem that should be addressed 

now, not at some point in the future. The first two paragraphs under Statement are 

very good. They pinpoint the problem accurately. The time has come to answer this 

question before New Jersey becomes more involved in the field of nuclear power genera

tion. But what happened to a potentially useful bill ? In the wake of the Three 

Mile Island accident it seems prudent to postpone the building of any more nuclear 

facilities until a complete study has been made as to the safety, economics and 

necessity of nuclear power. Is a radioactive catastrophy a risk that each citizen 

is willing to take? Do we, indeed, have the constitutional right to life? The 

people of New Jersey should have the final vote. We should choose between nuclear 

and other alternatives. It should not be a decision left to the self-promoting 

industry. 

This bill is not strong enough to halt the construction of new nuclear 

facilities. Why is CWIP still included in the rate base? Pennsylvania doesn't 

include CWIP, we don't believe New Jersey should either. The Governors Conference 

stood firm against the federal government's plan to dump radioactive waste on any

thing other than federal lands. The Legislature owes it to the people to stand firm, 

firmer than they have in this bill,against the almost wanton proliferation of nuclear 

power. This bill has good intentions but it needs some work. What you ought to be 

asking for is immediate moratorium on all construction of nuclear plants until a 

complete study has been made of their actual safety and necessity. If that report 

cannot justify the existence of a nuclear program or its superiority over renewable 

sources, then you ought to be proposing a scheduled phaseout of the plants already 

in operation. 

Herein lies the responsibility to the citizens of New Jersey. And if you 

find these decisions too difficult to legislate, then the decision should be turned 

over to the people of the State. We should be able to choose our own destiny. 

In answer to your question concerning an independent study group, I might 

suggest the Union of Concerned Scientists. And in answer to your question of should 

we eliminate the 30% of energy supplied by nuclear power what are the alternatives -

cogeneration has unlimited capacity to supply a lot of our energy as far as industri

al needs. Right now, solar energy can provide 40 to 60 percent of our heat and hot 
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water in its very young stage. Adding alcohol to gas would greatly increase that. 

We do have a lot of alternatives. They don't necessarily have to come from a single 

source. A combination of renewable sources would be a lot more advisable. Thank 

you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Charles, don't leave yet we may have some questions 

for you. You brought up the same fact that everyone else brings up. You don't buy 

the argument that California's law has been overturned by the courts and 

MR. WALL: As I understand it, Delaware right now has some moratorium bills. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: That doesn't make it legal. You can pass any kind of 

law you want but to have it stand the test is another story. I have a favorite epitaph 

that once a year I get. a chance to say. I'm going to use it here on you. It goes: 

"Here lies the body of John O'Day, who died maintaining the right of way. His way was 

right, his will was strong, but he is just as dead now as if he'd been wrong." The 

moral to that is, we can come up with all kinds of great laws to pass but if they 

won't stand that test, they are no good. We are fooling you and we are fooling the 

people if we pass something we know is not going to stand up. We have had people 

tell us that what we propose isn't going to stand up, let alone going one step 

further. 

MR. WALL: Do you assume you couldn't propose a weaker bill should a 

stronger one fail? 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Then what happens in the meantime? Construction 

continues, everything continues. Do you really think we are doing you a favor by 

sitting here and saying we're going to pass a law that bans nuclear facilities in 

New Jersey? Do you really think we are doing the citizens of the State a favor by 

passing a bill like that? 

MR. WALL: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Do you really think it would stand up? 

MR. WALL: I think it would be worth a try. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: O.K. My personal feeling on that is that you would 

be the victim of a tremendous snow job because it just hasn't been the case in other 

states. 

DR. J 0 H N s c H 0 0 N 0 V E R: My name is Dr. John Schoonover. I am a nuclear 

physicist and the Director of Nuclear Physics Research for the Fusion Energy Founda

tion. Before I make the remarks which I have been considering, I'd like to say that 

I am an expert in the area of nuclear radiation and would be very happy to entertain 

questions on what, in fact, radiation is and any other pertinent questions. The 

reason I make this particular statement at this time is that I was surprised in 

listening to people's remarks by the old wives tales and boogey man stories that are 

passing for fact in this hearing today. I expected to hear a resounding guffaw 

when the woman from the Sea Alliance pointed out that these poor British nuclear 

industry workers were no longer allowed to have conjugal relations with their wives 

because they have hot armpits. This sort of tale carrying serves no purpose. It 

doesn't get anybody to the truth of what radiation is. Anyone whose armpits are so 

hot that he can't sleep with his wife is probably dead already anyhow. People are 

getting paranoid behind me. I don't know what is wrong with the lady. 

The point that, I think, we have to consider in respect to A-3037 in 

particular --- There are several things at stake, (l)as was pointed out earlier by 

the industry representative, the techniques for reprocessing nuclear fuels exist 

They are more than commercially viable. One of the first things we learned how to 

do with nuclear fuels during the 1940's was to reprocess it so we could make bombs 
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out of the reprocessed materials. It is a well-known technique. The commercial 

viability of it is beyond doubt. Other countries are outstripping us in develop-

ing the potential to carry out nuclear reprocessing. England has been mentioned, 

Japan, France, Germany, the Soviets any country with a serious interest in the 

development of nuclear power is developing those techniques. It is a valuable re

source to recover fuel from spent fuel rods. As far as the storage of waste, again, 

the techniques exist to do this. They have been used. There are continually new 

techniques being developed. We are not dealing with an unknown monster in the 

dark. This is something that represents a very political question of whether, in 

the final analysis, the United States is going to continue to develop its nuclear 

industry or whether it isn't. You can throw up impossible-to-attain restrictions 

so that the industry can be stopped indefinitely. But, within any rational assPss

ment of the benefits of nuclear energy for the United States and any rational 

assessment of the possibility of further development of the technology surrounding 

nuclear energy, there is no reason, and I underline the word reason, to halt the 

further siting of nuclear plants for some sweet bye and bye in which these conditions 

will be met. They have effectively been met. 

Another major consideration is that the United States is an industrial 

country and New Jersey is an industrial state. If this country is to remain an 

industrial country to remain competitive in the world market with other industrial 

countries, to be able to continue to contribute the benefits to its citizens and to 

the world of being industrialized - living standards, general levels of culture, so 

on and so forth - then we cannot shut off the continued use of the most highly de

veloped, the most advanced technologies that science has invented, created, evolved 

into useful technological products. In fact, if we were to revert to a coal burning 

society, in effect, we would be reverting to a 19th century level of technology and 

could not, in the long run, restrict that reversion to the 19th century simply to 

the area of energy production. The whole economic structure in terms of the whole 

technological level of the society would revert to that level in the long run. If 

we were to revert to a dependence on solar energy, we would, in effect, be reverting 

to something prior to the 19th century - something closer to the Middle Ages. Now, 

anyone who seriously considers what the United States' or any other industrialized 

society'sreverting to the Middle Ages represents, you would not seriously consider 

putting further stumbling blocks into the development of nuclear energy. The 

Middle Ages is characterized by plague, famine, a much lower population potential 

which means that we would have to, in one way or another, allow to die or kill off 

significant portions of the population because we would not have the wherewithal 

to allow people to continue to live. It's as simple as that. 

Now the implications of this reversion to a 19th or earlier than 19th 

century existence for the United States has tremendous implications in terms of 

national security. We do not live in a peaceful world, unfortunately. And, until,if 

it is possible to do so, we create conditions in which all countries of the world do 

live peacefully together, those countries who ignore the development of science and 

technology put themselves in a bind relative to countries who promote the develop

ment of science and technology. War fighting and war avoidance both are questions 

largely determined by the technological achievements that can be brought to bear in 

the war fighting process. The failure to continue to develop the nuclear industry 

and collateral high-technology industries, would have a very detrimental effect to 

the national security of the United States. I think it is very important that a 

state such as New Jersey which has a long tradition going back to the Revolutionary 

war period and before of fostering technology - up in Paterson we have the Society 
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for Useful Manufacturing and so on and so forth - and which is the site of many 

high technology development corporations - around the Princeton area and elsewhere -

that a state with that kind of tradition and ingrained outlook cannot afford to 

find itself in the forefront of a movement to, in fact, quash scientific and 

technological development. It is important for the future of the development of 

nuclear energy in the United States that the State of New Jersey not submit to the 

kind of pressures that are represented in the amendment in Bill 3037, but, in fact 

on record maintain its present lead and excelerate that lead in the development of 

nuclear technology. 

I think it has become the order of the day to make recommendations for 

people's reading list on the question of nuclear energy. I'd like to submit a 

suggestion in this area. A nuclear engineer at the University of Colorado by the 

name of Peter Beckman has written a very excellent book for the layman called, 

The Health Hazards of Not Going Nuclear. He discusses in great detail not only 

what nuclear radiation is, how nuclear plants work, what kind of safety measures 

are there, and then compares the generation of electricity and other power by 

nuclear means, with coal, so on and so forth. It becomes very clear when you look 

at the record and the potentials for further technological development that nuclear 

energy is and remains, and will remain, the safest, cleanest, cheapest, the most 

efficient form of energy production we have as yet developed. As you noticed, I'm 

from the Fusion Energy Foundation. I expect that some time in the near future that 

controlled thermal nuclear fusion which is another mode of generating energy using 

nuclei will, in fact, supersede nuclear fission. But, in the meantime, this is the 

best we have. There is no reason to run and hide from it. We should push full speed 

ahead to further develop it. That's all I'd like to say at this time 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Mr. Schoonover, to get back to the bill that's in 

front of us today, we are looking at a chart that tells about the operational nuclear 

power plants in the world today - there is Canada, for instance, with ten - can 

you tell us what they do with their spent fuel? 

MR. SCHOONOVER: I think Canada is still holding it in temporary storag0. 

They may send some of it to Britain but primarily it is in temporary storage. The 

canadian nuclear industry is somewhat newer than the American. Their plants are 

much younger. 

world? 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: What does Britain do? 

MR. SCHOONOVER: They have reprocessing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Do they service most of the other countries of the 

MR. SCHOONOVER: As pointed out earlier, they do service Japan. France 

has its own reprocessing. I believe Germany does as well, the Soviets do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Thank you very much. Next will be Mark Baribeault 

followed by Robert Bowen. I want to stress again to stick to the bill. I don't 

want to have to interrupt someone in the middle. Most of you have been very good 

about it but we are starting to wander. 

MARK BARIBEAULT: Mr. Stewart, Committee members, my name is Mark Baribeault 

and I'm here speaking solely for myself today. The question I would like to ask ls: 

Must our race continue to poison its unborn descendents? 

This is the underlying theme behind this bill and the larger question of 

permanent, proliferate commercial nuclear power generation lacking proper disposal 

procedures. Poison, in the form of air and water pollution, overpopulation, infla

tion and many others is certainly the legacy that was passed on to us, and it will 
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be the legacy we pass on to a greater or lesser degree. All the poisons we have 

known, however, will be as gnats should we allow the use of fission reactors to 

propagate further without knowing the full, long-range consequences of their use. 

An alternative to conventional methods of power production is obviously 

necessary immediately, if not sooner, but at what cost? Do we disarm the Middle 

Eastern people of that pearl-inlaid dagger they hold at our throats merely to plunge 

it into our own underbelly? Or sho•1ld we hand it to a terrorist or to some future 

enemy who will again hold it to our throat'? Let's sit back a moment and rationalize. 

The major advantages of nuclear fission as presented by the industry are 

cheaper, cleaner, more abundant energy and a greatly reduced need for Arab oil and 

other fossil fuels in short supply. Noble causes, to be sure, but I have yet to 

hear of a utility reducing its rates though 30% of our own electricity is of a 

nuclear origin. The disadvantages are many-fold. 

Next to nothing is known of the long-range effects of consistent low-level 

doses of radiation on the body such as those that are received by persons residing 

in the vicinity of a reactor or storage facility, persons working at such an instal

lation, or persons exposed to one-time, higher-intensity, accidental emissions. Nor 

is anything known of the prevention or treatment of these effects if, indeed, there 

is a prevention or treatment. Additionally, Dr. Ernest Sternglas of the University 

of Pittsburgh's Department of Radiology over five years ago related stack gas emis

sions from the Morris plant in Dresden, Illinois, one of the first boiling-water 

:r:·eactors, directly to infant mortality rates in the area. He found a perfect co

incidence. Chance? A freak? Well, maybe. I have my conclusions and I'll leave 

you to yours, but have any of you seen photographs of children born to parents who 

received doses of radiation from Nagasaki or Hiroshima? I won't go into descriptions 

but is the potential creation of a race of such half-mutant monsters worth the price 

of that Arab dagger? 

And the issue at hand is nuclear waste disposal. The term itself is in

exact since the word "disposal" implies the conversion of waste to some other usable 

form, such as landfill or heat by burning. It should be nuclear waste guardianship 

for there is no known alternate use for these wastes and while recirculation is 

possible, their bulk must be completely and exclusively separated from the environ

ment for at least one thousand years, for that's how long they are lethal, longer 

than the existence of any known government. The plutonium in these wastes will be 

lethally radioactive for fifty thousand years and the whole batch will still be 

harmfully radioactive in two hundred fifty thousand years, on the order of a 

millennium. This is longer than the entire recorded history of man. Can even the 

United States government guarantee integrity that long? Can we be so selfish as to 

produce these ominous byproducts to feed only our own power hunger? Surely solar 

or fusion power will be improved to the point of commercial feasibility in the 

near future. 

The quantity of these wastes is yet another problem. Experts estimate at 

current growth rates that we will have one to two billion gallons of this highly 

radioactive fuel rod waste product to deal with by the end of the century. Until 

recently, these wastes were stored at the Hanford Works in Richland, Washington, 

among other places. There alone, there is 30 million gallons buried in more than 

90 tanks covering 600 square miles. Underground these tanks sit in huge saucers 

designed to catch leaks, at least 11 of which have occurred before the installation 

was closed. This waste boils constantly due to its high radioactivity and must be 

vented to cool it. But the vapors produced are also radioactive and must be 

condensed and purified. What would be the fate or effect of such an installation 
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in the event of an accident, sabotage, or war? Hanford is our biggest concentration 

of waste and already contains more than enough poison to kill every living thing 

on earth. And the coup de grace: it's located in a fault region. Transferring the 

waste, however, would require a parade of tank cars, spaced every ten miles, five 

years to complete at a cost of approximately five hundred million dollars. The latest 

idea, not yet perfected, is to solidify these liquids and bury them below the water 

table in Kansas salt mines six hundred to one thousand feet deep. I can't yet argue 

the pros and cons of·this idea but I would be interested in talking to Kansas resi

dents about it. 

Then there is the high probability of catastrophic results in the event 

of a storage facility or reactor accident. While these installations contain every 

imaginable safety system and several levels of independent backups, and the probabili

ty of an accident is extremely low, they are man-made machines and they are not 

perfect. Such an accident will eventually occur. In the late fifties, the Brook

haven report called it the "maximum credible accident" the complete loss of cooling 

fluid to the core and said it was nearly impossible. But, in the event of that near 

possibility, the report estimated 3,400 people would be killed, 45,000 injured, a 

150,000 square mile area would be contaminated and the cost of such a near impossi

bility would approximate seven billion dollars. This report was based on a reactor 

many times less powerful than the current commercial models, but has never been 

updated. 

Possibly the best argument against nuclear power production is the one 

least connected to their technology. In light of recent exposures concerning the 

Social Security program, the General Accounting Office, the Department of Agriculture's 

meat inspection program and the country's budget as a whole, Americans have simply 

lost confidence in the ability of their government to do anything right. To allow 

the use of nuclear power to continue would be expecting this government to deal 

critically with a multi-billion dollar business to insure our continued safety from 

radioactive perils. and would approach the border of the ridiculous. If we can't 

trust the government, what do we do? Allow the industry to regulate itself as 

healthcare and the food insustry have done? This is the industry that told us a 

nuclear power plant could not explode. It was an impossibility. Yet, what was the 

overwhelming fear March 30th in Middletown, Pennsylvania? 

So, considering all these arguments along with the possible thermal effects 

of a group of installations on the marine life in their immediate environment , the 

yet unsolved problems of decommissioning a reactor, and the consequential increased 

availability of fissionable materials to terrorists, we take events at Winsgale, 

England, Idaho Falls, Idaho, Richland,Washington, Browns Ferry, Alabama, unknown 

numbers and severities of events in the Soviet Union, and now Middletown, Pennsylvania 

as warnings. At its current stage of development, nuclear fission for commercial 

power production purposes is not safe nor worth the risk. Until sufficient evidence 

exists to show otherwise, find or develop another means to produce our power or risk 

abominable consequences to ourselves and to our descendents. I would like to live 

and raise my family in southern New Jersey without the spectre of several nearby 

nuclear power plants in addition to those in existence there already. 

Look at your sons and daughters. Think of their sons and daughters 

when you consider this bill. Is this the legacy you want to leave them? Or will 

we buckle to federal government's claim to preemption and allow a nuclear Whitman 

Park in New Jersey? If this bill is defeated surely no one will blame you when a 

near impossibility occurs in New Jersey. But if you follow your conscience and 
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if you resist the nuclear industry long enough to pass Assembly Bill 3037, when an 

accident occurs somewhere else one of those grandchildren or one of mine just might 

say thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Thank you Mark. Next, we have Robert Bowen of t.he 

U. s. Labor Party followed by Ann Baker of the National Organization of Women, 

followed by Eleanor Coleman and that's the last name I have. If anyone else has a 

name they want to submit, I would suggest you move up here quickly and give us your 

name. 

R 0 B E R T B 0 W E N: Thank you for the opportunity to address your Committee. 

I'd like to take the first few moments to simply refer to an article in the Labor 

Party's newspaper that I have placed before you called, "Facts on Three Mile Island 

Nuclear Accident". I want to point out several aspects that you can. look at in more 

detail after the day's events. (l) There were a series of failures inside the Three 

Mile Island plant identified as failures 1, 2, and 3. The probability of failure 1 

occurring is one in a hundred. The probability of failure 2 occurring is one in ten 

thousand. The probability of failure 3 is one in one thousand. Put together, that 

adds up to a probability of one in a billion of a simple mechanical or electro

mechanical malfunction. In addition, each of these systems has a manual override 

backup system to them. Furthermore, it is.noted, should pump have turned on - which 

has a little arrow identifying the sump pump in "the bottom of the primary containment 

building in the diagram - that pump was turned on by somebody who drained the liquid 

out of the containment building without any consideration whether that liquid con

tained radioactive materials in it or not. Now, those facts of the matter at Three 

Mile Island have not generally been distributed to the public nor to the press. 

That's the most disturbing aspect of the entire sequence of events around the Harris

burg facility. There has been a very direct and, in our opinion, deliberate attempt 

to prevent a full-scale investigation that would have included these elements into 

the ongoing discussion of the last several weeks. There are only three agencies 

that could have been responsible for that coverup, one is the Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission, second is the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the third is 

the Department of Energy run by Energy Secretary, James Schlesinger. 

In light of the events at the Harrisburg plant and also in light of the 

mishandling of the overall policy of the United States, a number of people including 

the Chairman of the Board of Dow Chemical in Michigan have called for Energy Secre
tary Schlesinger's resignation. I'd also like to point out that a State Assemblyman 

in Pennsylvania has called for the formation of a commission to conduct an independent 

investigation of the facts in the matter at the Harrisburg plant including the cover

up - why and who carried it out and criminal indictments against individuals who 

might have,been responsible for that. I think it is important for me to go through 

that briefly because of the questions raised by the Committee. One of them was: 

Would on-site waste storage at Three Mile Island have increased the effects of the 

accident? My answer to that is absolutely not,for two reasons. First of all be

cause of what identified earlier by representatives of PSE&G that the waste storage 

facilities are located quite remote from the main reactor building and power plant 

complex itself and secondly, in the case of the Harrisburg example, never at any 

time, including the present, was there any danger to human life anywhere near or in 

the vicinity of Harrisburg. The press reports to the effect that many lives were 

in jeopardy, the allegations that a core meltdown could have occurred, are 

scientifically false. 

That brings me to what I think is the most general point to be made with 
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respect to these hearings. You stated yourselves that there is a certain amount 

of knowledge that you lack in order to make informed judgments about nuclear power 

in general and in specific about the handling of the waste generated from the nuclear 

power stations. I would suggest that one of the things this Committee could do,at 

least in an initiating way for the whole State, would be to establish a series of 

educational programs for State legislators, not merely bringing people in to express 

their opinions, but to teach you how a nuclear power plant operates. How do you 

generate useable energy in the form of electricity, heat, etc. through the nuclear 

fission process - and in a more advanced stage of development through the nuclear 

fusion process which is one of the most exciting frontiers of human knowledge being 

worked on at Princeton University? 

Specifically with respect to this bill, although I think I can empathize 

with the concern of the sponsor and supporters of the legislation that are concerned 

about the waste problem around nuclear power plants, their efforts are entirely mis

directed. As has been pointed out by a number of experts, the technology for the 

disposal of nuclear waste exists. I will refer you to an article I believe was the 

June 1977 Scientific American in which the whole question of nuclear waste was 

fairly exhaustively gone through. The magnitude of the waste problem is miniscule 

relative to the popular misconceptions of that problem. What was identified in 

Scientific American was a specific proposal,which I don't necessarily agree with, 

but a specific proposal for geological isolation of the waste material that could 

not be reprocessed. Reprocessing represents one approach to the disposal of radio

active waste. A more effective solution to the problem which eliminates the neces

sity altogether for hiding waste underground or anything like that, is best repre

sented by the work going on at Princeton. That is the nuclear fusion research 

going on a Plasma Physics Laboratories. The high energy neutron flux coming out of 

the fusion reaction could enable the radioactive materials in existing nuclear 

wastes and all potential nuclear wastes accumulated through the development of 

commercial nuclear power in the United States to be broken down into not merely 

safe handleable non-radioactive materials but enable it to be broken down into very 

valuable industrial chemicals, medical chemicals and so forth. Secondly, as an 

interim step toward that ideal state of things, the fusion-fission hybrid reactor, 

which has been stalled in development in the United States but is being pursued 

vigorously in the Soviet Union and Western Europe, would represent a way in which 

fissionable waste products could be transmuted in a reactor in the process of 

producing energy. That is both highly economical from the standpoint of fuel sup

plies for fission power plants, which has been the subject of some discussion in 

terms of the economics, and it is also a very effective way of dealing with the 

waste by-products from existing nuclear power facilities which are generally light 

water reactors. 

One other question that has been brought up repeatedly is the legality of 

legislation prohibiting or in any way restricting the development of nuclear energy, 

and in specific, the constitutionality of the proposed legislation here. I can 

leave one copy of aU. S. Supreme Court ruling in Ashelman versus Consumers' Power 

in Midland, Michigan that the U. s. Labor Party was instrumental in as amicus curiae 

to the Supreme Court. What the Supreme Court ruled in that case was that it is 

solely up to the U. S. Congress to determine the criteria for the development of 

nuclear power everywhere from radiation safety levels during the operation of the 

plant to waste disposal and so forth. And the lower courts could not legislate 

through court rulings alternatives that a power company may have to investigate. 
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In other words, if PSE&G decided they wanted to build a nuclear power plant on 

Newbold Island out here on the Delaware River, the only criterion that is legal, 

according to the Supreme Court, is whether or not PSE&G in the construction of that 

plant meets the safety guidelines and other regulations of the Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission and other standards set by the u. s. Congress. From that standpoint any 

attempt by the states to regulate the development of nuclear power and in the 

specific instance represented by A-J037 here, you would simply be overruled by the 

courts if anyone took this bill into the courts to reverse it. 

Lastly, you have asked for a series of suggestions of what to do. There 

have been memorials introduced and passed by several state Legislatures around the 

United States requesting the president of the United States and U. S. Congress to 

increase the funding of nuclear fusion research and all of the aspects of it -

which would be of course applicability to waste disposal from existing fission 

plants. I would suggest that this Committee or some member or members of it draft 

a memorial for introduction to both the Assembly and the Senate along those lines. 

Secondly, I would suggest, in fact I already did, that a series of educa

tional seminars be sponsored by the Legislature or by this Committee bringing in 

experts, scientists, nuclear engineers, and so forth, not merely for the purpose of 

discussing a particular aspect of nuclear power but teaching about nuclear energy. 

Because, whether some people like it or not, the world is going to be run on the 

basis of nuclear technology sooner or later. Assuming there is not a war or similar 

obstruction to interfere with the further development of peaceful relations among 

nations, nuclear energy is being fully pursued by the Soviets, the Japanese, the 

Germans, the French, the British, and so forth. They will be operating as well as 

our neighbor in Mexico on the basis of the nuclear powered economy within a very 

short space of time. 

As to alternative energy technologies, what would you do? In the shor·t 

run - this points up the aspect I mentioned earlier about Schlesinger - the nation 

of Mexico has discovered recently massive supplies of oil and it was only through 

the interference of the Energy Department of the federal government, the National 

Security Council of the federal government, that a contract that had been signed by 

the Mexican State Oil Company and by American based oil companies in Texas that a 

pipeline from Mexican oil fields into the United States is not already under construc

tion. It was alluded to by a previous speaker. She did not feel that the energy 

shortage as is being presented in the news media as the basis for higher prices 

and austerity in related things is real. I concur with that. The CIA report 

recently released demonstrates that contrary to Schlesinger's public statements 

that oil production last year was a million or two million barrels short of the 

previous year, that, in fact, it was a million or two million barrels in excess 

of the year previous production despite the fact that Iranian oil was not avail-

able on the world market. 

I would emphasize that the real solution to this problem is not technical 

as has been made clear by the testimony here. The real solution is politics. You 

as individual legislators and members of the Committee hearing this legislation, 

should consider endorsement of the Chairman of the Board of Dow Chemical's request 

that Carter fire James Schlesinger. In addition, I would suggest that you contact 

the appropriate people in the Pennsylvania State Legislature and participate in 

the investigation of the Harrisburg events. Because, if our allegations are true, 

then the implications for the future of this nation are more than dramatic. I 

don't think that any responsible public official can avoid looking into those 
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charges especially since they are not just based on wild accusations. They aLe 

based on very well documented fact. Thank you 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Thank you very much. Any questions? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: Could I ask him a question? Do you agree that 

the utility companies have a capacity to continue to store for say 17 years of 

spent fuel? 

MR. BOWEN: I'm not sure of the specifics. I think it is pretty easily 

confirmed or not. Simply take a look at the design specifications for the new racks 

that PSE&G has suggested down at the Salem I and II plants, whether, in fact, they 

can contain it. There is in my considered opinion, I'm not a nuclear physicist or 

engineer but I've been a promoter of nuclear power for a number of years and I've 

studied the subject to the point ~f being quite familiar with the way in which a 

plant operates and so forth, the storage on site of nuclear waste products from a 

fission plant represents absolutely no danger whatsoever. I think that from the 

overall standpoint of the energy needs of this nation if we are going to guarantee 

the constitutionally mandated access to prosperity through technological progress, 

that nuclear power must be developed and I am quite confident that the technologies 

for dealing with any of the so-called problems exist and that the stumbling block 

is not technical, it's not scientific, it's political. There are numerous companies 

both in the industry and outside the industry that are more than willing to invest 

massive sums of money in reprocessing facilities, storage facilities and so forth. 

But as long as the overall energy program and economic policy of the nation is 

oriented toward a zero growth austerity regime, they are not willing to make those 

investments because the profits down the line aren't going to be there. I would 

suggest that deals such as have been proposed by Mexico, long-term agreements for 

the sale of oil in exchange for agreements from the United States to provide them 

with the technology to get it out the ground, are the model for the way in which 

U. S. policy must be conducted. I would assert that as State Legislators you 

have to be concerned with that question because that question ultimately determines 

what you are going to be able to do as State Legislators. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: Well, you seem to be very confident that the 

storage of spent fuel is perfectly safe. It could be stored on and on into 

infinity? Without any problem? 

MR. BOWEN: It could be without any problem. I don't think that that is 

the most desirable ---

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: And you also agree that it can be reprocessed 

safely and that it is feasible? 

MR. BOWEN: There is no question in my mind whatsoever. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: I wonder does the federal government know about 

you? Because they haven't given us any answers or ---

MR. BOWEN: Let me comment on that briefly. There is an ongoing war 

politically in the U. S. administration these days. This is not a secret. James 

Schlesinger is trying to promote himself as a spokesman for pro-nuclear interests. 

He absolutely is not. Since his earliest days in any government agency going back 

to the AEC and so forth, James Schlesinger has deliberately and with all considera

tion sabotaged the growth and development of the nuclear industry of the United 

States. That is provable. It is provable in court and we hope, someday, that 

Schlesinger will sue us for statements like that. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN McCONNELL: I don't think that is the purpose of the Com

mittee hearing today. 

MRo BOWEN: No, it's not. But the question you ask is if I know 
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this,why doesn't the federal government know it? And, I'm telling you that they do. 

The information I have given you is not something I developed by reading black 

market textbooks in my basement, this is information largely presented to us in 

conversation with the people who run the Energy Research and Development Administration, 

several of who have been the victims of very, very vicious slander campaigns. Several 

have quit in protest. A couple have been fired because of their outspoken support 

for nuclear power. Not just saying that they support it, but they were fired because 

of their attempts to come before bodies like this and present the wealth of knowledge 

that they have accumulated during the course of their studies to you so you can make 

an informed judgment as opposed to one based simply on a few opinions thrown at you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Thank you very much. Next is Ann Baker of the National 

Organization of Women followed by Eleanor Coleman and followed by Mike Koscinski and 

that will conclude our meeting today. Again, I would like to remind everyone to please 

stick to the issue of the storage of spent fuel, not the pro or con of the nuclear 

race. 

A N N B A K E R: Members of the Committee, I appreciate this opportunity to 

address you regarding Assembly Bill 3037. I am Ann Baker, Legislative Agent for the 

National Organization for Women in New Jersey. I commend the sponsors of this legisla

tion for initiating action to curb the nuclear power industry in our State. It ls 

very much to their credit that they introduced this bill months in advance of the~ 

terror of last weekend over Three Mile Island. It is to be hoped that enactment of 

this legislation in New Jersey and similar measures in many other states will induce 

the federal government to step boldly into the morass surrounding the nuclear power 

industry and bring to a complete halt this menacing technology. I,~ight say parenthe

tically and absolutely speculatively that while you seem to be concerned about the 

constitutionality of enacting this particular piece of legislation and you have heard 

legal arguments on both sides, there probably is some impact to be gained from many 

Legislatures enacting this kind of legislation on whether or not the federal govern

ment will take a really hard stand on this. We see this right now in terms of 

calling for a constitutional convention to balance the federal budget. The govern

ment is now moving. 

At its annual State Conference on March 31-April 1, the members of NOW, New 

Jersey voted overwhelmingly to call for a withdrawal of all State and federal funding 

of these facilities in favor of non-nuclear energy systems - that includes fusion. 

This was done with the recognition that such governmental action would affect the 

continued operation of nuclear power plants. They are not deriving all their money 

from investments, there is a lot of government subsidy. This resolution was based 

on many concerns. As a feminist organization, we are concerned with the acute 

effects of radiation on pregnant women in particular. It is noteworthy that 

Governor Richard Thornburgh of Pennsylvania is still advising - he may have changed 

his advice since noon of today - all pregnant women and pre-schoolage children to 

remain away from the immediate vicinity of the Three Mile Island nuclear power plant. 

We are not, however, merely concerned with the effects of radiation on 

these classes of persons. Exposure to radiation has caused sterility in both men 

and women and therefore deprives them of the right to make decisions about their 

future procreative function and childbearing. Furthermore, accidents at nuclear 

power facilities endanger all human life and all living beings on our planet -

that should be enough concern. Moreover, radiation is a health hazard in many ways. 

A wide range of cancers result from exposure to radiation. Radiation has a cumulative 

effect so the discussion about low-level or background radiation really misses the 
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point when it focuses on episodic exposure - how much exposure occurred to citizens 

living in and around Three Mile Island as one episode. Because of the longevity of 

the radioactive elements these occurrences of exposure do not simply go through our 

bodies and then disappear, radioactive elements are able to.persist in the body and 

do damage at a much later date. Scientists refer· to the time in which it takes for 

om" hnlf of tlw rddloactive atoms to break down as the half life of the element. In 

tt.'rmn of nucl<'ar wr~str' disposal of high lev,• .I. .r otdioa<"'tivP mator l.:tls, t.h«' pr·ohlr-mt 

becomes absolub:=-ly boggling. ~·or example, one radioactive isotope resulting from 

the nuclear reaction is plutonium - that was your question this morninq, the plutonium 

and hydrogen byproducts - the half life of plutonium is 24,000 years. According to 

the New Jersey Public Interest Research Group report on nuclear power, if we follow 

the rule of thumb that a toxic radioactive substance must be contained for twenty 

half lives, the most minute fraction of the ten million pounds of plutonium which 

will be produced by the year 2,000 through our nuclear power industry must not be 

allowed to escape for 500,000 years. When we consider the acute problems we presently 

face with the disposal of non-radioactive toxic wastes, the notion of submitting all 

those future generations to such a radioactive legacy is, indeed, criminal. Do we 

have the right to make a decision in favor of continued nuclear development which 

will threaten the lives of the next thousand generations? To choose such a 

dangerous course is all the more unjustified when we realize we are irreversibly 

committing future generations to take responsibility for these wastes so that we may 

enjoy immediate short-term gains which really represent our lifestyle of conspicuous 

consumption run completely amok. 

Present schemes for the storage of nuclear waste reveal the desperation of 

the proponents of nuclear power. There have been suggestions that nuclear wastes be 

rocketed into outer space or buried in one of the polar ice caps where these boiling 

hot residues will melt their way through the thousands of feet of ice. And then 

what? These are not horror stories as was suggested somewhat mockingly by one of the 

other witnesses. One proposal explored by the Atomic Energy Commission was the stor

age of these radioactive materials in deep salt formations in Lyons, Kansas. This 

choice was made after 15 years of study and a year of evaluating the Lyons site. 

The choice was challenged by concerned citizens and the Kansas Geological Survey 
which discovered that the AEC had conveniently overlooked two critical problems. 

The one was that the site had been drilled through by an oil prospecting company 

and looked like swiss cheese. Even worse was that the site was only 1800 feet or 

one third of a mile away from an operating salt mine which used water to dissolve 
the salt to be mined. Placing nuclear wastes that close to solution mining would 

have been disastrous because it undoubtedly would have affected the storage area. 

A basic premise in storing nuclear wastes is to avdid the conditions which would 

cause the containers to become corroded and consequently to leak. The haste of the 

AEC to put its stamp of approval on this particular scheme, reveals the urgency 

experienced by the industry to allay the fears which people have about radioactive 

wastes. 

Currently the wastes which operating reactors have produced are being 

stored at the reactor sites because there is no permanent disposal facility. Some 

nuclear power plants are even running out of temporary storage space. Although we 

have heard that Salem I is rearranging its racks, I'm curious as to the mechanical 

process of rearranging racks with nuclear radioactive rods already in them. But, 

that is a technological question that I have no knowledge of. This has provoked 

consideration of building retrievable surface storage facilities which would have 
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the capacity to store wastes above ground for 100 years. We are talking about a 
possible life of plutonium wastes of five hundred thousand years. Negative reaction 

to this proposal seems to indicate that the industry will reconsider this hazardous 

course of action. 

A further consideration in terms of radioactive wastes and future contami

nation is what will happen to scores of nuclear facilities when they become in

operable after 30 or 40 years of use'.? After approximately 30 or 35 years in opera

tion, each plant has become so thoroughly poisoned with very high levels of radia

tion that they must be considered a permanent hazard to the public health for 

centuries. This is what has already been discussed as the decommissioning. You can 

completely tear apart a plant and the concrete disposed of in some sort of supposedly 

safe way or it will be necessary to seal and guard these facilities for centuries 

to make certain that no person comes in contact with its lethal radioactivity. 

The clincher to all of this is that the nuclear industry has evaded lia

bility for nuclear disasters through the mechanism of the Price Anderson Act which 

sets the liability level for the industry. It is not a particularly high figure 

when measured against the extent of the damages - as we are even seeing with Three 

Mile Island - and the level of liability assumed by insurance carriers for the 

airlines. Right now the limit is five hundred and sixty million dollars and the 

pool of insurance companies which cover the industry is only responsible for 20% 

of that five hundred sixty million dollar figure. The u. s. Government will pay 

the remaining 80% with our tax dollars. 

It should be clear that the most prudent and ethical decision about nuclear 

power would be to discontinue its use as soon as it is possible to shut down all 

present facilities. To sanction the continued deployment of this hazardous source 

of energy, is to ignore problems beyond the magnitude of anything which the human 

race has yet undertaken. It is unthinkable to proceed to generate thousands of tons 

of long-lived wastes, highly lethal radioactive wastes, before we have any notion 

of what we are going to do with them. We cannot solve the energy problem by creating 

a radiation problem. 

I'd like to make one comment on a statement which was made by another 

witness. That is the assumption that if we don't go nuclear, we are quashing 

scientific and technological development. What we are quashing really is a concentra

tion - a capital intensive concentration - of scientific and technological develop
ment. But we are hardly quashing this kind of technological development. This kind 
of technological development is going on in many other areas related to energy use. 

But, because the government has chosen to invest so much money in the development of 
nuclear power, there has not been the subsidy to work on alternative, non-nuclear 

sources of energy. I believe that we really need to put our dollars into that 

particular exploration. The assumption that we are going backwards if we turn our 
backs on nuclear energy, seems to me so fallacious when you look at the consequences 

of radioactivity that I can't imagine any person actually making that allegation. 

It is true this has been a scientific breakthrough but not all scientific break

throughs are great. I think most of us feel very strongly about the effects of 

our nation having entered the nuclear arms race in the 1940's. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Thank you very much. Eleanor Coleman. 

E L E A N 0 R C 0 L E M A N: I am somewhat limited this morning as to the things 

that I can discuss because my husband and I are currently involved in an intervention 

and we are also involved in a rate case dealing with these public utilities. 

I would just like to say to those people who are suggesting you make 
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rational assessments that you also assess the human element of this whole thing. 

Please remember that no one has assured us, even if we are just talking about the 

spent fuel, that nothing can happen with that either. I cannot help but remember 

today here that there are pregnant women and small children who have been away from 

their homes for eleven days. I'm sorry it bothers me very much. 

I also heard another gentleman here this morning refer to the California 

case. It bothered me that he did not know anything about -- He didn't seem to want 

to discuss our own CAFRA case. It brought a question to my mind. I wonder which 

department, agency, or whatever, is reviewing the occurrences that are reportable 

from these nuclear power plants here in New Jersey that are operating today? Can 

anyone of you tell me? 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Are you talking about the environmental ---

MS. COLEMAN: I'm talking about these - and I particularly didn't bring 

Salem because we are involved in that case - this happens to be from Three Mile 

Island. It is also in our Public Document room. And, I'm sure somewhere in this 

State some agency is reviewing these, I hope. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: The Department of Environmental Protection is, I 

don't know what that is, but I know they are ---

MS. COLEMAN: You are assuming that they are reviewing all of the occurrences 

that are going on? 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: I don't know that they are reviewing all of the occur

rences that are going on. I know they are monitoring the entire situation. In fact, 

that was one of the things we talked about at the meeting at one o'clock, between one 

and two. 

MS. COLEMAN: O.K. then I can rest assured that every one of these docu

ments that reveals a reportable occurrence is being reviewed by the Department of 

Environmental Protection? 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Without having seen it, I really don't know. But 

I do know they are reviewing. If you leave it with us, we'll find out. 

MS. COLEMAN: I could supply it to you later on if you want to make a copy 

of it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Just leave it with us and we'll find out what they 

are monitoring and what they are not. 

MS. COLEMAN: O.K. Because even in the Document Room they tell some very 

interesting things that happened at Three Mile Island. For instance, a mere thing 

like 60,000 gallons of water was mistakenly discharged into the river. They are all 

there. I'm sure it is happening in our plant too. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Can you discuss with us the technology in changing 

from a fuel assembly that holds 24 racks as opposed to the one that changes to 

54? Has there been any charge that that exten~ion is unsafe? Has anyone ever said 

that it is unsafe and backed it up with any figures? 

MS. COLEMAN: I think it is going to be difficult to prove one way or 

another without it actually happening. But, I'm one of those people who prefers to 

take it easy on what we are doing at this point especially in light of what has 

happened. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Is there anything else? I interrupted you. 

MS. COLEMAN: No. I just wanted to make sure that there is somebody in the 

State reviewing these. I am very limited as I said before. I also understand that 

I might have another opportunity to speak at a hearing that might be scheduled later. 

There is another thing that your Committee might consider for the future. 

54 



It is that we are really not dealing with specific utility companies in this State. 

They have all gone to areas outside of the State in that they own percentages of 

this plant or percentages of that plant. I hope that when we are dealing with these 

utility companies we are looking at the entire picture and we are looking at the 

regional. I think we should start to do some re-thinking about this. 

I'm sure the Chairman has already seen this but maybe some of the ot.her 

Committee members have not. We who live in Pennsville, where I live, are not only 

dealing with Salem and Hope Creek nuclear power plants but there is a possibility of 

a fifth which would be closer to us - right across the river. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: O.K. Thank you very much, Mrs. Coleman. Our last 

participant will be Mike Koscinski. 

M I K E K 0 S C I N S K I: My name is Mike Koscinski. I'm a solar activist and 

neighborhood organizer from Trenton. 

A scientist mentioned here before that the Midd+e Ages was a time of 

pestilence, plague. It's a funny thing that the Middle Ages was a society that didn't 

know anything about biology or basic medical practices, like washing your hands before 

you eat or basic hygiene. One of the reasons why they had pestilence and disease and 

plagues and all the other problems they had was that they did not have a basic unckr

standing of biology and didn't really know that the environment was a very, very 

delicate thing and that the human body was a very sensitive and delicate mechanism. 

So, it took some time and hundreds of years passed before they realized that doctors 

should wash their hands before they operate on a patient or a doctor should sterilize 

a needle. These weren't great technological breakthroughs. They were more just a 

basic understanding of the forces that are at work in nature. And so it is with nuclear 

power. It may take several hundred years before we realize that low level radiation 

that is emitted from nuclear plants and also from the waste products have a very 

negative effect on our environment - just as in the Middle Ages they didn't know that 

you shouldn't drink milk from a cow that had tuberculosis. All of these diseases had 

an environmental or genetic base. The same it is again with nuclear power. The low 

level radiation - it's common sense - will have some effect environmentally, r;a,l:or, a 

cancer, or it will have some genetic effect. That's what it all comes down tcJ -

whether we are going to be like the people in the Middle Ages and say we don't know 

anything about biology and we are going to continue to go against the forces of 

nature and not realize that the human body and our very delicate environment cannot 

be played with. 

I think the bill will have to come to some understanding. Maybe it might 

be important to get some people from the Rutgers Medical School to testify about the 

effects of low level radiation and the genetic material and the DNA, also the relation 

of low level radiation to the carcinogenetic effect. 

One more thing, in terms of coal, because people have a knee-jerk reaction 

in terms of coal mining they say, "If nuclear power were stopped then we would have 

300 miners killed every year and there would be the destruction in Appalachia and 

the far-western states". That I don't think really addresses the issue because what 

has to be addressed is that things don't have to happen that way. Miners don't have 

to be killed. In Europe, for example, a whole different technology of coal production 

is used so that maybe five miners are killed instead of three hundred. The fact that 

we kill three hundred every year and destroy our environment is simply because the 

Peabody Coal Corporation elects to and continues to because the federal government 

and the state Legislature allows it to do that. It doesn't necessarily have to be 

the way though. I get very upset when I hear we are going to kill three hundred 
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coal miners. Peabody Coal doesn't have to kill three hundred coal miners. So the 

environmental risks can be negated if we elect to do so and so it is with nuclear 

power. That is the substance of my talk. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN STEWART: Thank you very much. Any questions? That is the 

ena of our public hearing today. For the benefit of those of you who ~re interested, 

the record will remain open until the twentieth of April for anyone who wants to 

submit furthe~ testimony. You may submit some written documents,if you like,prior 

to that date. Thank you very much for coming. 
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.. On Jan ual."y ~ 0 , ~ 9 7 9 , the Seventh-Circuit Court-""of 
Appeals followed and reiterated the decision in National ~esources 
Defense Council v. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, 582 F.2d 166 
(2d Cir. 1978) on the point that the " ••• the [Nuclear Regulatory] 
Commission is required neither to conduct a rulemaking proceeding 
requested by a petitioner nor to dete:rmine that high-level 
radioactive wastes can be permanently disposed of safely prior to 
issuing nuclear power reactor operating licenses." State of 
Illinois v. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, F.2d (7th Cir. 
1979), Docket No. 78-1171. 

Almost on point is the March 6, 1979 decision of Pacific 
Legal Foundation v. State Energy Resources Conservation & Development 
Commission, F. Supp. · (S.D.Ca. 1979) civil No. 78-711-E. 
In th~s matter the court had before it t~ validity of a California 
statute that prohibited the siting of any nuclear power plant absent 
an approved reprocessing technology or waste storage availability. 
The proponents of the legislation attempted to circumvent the 
doctrine of federal preemption on the economic theory of trying to 
prevent the state from assuming the financial risk should there be 
no means of disposing of nuclear wastes. 

The court was not persuaded and held: 

"That California may have predicated 
Public Resources Code section 25524.2 upon an economic 
purpose is not a sufficient condition for a finding 
of constitutionality. Instead of focusing narrowly 
on the issue ·of California's legislative purpose, 
the court will examine whether section 25524.2 impinges 
upon the sphere of exclusive regulatory jurisdiction 
reserved to the NRC in section 2021. 

"Section 202l(c) provides that the NRC shall 
retain authority and responsibility with respect 
to the regulation of the construction and operation 
of nuclear power plants and with respect to the 
regulation of nuclear waste disposal. In the exercise 
of its discretion, the NRC has decided not to require 
the existence of a technology for permanently dis
posing of nuclear waste as a condition precedent 
for the construction and operation of nuclear reactors. 
The NRC's decision in this regard falls within the 
preempted sphere because it relates to, touch~ upon 
and involves the regulation of radiation hazard 
pertaining to the construction and operation of 
nuclear power plants and to nuclear waste disposal. 
California has decided otherwise, decreeing that no 
nucle-ar power plant may be constructed in the State 
of California unless there exists a demonstrated 
technology the disposal of nuclear waste. The court 
finds that the question of whether nuclear power 
plants may be constructed and operated in the absence 
of a demonstrated technology for the permanent disposal 
of nuclear waste is exclusively reserved to the NRC 
by section 202l(c} and that state regulation on this 
subject is displaced. Accordingly, the court holds 
California Public Resources Code section 25524.2 
impliedly preempted ..•. 
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found: 

-------------------------------------------------------

"Assuming arguendo that Congress has not 
completely foreclosed state requ~atio~ on th7 subject 
of radiation hazard control, ca~1forn1a Publ~c . 
Resources Code section 25524.2 1s nonetheless vo7d 
because it "stands as an obstacle to the accom~l~s~
ment and execution of the full purposes and ob)ect~ves 
of Congress," Hines v. Davidowitz, 312 U.S: 52, 
67, 61 s. Ct. 399, 404 (1941), in encourag1ng.and. 
fostering the development, use and control of.atom1c 
energy." 

The court went on to state: 

" ... Although the Atomic Energy Act certainly 
leaves room for the states to regulate on the 
subject of nuclear energy within the confines of 
section 202l(k) and 202l(b), the power to regulate 
is not necessarily the power to prohibit. There 
seems little point in enacting an Atomic Energy 
Act and establishing a federal agency to 
promulgate extensive and pervasive regulations 
on the subject of construction and operation 
of nuclear reactors and the disposal of nuclear 
waste if it ~s-within the prerogative of the 
states to outlaw the use of atomic energy within 
their borders." 

On the question of policy, the court succinctly 

" ... However, it is the province and duty of 
this court "to say what the law is," Marbury v. 
Madison, 1 Cranch 137 (1803), rather than to pass 
on the public policy question of whether the 
states ought to utilize or not to utilize atomic 
energy or whether the federal government ought 
to grant autonomy to the states on the nuclear 
question .•.. " 

In conclusion, the opinion stated: 

"Applying the foregoing principles of law, 
the court finds California Public Resources Code section 
25524~2 preempted both because Congress has ~pliedly 
foreclosed state legislation on the subject of nuclear 
waste disposal and, alternatively, because the statute 
stands as an obstacle to the purposes and objectives 
of Congress as stated in the Atomic Energy Act of 
1954, as amended, 42 u.s.c. § 2011 et ~"· 
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WEST JERSEY GROUP 
Camden, Burlington, Salem, Cumberland, Gloucester, 
Atlantic & Cape May Counties 

" ... TO EXPLORE, ENJOY AND PRESERVE THE NATION'S 
FORESTS, WATERS, WILDLIFE AND WILDERNESS ... " 

APril 9, 1979 

Subject: A~sembly Bill No. 3037 before the Committee on Transportation 
and Communications on January 16, 1979, then February 13, 1979 
to Agriculture & Environment Committee. 

Although this li.ll is stated as"an Act concerning the estalllshment of 

of utility rates and amending R.S. 48:2-21 11 the statement of purpose says 

"this bill is to prevent more nuclear powerplants from becoming operable in 

New Jersey before the question of the disposal of spent fuel rods and 

permanent nuclear waste is settled." To us this is the very important 

issue to be discussed; whether this attempt to deal with the problem is 

sufficient. 

In section 2 (e) the bill reads:"The board (we assume it means Public Utility 

Commission) shall not permit any utility within its jurisdiction to in-

, corporate costs incurred in the maintenance and operation of any nuclear 

fission thermal powerplant which requires the reprocessing of fuel rods 

and which has not been in operation at any time previous to the effective 

date of this act, into its rate base until both of the following conditions 

are met:" then follows the concern about how fuel rod repr~c_e~z;~Aplants 

and permanent, radioactive waste sites and storage are to ~6ration 

-4irlliliiiiliiii--. .• 

Needed in this la:p.guage is inclUsion of the costs of construction of these 

tremendously expensive nuclear plants. Billions of dollars have been spent 

on many aspects of developing nuclear power plants for a source of energy. 

The citizens of New Jersey and throughout the country have been and will 

·continue to bear the brunt of this operation. Not only in the area of the 

physical site but probable medical expenses into the future from these 

• • 
radiation hazards known already to have taken place and for those of tomorrow. 

With the catastrophy of the Three Mile Island nuclear reactor mis-adventure 

fresh in our minds, addressing this particular legislation today seems in-

adequate, although it is laudatory as a beginning of the dialogue that should 

more 
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be taking place in New Jersey considering the investment we already have 

in nuclear power plants. As a matter of fact, there has been a great deal 

of debate since tne first planning and construction of these nuclear reactors 

but it has been among those most sophisticated in the field and above the 

understanding of the general public. Today there is a different level of 

discussion abroad and the legislators as well as citizens should be study

ing the proposition of whether we should continue to operate them at all. 

This Sunday's newspapers, the Philadelphia Inquirer and The Bulletin con

tainl~very excellent accounts of what happened in Pennsylvania beginning 

March 28 at the Three Mile Island plant and continues this very minute in 

concern of coping with/~£most impossible control of events. 
Board of Directors, 

The Sierra Clu~s/in 1974, voted to oppose new nuclear power plants. Its 

basic nuclear policy is this: "The "Sierra Club opposes the licensing, con-

truction and operation of new nuclear ~ctors pending ••• resolution of the 

significant safety problems inherent in reactor operations, disposal of spent 

fuel, ~~ possible diversion of nuclear material capable of use in weapons 

manufacture ••• " We believed that answer·s should be found to the serious 

proble~s which exist before we are irreversibly comitted to, and dependent 

upon, ~uclear pwer. 

This legislation obviously does not go far enough for the members of the 

Sierra Club and indeed we have been reason itself in stating that this policy 

has twa sides. If the answers to these nuclear problems can soon be found 

the industry has nothing to worry about. We do not want to gamble with people's 

lives, with the well-being of future generations and with prodigious sums of 

capital that may affect the viability of our economy. 

As it stands today, we support the phasing out of existing New Jersey nuclear 

power plants as soon as practical. I recall a personal exchange I had with 

the President of the Public Service Electric & Gas Company, Mr. Smith, on a 

Meeting House television program about two years ago. I asked him what if 

the utilities put "all of their energy eggs into the nuclear basket and some 

terrific accident should occur and the public demand and end to the operation 

of the nuclear plant. What would they do to provide energy and how to expJ.in 
the large financial investment they had required us to make?" There was no 

more 

LI.V 



;:,'*Y.-:·.f;<~1 ,,;: ·\· 
:. 1f!.l~::r · .\:.• .;. 
-):~:.:~.·:;/ ;:· answer, just an enigmatic smile. Neither the moderator of the program nor 

. ·;:., ,. I could get an explanation of their responsibilities in this regard. 
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Although this statement wanders from the letter of the presently addressed 

legislation, the subject of our dependence upon nuclear power energy in 

New Jersfey cannot be narrowed down to a matter of adjustment of rates. 

A full discussion and debate about reprocessing of fuel rods and any "permanent 

radioactive waste sites and storage of same open up a pandora~Box of concerns. 

I am attaching a copy of a statement by Dr. Marvin Resnikoff, Chairman of 

Sierra Club's Nuclear Subc.ommittee of the Energy Policy Committee. This 

statement is on the History and Status of Reprocessing, March 7, 1977. These 

technical and deadly important matters mu~st be dealt with by those having ......... 
responsibility for l·icensing and regulating nuclear reactors, indeed all 

possibly dangerous material going forth to the public. 

The Sierra Club has recently hired a Nuclear Waste Coordinator, Drew Diehl, 

in the Washington,D.C.office to assist in developing a national campaign on 

the nuclear waste question. Our organization, of about lS2,000 members, 

does not spend its money on anything but the most crucial issues. We are 

dependent upon membership and donations and suffering the inflation woes 

of evez-.tone today. The New Jers~.yChapter urges all environ_;,bntalists,and I 

include decision-makers such as you in the legislature, to oppose any effort 
~ 

/~· to deploy additional nuclear react9f3• A full and open dialogue on alternative 

:'-l· .• ·;.; · .. ' ·, 

·~~··. 
.\ 
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energy futures must be encouraged. 

The three important issues to be settled regarding this form of energy source 
are:managing and disposing of radio-active waste material- some of which can 
remain dangerous for hu.rid·reds of thousands of years; (2) the safety of 

nuclear reactors; and (3) the possibility of nuclear materials being stolen 

for use in acts of terrorism. Incidently, present nuclear ractors are less 

efficient than fossil fuel-fired electric power plants since they release 

more heat to the local environment. 

I could say much more on this subject, obviously. It is a complex matter . 
and,as was demonstrated in Pennsylvania's recent accident, much more dependent 

on the perfectibility of~man and machine than is ever to be practicable. 

This legislation could be strengthened and be the beginning of a new era of 

more 
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enlightenment about energy sources in New Jersey. We desperately hope 

that this bill will be the harbinger of better dialogue between those who 

legislate and those who are the legislated. The industry has an obligation 

to~swer the many questions that must have come to your minds 

while deciding such momentous matters as nuclear power plants. The federal 

government also has a large responsibility to you who govern the state; 

you can surely call upon those agencies for more assurances than have been 

presented so far. We a£gR/you who are considering this legislation much 

wisdom and pray that you will be moved to look more thoroughly into this 

issue which affects everyone today and into the future. 

Thank you very much for giving us this opportunity to tell you how we· 

regard this proposed legislation and what we ask of you from now on. A 

revaluation of our use in this state of nuclear reactors as a principal or 

measurable source of energy is essential. Other areas/whefliese plants and 

attendant paraphernalia are to cause deep concern are yet to be addressed. 

I refer to the harm that may come to our Pine Barrens through the planned 

Forked River plant and its transmission lines. That, no doubt, will be 

debated in the near future and we expect you and your fellow legislators 

will be "boning-up" on that shortly. 

Any assistance that the Sierra Club can give to you is now offered. There 

are many experts in our organization more than willing to cooperate with 

information you might need that they have. Please contact us whenever you 

wish and we will give you the benefit of their research and experience. 

Carol Barrett, Conservation Chairman 
West Jersey Group/New Jersey Chapter Sierra Club. 
Hember N.J. Chapter Executive Committee 
1305 Walnut Avenue 
w. Collingswood, N.J. 08107 
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.STATEMENT BEFORE THE CALIFORUIA 
ENERGY RESOURCES CONSERVAT l ON AUO DEVELOPHENT COl-\M ISS I 0:1 . ..by 

MARVIN RESt~ I KOFF 
NEW YORK PUBLIC INTEREST RESEARCH CROUP 

and the SIERRA CLUB 
on the· 

·HISTORY AND STATUS OF REPROCESSING 
March 7, 1977 

. .'!hank you for the opportunity to appea~ here today. As thai rperson. 
of the Sierra Club Nuclear Subcommittee of the Energy Policy Committee, 
and as Staff Scientist for the New York Public Interest Research Group~ · 
I have been conc-rned with the issues of plutonium recycle and reprocese 
sing for the past three years now. The.Sierra Club is an intervenor in 
the NRC construction permit and licensing proceedings concerning Nuclear 
fuel Services~ The Club has overseen the operations of NFS since 1970, 
and we have been involved more Intensively since April, 197~. 

.. . 

The. Sierra Club is also a full party to the plutonium recycle, or 
GESMO, proceedings before t~e Nuclear Regulatory Commission. As part of 
our direct testimony In that proceeding, I have prepared a rather lengthy, 
172 page report on NFS and Barnwell which addresses roany of the questions 
posed by the Energy Commission on the history· and status of reprocessing • 

.This was completed ~arch 4, and I have a copy for your use that I have 
brought· along. I will ext·ract from that testimo!'ly ans~1ers to specific 
questions, but much of the specific substantiation is containe~ In the 

·sierra.Club testimony. 

The bi 11 AB1820. requires the Commission to find that 11there exists 
a technology for the construction and operation of nuclear fuel rod re
processing plants"•. ·1 don't believe it is a simple matter to define 
w~t is meant by, 11there exists a technology". Does it mean a set of 
gizmoes and widgets on paper, or does it mean a demonstrated technology, 
one that actually works on a large scale? When -v:e say demonstrated 
technology, then the question ~is - ho~ much occupational exposure, ra
dioactive effluents and plutonium loss, at what capacity factor, Is ac
ceptable in demon.strating a technology? \lhat if the technology exists 
on paper, but requires humans to operate flawlessly? What if additional 

·containment· technology makes the process uneconomic today or in the near 
future? One should also keep in mind that manager.~nt commitment to 
health and safety is an important consideration. If management begins 
to over-ride safety margins for the sake of maximizing production, then 
occupational exposures and radioactive effluents may increase? Finally·, 
whether the industry works ts dependent on the regulation by the NRC. 
To summarize, when one says, "there exists a technology", one is talking 
about performance. I "VIould interpret this to mean a demonstrated tech
nology, with low occupational exposures, minimal radiation releases to 
the environment, minimal p1utoniu~ loss, commercially viable, with some 
tolerance to human error, with manogement commitment to health and Sflf
ety,. and a regulatory commitment to the public in·terest • 

• 
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On this basis·, the history of reprocessing on· a commercial basis at 
·NFS_ has not successfully _demonstrated ~ commercial reprocessing industry. 
In fact, I be 1i eve that the industry operates at.~ the limits of our tech

_nological and human abilities. I do not foresee~a significant improv.a-
·ment at Barnwell. · 

Almost every section of the NFS plant has broken down, as the 
,·Sierra Club testimony demonstrates. Since several witnesses have ex
·~olled the virtues of the shear at NFS, I would like to detall the op
·~rating history of that component to make the point. The shear failed 
less than a month after initial operation. ·A pin had worked loose 
eaU$lng the clamp mechanism to jam. Repair was perfonmed by contact 
:maintenance in the· Process Mechanical Cell crane room. The radiat<~n 
levels on the shear were 300 mr/hr. One month later the hydr"ctuP.;: sys
tem on the shear began to hesitate; the time fr~ instr uctlon to cutting 
action was ten secends. The {uel element clamping mechanism on the shear 
failed June, 1966. The radiation levels on the shear had no\'1 rtsen to 
three rads/hour, though only low burn-up fuel had been processed. 

The saw blade and shear blade \'lere broken about September, 1566. 
The replacement was ·held up because the electrical impact wrench did 
not wo»k propa.rly; it had fallen from the power manipulator bridge and · 
broken. This comedy of errors, which accounted for large radiation ex
posures to personnel, ~as continued \·Ihen the crane room_ shielding door 
was accidentally lowered onto the crane bridge,damaging the crane bridge 
\-lh~ls and track. In December, 1966, the spray shield on the saw \'las · 
removed,. and the radioactive s~1 coolant was allowed to fall to the. 
floor. The floor drain was converted to a sump, and the water was re
turned to the saw coolant system. This increased the background radi
ation of the P~C room. 

April, 1967: the Jack of splash guards on the.PMC s~w caused leak
age to the process cell beloA. ·By April, 1970, the radiation levels in 
tqe PMC crane rOG~ had reached 15 to 35 R/h •. 

In the third NFS Q.uarterly Report, to February 19, 1967, tiFS re
ported the fuel jamming in the shear (3 days shutdown); pushout ram mal
functioning (Dec:. 29, 1966); failure of the automatic shear lubrication· 
system; fa·iture of tilt fixture _lockpin, locking the tilt fixture In the 
horizontal _position (Dec. 2~. 1966); freezing of the cross-cut spindle 
saw (Jan. 3, 1967) "(11 day shutd0\·1:1); and saw vertical travel mode fatl
ure on Jan. 15, 1967. These breakdowns, within.a three week period, are 
indicative of. the many problems with the shear at NFS. _Further repairs, 
for these and other problems a~soci a ted tli th the shear, were performed 
on Hay 16, 1967, June.26-Ju1y 1, 1967, August 23, 1967, October 2ft
November .3, 1967, February 9 - 19, 1968, February 5 - 12, 1969, August 
8 - 10, 1969, tlovember 24 - December 11, 1969,. March 9 - 21J, ·1970, 
June 18-22,1970, and March lit- 16,1971. I frankly fail to see ho\., 
Industry can state that the shear operated "successfully" at NFS • 

. 
Let me go on n~i to address some of the questions posed by the 

Commission, as they concern NFS • 

.. 
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capacity factC?r . . d •• 
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NFS had a nominal capacity of 1 1'1TU per day, or 300 NTU per year. 
On several days, such as with Dresden fuel, it processed more than 2 NTU 
per day. However, over its ·six year:·history, it process~d about 624 MTU 
or 35% capac: j ty factor.. The amount of fuel available ... IClS r.ot the limi
ting factor because even when.there \·las a considerable.! bucklog, many 
prob 1 ems 1 imi ted production such as the di s~olver capacity, lo,,_ level 

. waste evaporator malfunction, crane breakdo-~n. 

The average burnup of the fuel processed at NFS was 6,250 HWD 
per MTU. At Barnwell, the amo~nt of fuel processed will be 15 times 
that amount, at S times the burn-up, or a projected radioactivity 
thr-ou;hput 75 times gre-.ter than NFS. · 

Plutonium loss 

NFS processed about 2,000 kg of plutonium.· The measured loss 
was about 56.8 kg, or about 2.84%. The total plutonium loss, i.e., 
the difference between input plutonium, as measured in the accountability 
tank, and outgoing plutonium product, was 78.~ kg or 3.9%. This is con
trary to the loss projected in many government reports of 0.5%,. 1.0% or 
even 1.7%, as recently quoted in the final GESMO. The plutonium unaccoun• 
ted for is about 1% of input plutonium. \~at.has happened to this plu
tonium? According to one tJRC report, NUREG-0043:r about 30 kg of pluton
ium is in the sludge in the high level \·laste tank~ It appe<Jrs only 
millicurie amoounts have been released to the environment. ~robably 

. the rP .. "iiainder was passed with the uranium product, or may be due to 
measurement error.· These numbers appear in Section 11.0 of the Sierra 
Club testimony. 

radioactive effluents · 

Acccording to the PSAR of Nuclear Fuel Services, the radioacflve . 
concentrations in Cattaraugus Creek were e'Spectcd to be about 10- ° Ci 
per ml, gross beta~ but, in fact:r the levels reached ),530 times that 
amount- and this is with a plant operating at 1/3 capacity, with feel 
1/4 design basis burnup. These numbers appear in Section II.B of the . 
Sierra Club testimony. As Figure II.B.2 shaHS, radioactive concenrat
ions reached 44% MPC in the 3rd quarter 1970. The primary liquid rad
Ioactive constituents were Sr-90, Ru-106, tritium and Cs-137. 

For the year 1971, I have calculated the decontamination factors 
for the various radionuc lides, l n Table II. B. 4 of the Sierra Club tes
timony. The dccont<Jmination factor is the ratio of radioactivity re
leased to the environment over the input radioactivity. The figures 
sh~i that about 1 part out of 50,000 of Ru-106, Sr-90 and about 1 part 
out of 250,000 of Cs-137, were released as liquids. One third of input 
iodinc-129 was released as a liquid, at least k as a gas, and the re
mainder \-lent to the high level \·laste tank, where it \·Ias probably boiled 
off and re1e3sed. Therefore, almost all the iodine-129 was rele~sed. 
So far as Ru, Cs and Sr arc concerned, r see little improvement at 
Barnwell. Yet the NRC St~ff believes that the Darnwell f~cility can 
capture 1 part per billion of these radionuclides, and 1 part per 40 of 
iodine-129. think their confidenc~ is misplaced. ~ 

·-
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All the tritium, krypton-85_and carbon-1~ were released from NFS. 

The URC Staff have indicated that it is not cost-justifiable to recover 
these radionuclides. Ho-.-:ever, I believe that Barm-1el1 \·ri 11 have to 
instCJt1 additional containment equipment to capture kr-85 and iodine-129 
in·ord~r to satisfy then~~ EPA regulations. 

occupational exposure 
.: ... 

The NFS record on o~cupationa1 exposures rs scandalous. The PSAR 
stated that an operCltor \·Jould receive no more than 0.2 rem per quarter 
leaving about 1 rem per quarter· for maintenance. There \'135 no discuss Ion 
of maintenance and· transient· workers. However,.contrary to the projec
ti~~s~ the avera~e exposure for full-time employees increased fnam 2.74 
rems per year In 1968 to ].24 rems· per year in 1971, averaged over all 
ec:"!ployees, Including management and secretaries·. This is shown in 
Seetion II.C of the Sierra Club testimony. This figure does not tell 
the whole story because of the NFS practice of employing transient wor-. 
kers. By 1971. these transient workers were absorbing half the dose at 
the plant. In that last fu11 year of op~ration, NFS en1ployed 162 fu1l
tima employees and 991 part-ti~ employees. Some of these transient 
employees were as young as 18 years old, worked for minutes, and received 
a quarterly dose. Had NFS not employed transient \·torkers, the dose to 
f u 11- t i rr.e e..1p l oyees \-JOU T d have been over 1 If rems per emp 1 oyee. · It is 
al:;o interesting to consider the total dose to all employees at tiFS as 
a function of time.. In 1968, the total \·lhole body occupational exposure 
\":as 851 person-rerns, increasing to 1531 in 1970 and 2366 in 1971, before 
the plant closed down. Recall that tht-se figures \·/ere for a plant oper
ating at 1/3 capacity, with fuel at t design basis burn-up. To c~~pare 
this radiation dose with that received by govarnment employees at 
Savannah Riv~r and Hanford, the maintenance employees at the govern;nant 
facilities received 0 .. 5 rems compared to 7.3 rents at NFS; the laboratory 
e~Joyees received 1.1 rems at govern~ent filcilities compared to 5.8 rems 
at t~FS; and the process employees received 0.26 rems at government faci-
1 it ies compared to 8.92 re11s at tlFS. · · 

The long term whole body limit for occupational exposure is 5 rcms, 
with 12 reins allo\·/ed in any one y.:ar if one's body bank a lla.·Jed it. NFS 
operators were getting a dose close to 9 rems. NFS was clearly burning 
out its operators. .... ·-.... ··. ..· ... 

·'· ·. 

Many cha~ges were made to the plant during its 6 year operating 
history, but none checked the rising trend of occupational exposure. Rad
ioactivity. "m ich ~1as supposed to remain \oJi thin the process equipment. 
behind massive sh i e 1 ded \·ra 11 s, began to enter norma 1 access areas; hot 
arco:ts of the plant, where \·IOrkers \'tare supposed to enter infrequently • 
becuuse of remote ma.intenance, required contact maintenance. As Inspector 
Bro.·me said about NFS, '\-te were a-..tare of the. fuct that radiation expo!->ure 
\oJas getting to be too f!'luch of a ~Iay of life for them." At .that point:. 
at the end of 1971, before the plant closed dO\·m, the AEC ln-.;pection Staff 
sat dO'.-m \'lith the tiFS m\lnagement to discuss the exposure record. The num
erous correspondence on occupation~) exposures is laid out in Section lli.B 
of the Sierra Club tcsti~~ny. 

In addition to the loss of control of radioactivity, expressed in 
terms of whol body do5es, Ito workers uere exposed to excessing air con-

... 
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cent ratIons of radi ~active mater fa 1 s in 15 separate incidents. From 
1966 through 1972, the number of incidents occurring in each respective 
·year was 1,1t,o~4,o~-4,2. As the AEC .-ln~:;>ection Report st<:~te:; it: 

"The above informatio;-a •.• shows no im;Jrovem~nt in 
exposure controls or radiologic~] safety conditions 
over the operatli'!9 history of the plant. 11 

• 
These events were caused ~ny times by failure of NFS employees to heed 
instructions, according to NFS management. But why would this happen? 
Either management, for some reason, did not instill the proper respect 
for radiation among employees, or perhaps, inordinate discipline is re
quired of workers in the reprocessing industry. 

Time does not permit me to discuss the recent donations of NFS to 
the State of New York of high level waste tanks, lOW' level solid waste 
burial site, which is leaking, high level solid \o!aste burial site, cmd 
reprocessing building. The cost to decommission these facilities, as
suming that the technology \.,as known, is upwards of $500 mi 11 ion. tlFS 
has not been a good business proposition for New York St~te. 

To conclude~ there has not been an orderly development of the re
processing industry in this country. The technology has not been suc
cessfully demonstrated at NFS- the occupational exposures, plutonium 
Joss and radioactive effluents, have been far. greatet than the original 
projections. Yet economic considerations have forced AGNS to move to
wards a large facility, \'lith associated econo;nies of scale. Thus,. even 
though the technology has not been demoi"lstrated, the industry is movtng· 
tcn-1ards a facility with 75 times greater radioactivity throughput than 
tbe NFS facility. I therefore do not foresee a significant imporvernent. 
at· the Ba rn\'ie 11 fac i 1i ty. 

Thank you. 
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STATEHENT OF JERSEY CENTRAL POWER & LIGII'l' GIVEN 
TO ASSEMBLY AGRICULTURE & ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITTEE 
HEARING APRIL 9, 1979 PERTAINING TO ASSEMBLY BILL 3037 

Assembly Bill No. 3037 prohibits the inclusion of costs 

incurred in the maintenance and operation of a nuclear fission thermal 

power plant within the utility's rate base at least until such time 

as the Federal government or its agencies have approved a technology 

for the construction and operation of nuclear Fuel Rod Reprocessing 

plants and other facilities for the storage and processing of radio-

active wastes. This proposed legislation, as set forth in the state-

ment attached to the Bill seeks to prohibit the future completion or 

future construction of nuclear power generators within this state as 

of the effective date of the law. Jersey Central Power & Light Com-

pany opposes this legislation because we believe it conflicts with 

federal regulatory powers. 

The aims and purposes of this bill are contrary to the pur-· 

poses and regulatory powers of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission, 

successor to the Atomic Energy Commission. The Federal Atomic Energy 

Act, 42 USCA §2011 et seq, governs the development, use, and control 

of atomic energy. The United States Supreme Court in the case of 

Northern States Power Company vs. Minnesota, 447 F. 2d, 1143 (8th Cir. 

1971), aff'd mem. 405 U.S. 1035 (1972) has held that the federal 

government, under the Atomic Energy Act, has exclusively preempted the 

field of atomic energy regulation pertaining to radiation hazards. 

Moreover, the New Jersey Supreme Court has adopted this same position 
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in the case of State vs. Jersey Central Power & Light Company, 69 N.J. 

102 (1976). In that case, the New Jersey Department of Environmental 

Protection had brought an action against Jersey Central seeking 

penalties for a fish kill allegedly resulting from the discharge of 

waste water into tidal waters. The Court determined that: 

"A state may not interfere, directly 
or indirectly, with a preempted matter, 
even though the state's proscription 
may not have been directed at the 
particular activity involved." 
(Emphasis added) 

Directly on point is the very recent decision of the United 

States District Court for the Southern District of California in the 

case of Pacific Legal Foundation vs. State Energy Commission. The 

Court struck down a California statute which prohibited the construe-

tion of new nuclear power plants unless the appropriate federal agency 

had approved a technology for disposal of high-level nuclear wastes. 

The Court determined that such a statutory provision was void since 

by implication the federal government's regulatory scheme had pre-

empted this field of regulation and since the California statute so 

conflicts with federal law that it was an obstacle to. the purposes 

and objectives of Congress. 

Assembly Bill No. 3037 attempts to prevent the future 

construction of nuclear fission power plants within the State of 

New Jersey by blocking a utility from making a rate application which 

would reflect the costs of operating or maintaining such a facility. 

Thus, not only would the company be precluded from earning a reason-

able rate of return on its investments, the actual costs of operation 

and maintenance, could not be included in the utility rate charges to 

its consumers. Such action, would effectively discouragP utility 
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companies from completing the construction of nuclear power plant 

facilities and would economically destroy the capability of any 

utility company to contemplate the commencement of plans to con

struct additional nuclear facilities. 

The economic basis for nuclear power plants now being con

structed, but which would not be operational by the effective date 

of this legislation, would be effectively destroyed by this legis

lation. The proposed law would constitute a "taking" of these 

facilities by the state contrary to the United States Constitution 

since upon completion of construction and commencement of operations, 

the utility company would be foreclosed from recovering the cost of 

operation and maintenance. The Forked River plant of Jersey Central 

Power & Light Company, now being constructed, could be subject to 

this legislation with disasterous results to the company. 

Furthermore, the proposed amendment to N.J.S.A. 48:2-21 would 

make any technology for the disposal of radioactive wastes developed 

or approved by the federal government subject to the review of the 

New Jersey Board of Public Utilities and New Jersey State legislature. 

Again, these procedures to subject federal regulatory determinations 

to the BPU and state legislature appr0val, constitute a violation of 

the federal preemption doctrine. The proposed legislation undermines 

the legislative processes of the United States legislature. Already 

included within the Atomic Energy Act are provisions authorizing state 

control over nuclear by-products but only by specific agreement ~ith 

the NRC and then, only where the state has a program for radiation 

hazards adequate to protect the public health and safety, and where 

that program is compatible with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission's 

program for the regulation of such materials. 
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Since a utility's ability to function depends upon a fair 

rate of return based upon an adequate rate base, control over the 

types of -costs included within its rate base, can dictate the type 

of endeavors and activities conducted by a utility company. Anal

ogous to a legislature's power over the purse strings, this legis

lation seeks to prevent utilities within the State of New Jersey 

from constructing nuclear fission power plants for the purpose of 

generating sufficient and economical electrical energy for its users. 

Such a legislative approach violates the federal government's pre

emption of the power to regulate the construction of nuclear power 

plants, as much as a law which states that utilities in New Jersey 

shall not construct nuclear facilities. 

Finally, the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities under 

Docket No. 762-194 has instituted a generic proceeding addressing the 

engineering, economic and regulatory issues leading to the decision 

to build a particular mix of generation facilities to meet system 

requirements and provide the most economical electric power to the 

residents of New Jersey. This legislation deprives utilities from 

using the full spectrum of power sources necessary to supply the ever 

increasing demands for efficient and economical electrical power with

in this state. 
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STATEMENT ON ASSEMBLY BILL 3037 

BY 

ERNEST D. HUGGARD, 
VICE PRESIDENT - CONTROL 

ON BEH.l\LF OF 

ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC COMPANY 

Atlantic City Electric Company appreciates this opportunity to 

present its views on Assembly Bill 3037, introduced on January 16, 1979. 

Assembly Bill 3037, according to its statement of purpose will 

11prevent more nuclear power plants from becoming operable in New Jersey 

before the question of the disposal of spent fuel rods and permanent nuclear 

waste is settled.'' This purpose is to be accomplished by preventing the 

recovery in electric rates of operating and maintenance costs due to the 

production of electricity by new nuclear generating stations which go into 

service after the effective date of this bill. 

Assembly Bill 3037 will adversely impact the financial viability 

of Atlantic Electric and could jeopardize the Company's ability to provide 

reliable electric service. In addition, I am informed by a preliminary opinion 

of counsel, that this bill anticipates an unconstitutional confiscation of private 

property; thus, offending both the United States and New Jersey State 

Constitutions and, furthermore, runs afoul of the supremacy clause of the 

United States Constitution since Congress has preempted direct and indirect 

state regulation of nuclear power plants. 

By way of background, it should be noted that Atlantic Electric 

owns 7. 43% of Salem Unit No. 2 which is the next nuclear unit scheduled to go 
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into commercial operation in New Jersey. The Con1pany'::; present LcvclizL>d 

Energy Adjustment Clause, which was placed into effect in January of this. 

year and which is intended to remain in effect at a constant level throughout 

all of 1979, was developed under the assumption that Salem Unit No. 2, with 

its significantly lower energy costs, would be placed into service in August. 

Thus, Atlantic Electric 1 s customers are already experiencing lower electric 

rates due to the expected operation of Salem Unit No. 2 in 1979. However, 

the Company has not yet been permitted by the Board of Public Utilities to 

include its investment in Salem Unit No. 2 in rate base, although a rate 

proceeding is now under way in which the Company has requested rate relief 

to cover both the capital and operating costs of this additional generating 

capacity. It should be also noted that the customer impact of the additional 

rate relief associated with Salem Unit No. 2 will be reduced since a portion 

of the additional costs will be paid by new customers, particularly the casino 

industry, who are presently locating in the Company• s service area. 

Assembly Bill 3037 would not only result in a substantial and 

adverse financial impact on the Company, but could jeopardize Atlantic Electric's 

service reliability. The demand for electricity in Southern New Jersey is 

predicted to grow at a rate of about 5o/o per year over the next few years with 

the expansion of the casino industry and the continued construction of 10, 000 

new homes each year. '. 

Our short-term plans call for meeting that demand with Salem 

Unit No. 2 which is due for commercial operation this year. In the longer term, 

we are counting on three other New Jersey based nuclear units to meet our 
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ct:ston1ers' demands. If, as a result of this legislation, "ve are denied 

the use of these units, we must then seek other more expensive energy 

sources or resort to some forms of mandatory load management measures 

that may not achieve public acceptance. 

Based on a preliminary opinion of the Company 1 s counsel, 

Assembly bill 3037 would attempt to effect an unconstitutional confiscation 

of the Company 1s property which has been dedicated to the public service 

and therefore violates both Federal and state constitutional guarantees and 

directly conflicts with the laws of New Jersey which require that utility 

rates be just and reasonable. The very statute that Assembly Bill 3037 

seeks to amend commands the Board of Public Utilities to fix just and 

reasonable rates, whenever the Board shall determine any existing rate or 

charge !tto be unjust, unreasonable, insufficient or unjustly discriminatory 

or preferential." Electric rates which fail to allow the Company to recoup 

the direct operating and maintenance costs of utility facilities that are used, 

useful and dedicated to public service is tantamount to an unconstitutional 

confiscation of property. 

I am informed by counsel that eighty years ago, the United States 

Supreme Court in Smyth v. Ames, 169 U.S. 466 (1898), stated that the Fifth 

Amendment of the United States Constitution prohibits the setting of rates 

so low as to require a. company to operate at a loss. 11 The corporation may 

not be required to use its property for the benefit of the public without 

receiving just compensation for the services rendered by it. 11 ~· at 546. 

This principle was confirmed in 1944, again by the United States Supreme 
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Court in .fPC v. Hope Natural Gas Company, 320 U.S. 591 (19-14), ·which held 

that rates cannot be set at a level where a company will not be able to recover 

its costs. Yet, this is precisely what Assembly Bill 3037 would do. These 

cases represent the foundation for the development of all subsequent rate law. 

More recently, the Federal Circuit Court in Washington, D. C., 

stated that, "It is, of course, well settled that a governmentally fixed rate 

confining a public utility's return from operations to an amount below the 

point of confiscation violates due process. 11 D. C. Transit System, Inc. 

v. Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Comm'n., 466 F. 2d 394, 418 

(D. C. Cir. 1972), cert. denied 409 U. S. 1086 (1972). That same court 

has also made it clear that when a public utility is required to operate at a 

loss, the point of confiscation has been passed: 

We have been cited to no authority, and we know of none, 
which would justify ordering Transit to continue operations 
at a loss. To do so would be to deprive Transit of its 
property without due process of law, in direct violation 
of the constitutional prohibition. 

Democratic Central Committee of D. C. v. Washington Metropolitan Area 

Transit Comm'n. 436 F. 2d 233, 235 (D. C. Cir. 1970). 

Atlantic Electric therefore urges that Assembly Bill 3037 be 

rejected as violative of the Fifth Amendment of the United States Constitution 

as applicable to New Jersey through the Fourteenth Amendment, the 

New Jersey State Constitution Art. 1, para. 20•::, and the laws of the State of 

New Jersey, specifically N.J. S. A. 48:2-21. 

*Private property shall not be taken for public use without 
just compensation. 

19X 



- 5 -

In the opinion of counsel, i\ssembly Bill No. 3037 represents 

an attempt to regulate an area that has been preempted h)r Federal 

legislation, the Atomic Energy Act of t 9 54. The Supremacy Clause of the 

United States Constitution, Article 6, Clause 2, states that the Constitubon 

and the laws of the United States "shall be the supreme law of the land. 11 

Thus, state laws, I am inforn1ed, that attempt t·::> regulah' subject rnattcr 

over which Congress possesses authority cannot ~~tand whc rc Cong rc s s ll;.:ts 

implicitly or expressly indicated that concurrent state laws on the subject 

are prohibited or when such state law stands as an obstacle to the purpose 

and objectives of Federal law. 

I am further informed by coLmsel that very recently, a Federal 

district court in Southern California reviewed a statute very similar to 

Bill No. 3037 in the case of Pacific Legal Foundation v. State Energy 

Resources, Conservation and Develop1nent Commission, decided on 

March 6, 1979. That case involved a challenge to the California Public Resources 

Code, sec. 25524. 2, which provided that no nuclear power plant could 

be certified by the California State Energy Commission until that Commission 

found that the authorized United States agency had approved a technology for 

the disposal of high level nuclear waste. Because the California Commission 

had determined that the findings required by sec. 25524.2 could not be made, sec. 

25524.2 in effect posed a bar by the State of further licensing of nuclear 

power plants in California. The judge ruled that the California statute was 

an attempt to exercise state regulatory authority in contravention of Federal 

law. In connection with this ruling, the Judge rejected the argument that 
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the California law did not in fact represent an atternpt to regulate matters 

relating to radiation hazards, but was a form of econornic regulation. The 

judge pointed out that under such a strict reading of the Atomic Energy A<=t 

any state or locality could escape preemption by fashioning a carefully 

tailored statement of legislative purposes. The court concluded that "tht:! · 

question of whether nuclear power plants 1nay be constructed and ope:-ated 

• in the absence of demonstrated technology of the permanent disposal of 

nuclear waste is exclusively reserved to the NRC by sec. 274 and that state 

regulation on this subject is displaced." In addition, the court also found 

as a separate ground that the state action was preempted as constituting an 

obstacle to the accomplishment and execution of the purposes and objectives 

of Congress with respect to the development, use and control of atomic 

energy. It might be noted that the conclusions reached by the court in that 

decision were consistent with an earlier opinion rendered by the Attorney 

General of California concluding that California legislation in question was 

unconstitutional under the Supremacy Clause. 

Assembly Bill No. 3037 in prohibiting critical rate treatment with 

the express legislative purpose of preventing the operation of new nuclear 

generating stations appears to suffer from the same fatal defects as the ~··· 

California statute • 

• In summary then, not only do we question the constitutionality of 

Assembly Bill 3037, but we are seriously concerned with its negative impact 

on the ability of New Jersey's electric utilities to economically and reliably 

meet the future demand for energy in our State. 
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